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PROPER AND IMPROPER USE OF DRUGS BY ATHLETES

MONDAY, JUNE 18, 1973

U.S. Sexate,
Svrcodyrrrer o Investicare Juvesing DeninqQuincy,
CoMMITTER ON THE JUDICLARY,
Washington, D.C.

The subcommittee (composed of Senators Bayh, Hart, Burdick,
Kennedy. Cook, ITmska, Fong, and Mathias) met, pursnant to notice,
at 10:15 . in room 2228, Dirksen Senate Office Building, Senator
Birch Bayh (chairman of the subcommittee) presiding.

Present: Senator Bayh.

Also present: Mathea Faleo, stafl’ direetor and ehief connsel; John
M. Rector, deputy chief counsel ; Mary K. Jolly, editorial director and
chief elerk: Naney L. Smith. vesearch director; B. Blizabeth Marten,
secretary to stall director: Lance Ringel, assistant clerk; Catherine
ven de Velde, seeretary; Betty Webb. minority clerk: and Chuek
Bruee. legislative assistant, Senator Tlruska.

Senator Bayn. We will bring our hearings to order, this morning
with a gond morning to all of you who joined us.

Before calling on our witnesses today T wonld like to make a brief
statement relative to the purpose of anr hearings and the testinmony
we'll hear today and muy hear at a Inter date.

We meet this morning to hear testimony on the proper and im-
proper nse of drmgs in athletic competition and the related issue of
the adequacy of current eflforts to curb the improper nse of drngs by
athletes. We are particularly interested in these concerns as they
pertain to eollege. high school. and amateur athletes, althongh, to be
totally consistent. I think it is proper to pursne the nse or abuse, as
it may exist or not exist, in the professional ranks as well.

As chairman of the Juvenile Delinquency Subecommittee. I have
been actively involved in exploring the nature and serionsness of the
abuse of dmgs, partiodarly those with legitimate medical uses: the
extent to which legitimately prodnced drugs are diverted to illicit
markets; and the adecuaey of Federal controls on the production and
distribution of these drngs, has been part of this committee’s concern
over the last 3 year.

Part of my respensibility as chairman is to see to it that drugs
are distributed in accordance with Federal law, whether they are
being dispensed or administered to a chronically ill patient, a clin-
ieally dingnosed hyperactive child, or an athelete. in order to enhance
his or her performance.

(1)
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As 1 look back over the lust few years of work, it is a matter of
sonte accomplishment to point out, that at our insistence amphetanines
were finally placed under strioter contrels; controls which I feel are
consistent with proper medical use but protective of our commumuties
that. have been inundated through the efforts of illicit distributors.

We had testimony here in this room that—by users of ampheta-
mines—that it was casier to get wnphetamines—speed if you please—
that it was to get a package of cigurettes.

Despite the opposition we faced early in our efforts to get amphet-
amines controlied and to get their production controlled—and our
being toid that this cowldn’t be done—it is fair to say it has been
done and early reports show that last year, the first year of controls,
we were uble to limit. the supply of wmphetamines by 80 percent.
Production went down 80 percent.

. Similurly, through our hearings and legislative efforts it appears
that we have induced the Bureau of Narcotics and Dangeous Drugs
and the Food and Drug Administration to impose similar controls
on the widely abused shorter acting barbitwiates and other sedative-
hypnotic drugs, such as methaqualone-quaatude and sopors.

During the course of previous hoarings various individuals recom-
mended that we assess the use of drugs by athletes, particularly the
use of amphetamnines, sedatives and anabolic steroids. Reports impli-
cuting athletes in the truflic and abuse of drugs are increasing. It
proves, at least as far as some of the police reports are concerned, that
they are not wmnune from the drug abuse epidemic confronting the
Nation. Tlowever, reports that drugs are being used by competitors
in the hopes of hmproving performance and gaining an artificial
advantage are also increasing.

I want to say, as the chairman of the committee, I an not one
who feels we should proceed to investigate any problem as a resuit
of certain reports. We inust not respond to hysteria. There have
been far too many individuals, as well as legitimate interests, that
have in the past been affected detrimentally by rumor and I am not
looking at this problem as the result of rumor. I don’t intend to be
persuaded by rumor or hysteria. We are looking for the facts and
frankly, the reason for these liearings this morning is that we don’t
know the facts. We have read certain reports in the press atleging
that certain naneless individuals have done thus and so, and hope-
fully we can sort the wheat from the chaff and we can get on about
solving the business of this serious problem.

I am panticularly concerned about the ethical implications of
claims that athletes, in the quest for victory, are turning to drugs
rather than hard worlk, discipline, and commitment to honest compe-
tition. T believe that it is important to win, but that how the gamne
is played is equally important.

I have been involved in a very minor degr-e in several different
types of amatenr athletics myself. T have never been very good, but
T have always been very interested. I think this comes from the fact
that T had ihe good fortune some 45 years ago to be born into a fam-
ily of a father who was a rather significant amateur athlete himself,
IHe coached three or four different sports and was an athletic director
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and direstor of physical education throngh one of our major scliool
systers for the bulk of his seme 80 years of life. Ile gave his life
to athletic competition and honest, clean competition.

I recadl ahnost from the day T first remembered hearing the words,
him saving it is not whether you win or lose, but how you play the
game. Well. Dud counld convince mie how you play the game is im-
portant, but he never convineed me it is not important to win. Hope-
fully von can combine both of those goals snecessfully. T think that
is what athletics mean to most Americans. IHopefully if there are a
few athletes who have forgotten this rule, we can, by example, show
that they are only a few and thai the great bulk of sportsmen and
women, athletes if you please, in this country still believe that sports
should be good, clean competition.

I cannot, at least. believe otherwize.

The subeomnittec is interested in a number of issues relative to
the use of drugs by athletes in a mumber of issues relative to the
use of drugs. Just fo name four or five:

L The cthical considerations invelved in the use of additive or
nonrestorative drengs, including gtininlants sueh as cocaine and am-
phetaniines and others such as anabolie steroids.

2. An ascessment of the extent of the unse of these additive dmgs
by athletes.

3. Cnrrent policy, gnidelines, and enforcement mechanisms relative
to the improper use of drugs by athletes.

4, The natnre and extent of current cfforts to edneate athletes,
trainers, conches and otliers regarding the proper and improper use
of drugs.

5. Suggestions and recommendations to facilitate the proper use of
drugs in athletic competitions.

None of us on the subcommittee profess to be experts.

Certainly, I as the ehairman confess that I am not.

We will hear testimony from the representatives of national ath-
letic associations, physieians, trainers, researchers, and athletes. These
witnesses are uniquely qualified to provide expert testimony and in-
sight on these very important issunes.

We appreciate very much the fact that several very busy and in-
terested individuals have taken of their time to help us explore the
facts of this problem, which is a matter of increasing concern to a lot
of week-end, at least, as well as avid sportsmen themselves.

At this point in the record I wish to insert the text of the Subcom-
mittee’s arabling resolution, S. Res. 56, scetion 12.

[The docmment was marked “Fxhibit No. 1” and is as follows:]

[13xhibit No. 1}
(8. RES. 56, 934 Cong., 1st sess.. Report No. 93-46]

Resolution authorizing additional expenditures by the Cowmittee on the Judiciary for
inquiries and investigations. .

Resolved, 'That in holding hearings, reporting such hearings, and making
investigations as authorized by sections 134(a) and 136 of the Legislative Re-
organization Act of 1946, as amended, and in accordance with its jnrisdietion
under rile XXV of the Standing Rules of the Senate so far ag applicable, the
Committee on the Judiciary, or any subcomipittee thereof, is authorized from
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March 1, 19738, through Iebruary 28, 1974, for the purposes stated and within
the Hmitations imposed by the following sections, in its discretion (1) to make
expenditures from the contingent fund of the Senate, (2) to employ personnel,
and (3) with the prior consent of the Government department or agency comn-
cerned and the Committee on Rules and Administration, to use on a reimbursable
basis the services or personnel of any such departmment or ageney.

See, 2 The Committec un the Judiciary, or any subeonnnittee thereof, is
aurhorized from Marell 1, 1973, through February 28, 1974, to expend not to
exceed ¥5,946,800 to examine, investigate, and make a complete study of any
and all matters pertaining to each of the subjects set forth below in succeeding
gections ot this resolution, said funds t» be alloeated to the respective speeific
inquiries and to the procurement of the services of individual consultants or
organizations thereof (as anthorized by section 202 (i) of the Legislative
Reorganization Act of 1946, as amended) in accordance with succeeding see-
tions of this reselution.

Sec. 3. Not to exceed 377,800 shall be available for a study or investigation
of administrative practice and procedure, of which amoeunt not to exceed $3,000
may be expended for the procurement of individual consultants or organizations
theveof. R :

Srce. b Nout to exceed $767,000 shall be available for a study or investigation
of antitrust amd monopoly, of which amount not to exceed $10,000 may be
expended for the procurement of individual consultants or organizations thereof.

See. 5. Nob to exceed $230,700 shall be available for a study or investigation
of constitutional amendments, of which amount not to e¢xceed $12,000 may be
expended for the procurement of individual consultants or organizations thercof.

Nie. 8. Not to exeeed 3299,900 shall be available for a study or investigation of
constitutional rights, of which amount not to exceed $10,000 may be expended
for the procurement of individual consultants or organizations thercof.

Sre. 7. Not to exeeed $210,200 shall be available for a study or investigation
of eriminal laws and procedures.”

Sre. & Not to exceed $14,5300 shall be available for a study or investigation
of Federal charters, holidays, and eelebrations.

Skc. 9. Not to execeed $240,000 shall be available for a study or investigation
of immigration and natuealization. .

Sec. 10. Not to execed $223,000 shall be available for n study or investigation
of improvements in judicial machinery.

Sre. 11, Not to exceed $532,500 shall be available for a complete and continu-
ing stixly and investigation of (1) the administration, nperation, and enforce-
ment of the Internal Security Act of 1950, as amended, (2) the administration,
operation, and enforcement of other laws relating to espionage, sabotage, and
the protection of the internal security of the United States, and (3) the extent,
nature, and effect of subversive activities in the United States, its territories
and possessiens, including, but not limited to, espionage, sabotage, and infiltra-
tion by persons who are or may be under the domination of the foreign govern-
ment or organization controlling the world Communist mevement or any other
movement sceking to overthrow fhe Government of the United States by force
and violence or otherwise threatening the internal security of th United States.
Of such. $332,000, not to exceed $3,785 may be expended for the procurement
of individunl consultants or organizations thereof.

$re. 12, Not to exceed $335.400 shall be available for a study or investigation
of juvenile delinquency, of which amount not to exceed $14,000 may be expended
for the procurement ofindividual consultants or organizations therwof.

Sre. 13. Not to exceed $143,000 shall he available for a study or investigation
of patenta-trademarks, and copyrights.

Spce. 14 Not to exeeed 379,000 shall be available for a study or investigution
of national penitentiaries, of which amount not to exceed $1,000 may be ex-
pended for the procurement of individual counsultants or organizations thereof.

Sec. 15, Not to exceed $172,500 shall be available for a study or investigation
of refugevs and eseapees, of which amount not to exceed $2,000 may be expended
for the procurement of individual consultants or organizations thereof.

Sre. 16. Not to exceed $02.300 shall be available for a study or investigatio
of revision and codification. -

Sre. 17. Not to exceed $250,000 shall be available for a study or investigation
of sepnration of powers between the executive, judicial. and legislative branches
of Gevernment, of which amount not to exceed $10,000 bay be expended for
tiie procurement of individnal consultants or organizations thereof,
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SEe. 18. The cominittee shall report its findings, together with such recom-
mendations for legislation as it deems advisable with respect to each study or
investigntion for which expenditure is authorized by this resolution, to the
Senate nt the earliest practicable date, but not later than February 28, 1974.

SEc. 19. Expenses of the committee under this resolution shall be paid from
the contingent fund of the Senate upon vouchers approved by the chairman
of the committee.

Senator Bavi. Our first witness this morning is Mr. Donald L.
Cooper, American Medical Association, Coinmittee on Medical As-
pects of Sports.

Dr. Cooper is the team physician ai: Oklahoma State University.

STATEMENT OF DONALD L. COOPER M.D, AMERICAN M.iDICAL
ASSOCIATION COMMITTEE ON MFDICAL ASPECTS OF SPORTS,
TEAM PHYSICIAN—OKLAHOMA STATE UNIVERSITY HOSPITAL
AND CLINIC, STILLWATER, OKLA., ACCOMPANIED BY ROY S.
BREDDER, MEMBER OF LEGISLATIVE DEPARTMENT

Dr. Cocrer. Yes, sir. :
Senator Bavir. My first personal experience with Oklahoma State
was one with Oklahoma A. & M when I happened to find the young
lady who was attending school in that fine institution, and after
about 21 vears of trying. I think we finally made a Hoosier out of her.

We appreciate the fact you are here this morning.

Dr. Coorrr. ‘Thank you.

Mr, Chairman and members of the subeommittee, I am Donald L.
Cuoper, M.D., a general practitioner, presently serving as team phy-
sician at Oklalioma State University, Stillwater, Okla. I also serve
as a member of the Committee on Medical Aspects of Sports of the
American Medieal Association. With me is Mr. Roy S. Bredder, a
member of the AMA Legislative Departimnent.

The American Medical Association welcomes this opportunity, in
response to your invitation, to present its views on the use of drugs
in athletics. Our association shares the strong concern of the com-
mittee, evidenced by its extensive hearings held to date, regarding
the widespread abuse of drugs by youth in general. We have for some
time been concerncd, not only with the general widespread use of
drngs by our youth, but also with the special use of drugs by our
young athletes. We believe that your current hearings on the proper
and improper use of drugs by athletes, focusing on high school and
college age athletics, provide a timely cxploration of this subject.
Ve shall attempt to respond to the committee’s stated interest in the
use of drngs such as amphetamines and anabolic steroids, the extent
of use of additive and restorative drugs, s well as in guidelines rela-
tive to the improper and proper use of drugs by athletes in athletic
competition.

For the purpeses of this discussion it should be kept in mind that
drugs which may be the subject of abuse raay also have proper
therapeutic nsage. Drug abuse in this conext, then, refers to the self-
administration of drugs, without medical supervision and particu-
larly in large doses. By contrast, therapeutic use refers to a drug with
medicinal value administered by a physician to treat illness, injury,
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or deficiency. Drugs abused in athletics also have therapeutic value
when used properly. They are abused when they are taken without
a physician’s advice and without informed medical judgment.

Senator Bavit, It T might intevrupt, I appreciate the fact that yon
emphasize that aspect. I do think it is important for use to look at this
particular type of drugs and how it is used and abused with that
understanding. This is diflerent from the heroin problem, to use
one speoific exanple, where you have an illicitly manufactured and
distributed drng that has no medicinal purpose as contrasted to the
other clags of drugs that do have a very important, recognized medic-
inal use. It is important to control this type of drug in such a way
that. we don’t penalize the legitimate dispenser and user.

Dr. Coorer. Right.

T want to make it clear from the outset that drug abuse in ath-
leties is not an isolated event but mirrors a widespread problam
particularly among the youth of our communities.

A listing of drugs that athletes experiment with would be lengthy.
The amphetamines and steroids, however. are the ones cansing most
concern. A\ synopsis of these two classes of abused drugs will illustrate
the general nature of drug abuse among athletes.

AMPHETAMINES

Our first. concern will be amphetamines, the so called pep pills.

This commttice is well aware of recent actions taken te reduce the
availability and use of amphetaniines, which you spoke to in your
introductory statement. The medical profession has s.vongly sup-
ported these restrictions, particularly m view of the limited thera-
peutic indications for such drugs. Amphetamines may be indicated
medically, however, in selected instances such as the control of hyper-
kinstic behavioral disorders in children; and in the treatment of
patients with narcolepsy—-an uncommon disorder characterized by
an uncontrollable desire to sleep.
" There is, however, no valid reascn for their use by athletes in
athletic contests. Moreover, the National Association of Intercollegi-
ate Athletics, the Amatcur Athletic Union, the National Collegiate
Athletic Association. the International Amatenr Athletic Federvation,
and the International Olympic Committee have all condemned or
banned the use of these ¢ugs in athletics.

The position of the American Medical Association is also very
clear on this matter—-amphetamines have no place in athleties,

AMA concern with drmgs in athletics dates at least to 1957. A
resolution was introduced that year into the House of Delegates of
the AMA alleging widespread abuse of amphetamines, An ad noe
conunittee on amphetaniines and athletics was appointed by the AMA
to undertake a survey. A sample of 8§00 high schools and eolleges re-
vealed that less than 1 percent of the athletes had abused drugs. The
low drug abuse reported in this survey among athletes corresponded
generally with the relatively low incidence of abuse in the youthful
population at that time. No recent national surveys have been con-
ducted on the extent of amnphetamine abuse in athleties, but there is
reason to believe that the ncidence is higher. again corvesponding
with the higher use an:ong students generally throughout the country.
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As members of the youth subenltnre, athletes are encowraged throngh
sometimes subtle social persnasion from their peers to consume drags,
quite distinet from reasons of taking them for a supposed advantage
mn sports. The athlete could conceivably start abusing amphetamines
in high scheol and continne in college. His frequency and duration
of drug abuse over that period wonld be substantial. His habits of
abuse coupled with apparent easier accessibility of the dmg and peer
acceptance of drug abuse could develop into a behavior Pmtntem diffi-
cnlt to eliminate even after his formal athletic career. The “National
Snrvey of Student Data,” condueted by the National Commission on
Marilmana and Drug Abuse, indicates that drng abuse among the
generad student population has increased, and it is logical to expect
that athlotes as members of that subeulture have also been influenced
to abuse drugs more in recent years. Therefore, onr impression is
that athletic drug abnse has inereased.

Becanse drugs snch as amphetamines are not permitted in athletic
events, concerted efforts have been made in recent years by the ath-
letic connnunity to control abnse. The prestige associated with win-
ning at an international competition raises the incentive, even more
than most athletic contests, to use any method to try to improve per-
formance. As a resnlt severnl procedures for control have been devel-
oped and nsed in international competitions.

A reliable sclentific dimg deteetion and monitoring program insti-
tuted in all athletic events wonld be expensive and time consning.
For instance, whers urine is monitored, facilities and staff must be
evailable to colleet samples and to label, seal and code them properly.

Most Inboratories are geared only for determination of fairly large

amonnts of drugs, as in poisonings or suicides. Gas chromatography,
electrophoresis, and erystallography can be used for analysis, but
thiese must be well controlled.

When testing is to be done, it should be carried ont. on all partici-
pants. When only winners are tested, the implication arises that
thore is some relaticnship between winning and drug taking. In
reality the opposite is found to be true. Where a diug detection sys-
tem las been used it has generally been welcomed by the athletes
heeause it assists them in resisting social pressure to use drugs.

Senator Bayn. Doctor, do yon have any reports to snbstantiate
what you just mentioned here; relative to the opposite being true?

Dr. Coorgr. The stndies that have been done; where there were
tests taken on all of the participants i events, have been reported
in the literature, There was one at Winnipeg in 1967 that tested all
of the bicycliste and this showed up the number—and I think it was
well in to the 60’s or the T0’s: cyclists entered—it wasn’t until they
got after the first six places that they began to show up as users of
drugs. The same thing has been true in studies done in Italy and
France where they have tested all of the participants in an event.

As I say, the first finishers, the winners, were not the ones using
the drugs; it was the boys that apparently were looking for some
type of supposed outside help or outside support for their benefit
beeanse they hadn’t put in the training and conditioning necessary,

Senator Baym. Let me ask the converse question because I think
that probably is equally important and, that is, the seventh place
finisher might have finished 17th, We don’t know. Is there any proof
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to show that, by using drugs, whether you have a better chance of win-
ning? T think that is an equally important question because a lot of peo-
ple might, be tempted to nse drugs feeling that is going to get them the
gold medal. )

Do we have any evidence to show that using some of these various
kinds of crutches really helps to get across the finish line earliei?

Dr. Cocrer. This is whore you have to go back to your own object-
ive interpretation of the literature that is available. In my opinion,
and in the opinion of most. anthoritics, 1 talked to, there is no good
seientific evidence to indicate that any drug can make anybody per-
form any better.

I think there are an awful lot of poorly done studies that would
imply—uwell, one of the studies 1 am thinking of said the ampheta-
mines would inerease the performance by 1 to 4 percent, which is very
minimal, a very minimal typs of increase. Yet when the study was
actually analyzed in a somewhat—I wonld say, in depth and in « crit-
ical fashion, you will find the measurements were very poorly con-
trotled, the timings were poorly done, the athletic knowledge of the
individuals running the tests was very, very miniinal and so it was
a very poor study.,

So, if you get well-done studies where they were double blind, that
is. the participants and the investigator, neither one knew what was
the active drug being used, there is no evidence to this.

In fact. with a placebo, the effect is so marked it is just abont as
good. In other words, if yon tell someone they are taking something
that is geod and is going to inerease their performance, they will be
just as gned if you give them the amphetamines.

Senztor Bavir. You will pardon by smiling. You may have noticed
I Timped in here, which is the result of a sprained anklethat I got this
weekend, Saturday, playing with a friend which I taped up to meet
a challenge match in which iny son and T were meeting another father
and son. So what you are telling me is, if I had a pill to help me, I
couldn’t have done any better than I did yesterday during that father
and son match?

Dr. Cooern. There is no evidence te indicate you =an increase your
ability to perform, no.

Senator Bayr. My own ability ean’t then be increased by cither a
shot or pep?

Dr. Cocrer. T think yon have to comne back to this basis—

Senator Bayir. Oh, well, let’s not go too far into this personal note
of my own talent in sports.

Dr. Coover. There are conflicting reports in the literature as to the
possible minimal benefits of amphetamines in enhancing perform-
ance. When I seareh the eumulative index and start pulling out
papers, no substantial finding conflicts with this. And in the positive
sense, amphetamines provide only a minimal benefit in enhancing the
performance. :

But it is our opinion that valid seientific evidence does not show

- improvemant in petrformance. Some show actual impairment of cer-

tain skills, I think that is important to indicate. It oftentimes will
have a paradoxical effect so that what the individual is taking to
help himself may have a detrimental effect and they will be harming
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themselves in terms of their performance. But even if it were found
that such drugs enhanced performance, there would remain, among
others, the question concerning the priority of such use within the
spirit of amatenr athletics.

Moreover, the detrimental effects of continuned s.nphetamine abuse
are substantial. It is stated in AMA Drug Evalnations that over-
dosage may canse nausea, vomiting, ratching, cardiac irregularities,
or convulstons, and that delayed psychotic reactions characterized by
euphoria, agitation, confusion, and visual hallucinations have
occurred. The Council on Mental Health at the AMA has said:

Abuse of these substances arises from and is paratuated solely by psychic
nieeds to overcome depression or fatigue or to attain the auphoric and excitatory
effects associated with the drugs.

Clearly there is a substantial health risk involved in amphetamine
abuse,

ANDROGENIC-ANABOLIC STEROIDS

Syathetic anabolic steroids were originally developed to simulate
the body-building action of natural androgens. Androgen is any sub- .
stance that possesses masculinizing actions. ‘Testosterone, the male -
sex hormorne, is the most potent androgen. It is a primary factor in
growth and davelopment of inale secondary sexual charactoristics.
The development of a synthetic staroid that could retain the anabolic
growth eflects of testosterone without the associated sexnal changes
won'd be an important medical advaucement. There is no pure
anzoclic steroid or agent without the androgenic effects. In proper
dosage, these drngs can benefit some carefully selected children, boys
and girls, with growth disorders, and they are used in debilitative
disenses of both men and women. Thus they have a valid medicinal
value when treating certain deficiency disorders. They have no role
where normal metabolism exists.

The extent of abuse of anabolic steroids in sports is unknown.
Wlhile no national surveys have been conducted to assess it, it is
belteved by many team physicians that theiv abuse has increased in
vecent years, Unlike amplictamines, there are no analogous data
available from a survey »f the general student population. Anabolic
steroids have such a specific prurpose that their abuse is confined much
more to vhe athletic community. In athletics. anabolic steroids are
used largely by weight lifters, shot putters, discus throwers, javelin
throwers, wrestlers and footbudl players in an attempt to increase
body size or strength. The suspected increase in abuse wnay again
veflect the enrrent liberal position of the youthful community to drug
abuise practices.

The issues of wucther these drugs enhance strength or athletic per-
formance in athletic competition is purely academic. Their use by
athletes is banned by all amateur athletic codes and there is no
therapeutic reason to justify their use by a healthy athlete. Never-
theless, the nse of anabolic steroids presents a_complicated problem.
The human body has many known steroids, and the total interrelated
action of all these and other hormones is not fully understood. When
a steroid drug is introduced or given to a normal individual, it can
canse profound metabolic imbalances. The problem is further com-
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pounded by the fact that many athletes in their zeal will take 5. 10
or 15 times the normal dese recommended by the manufacturers or
tiie pharmacologists. No one to my knowledge has done research with
these massive doses. and the human damage that conld result is
mknown. One study was unable to demonstrate any increased
strength, motor performance, vital capacity, and physical work
capacity. This was a good, scientific investigation that used normal
dosages of androgenic-anabolic steroids. There wus some weight gain,
but 1most of this was believed to be due to fluid retention, whieh is a
common finding with the use of steroids in humans, and caused by
sndium retention from altered electrolyte balance. Another study also
documented the inability of anabolic steroids to increase effective
weigiit or strength among normal persons. Where other studies
seemed to show a gain in sfrongth and size, they were in general not
of the double blind type and this fact made it diffienlt to evaluate
the psyeiological input. The placebo effect must be controlled as it
has recently been shown that dramatic improvements in strength
were recorded when subjects were told they would be given anabolic
steroids even when they were not.

There are real dangers to youths using anabolic steroids. The pos-
sibilities of the premature development of male secondary sexual
characteristics in young boys, virilization in females, and accelerated
bone maturation of Loth sexes are definite risks. The accelerated bone
maturation means prematnre closure of the epiphses or growing
plates in long bones. In other words, a youth may close his epiphyses
prematurely and never become the height and size of which he is
capable.

Besides these effeets, anabolic steroid use by normal men has been
associated with testicnlar atrophy, loss of libido, and on rare occa-
s10mS. in size of the prostate gland. If a young person has a hormone
sensitive timor, the increased amount of steroid may spur it on to
more rapid and dangerous growth. Inflimmation of the liver has
been veported as it apparently cannot metabolize all of the extra
steroid hormone. This is a chemical hepatitis.

PREVENTION AND CONTROL

There has been a concerted effort by the sports medicine com-
munity to restore a meaningful perspective to the medical uses of
drugs in athletics. When the AMA Comurittee on the Medical Aspects
of Sports first alerted the athletic community to amphetamine abuse
in 19539, it also voiced active oppositien to any use of drugs by
athletes for the purpose of supposedly enhancing athletic perform-
ance. In 1965 the committee again strongly advised that the giving of
anabolic steroids to healthy at*letes had no medical justification.

As reeently as June 1972, tie House of Delegates of the AMA
reiterated an unequivocal statement by the Association that amphe-
tamine and anabolic steroid dimgs have no medical purpose in
athleties. Throughount this whele period. the committee has utilized
vavious communication media in a continuing effort to educate
athletes, eoaches, athletic trainers. and team physicians concernin
the health hazards involved in the abuse of these drugs. But the

Q

RIC

Aruitoxt provided by Eic:



E

11

multiplicity of drug abuse patterns among youth demand diverse
educational strategies. Drug abuse prevention among athletes requires
approaches similar to those for any other group. Even though drug
detection procedures are necessary, drug education related to preven-
tion is more important.

Senator Baxit. Before you leave that point, may I ask you to make
very clear what the AMA position is on this.

Could you tell us what steps they have taken as a professional orga-
nization to convey this expression of concern to their members? Have
any steps heen taken to punish physicians who may have transgressed
this prohibition against the use of these drugs? Are there any specific
examples of physicians who have been reprimanded vr punished by
the AMA as a result of misusing this particular tg'pe of drug, which
the Associntion says has no relevancy in this area®

Dr. Coorer. As far as the methods used, again I would refer to-
what we call publications of the AMA. that is, this [indicating].

Of cowrse, here is a lengthy list of the publications of the AMA
[indicating] but as far as tips on athledic training, each year the
AM .\ spousors a naticnal conference on the medieal aspects of sports
and for the last several years on the program-—and I have copies ol
the various programe starting back to the 12th, 13th and 14th nation-
al conferences on the medieal aspects of sports—we have had presen-
tations and discussions on these very subjects and speaking to the
specific point of not using these drngs in ethical medical practice.

Of course. the AMA has a publication called Ding Dependency
Guide for Physicians, and we also have a booklet out called “The
Fundamentals of Athletic Training.” Now, these are promoted as
edneational pivces and. of course, they are getting and trying to get
stories into the varicus wire services in regard to this area.

As to the specifie; T guess_yvon wonld call it policing, I am not
familiar with any specific cases of any physicians that I know of.
Our legal counsel may be able to advise me on this, Have there been
any specific cases ?

My, Breporr. T am not aware of any speeifics. I would point out
the AMA itself is really not capable of doing anything to a physician
in terms of taking away his license or things of this nature, I think
onr effort is in the educational activity of physicians who might be
abusing this particnlar drug perhaps and also through his fellow
physicians in the community or perliaps State licensing veards. They
may have some effect. but we ourselves don’t have any power to do
sontething of this nature.

Senator Bavm. Well, before proceeding along this fine of question-
ing. and maybe since T opened it up, we ought to go ahead and finish
this particnlar line of questioning. T apologize for interrupting your
statement. :

First. let’s make absolutely certain what we are talking about. In
my judgiment we are talking about a very. verv small percentage of
physicians, if any, and we are talking about, I think—and I hope we
will find—a very small pereentage of athletes if any.

And T don’t know why it is—whether it is those in charge of
managing a professional sports organization or I suppose a medical
association or whatever it might me--but whenever there is any effort
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made to try to study these misdeeds of a few, that suddenly those in
charge start calling may office or feoling that the whole profession is
going to I besmirched. which seems to me not to be true. The con-
verse is true, If we ean find a rotten apple or two, it is better to admit
that it is bad.

Now, your profession has gone on record repestedly about what
you do believe—and T'm sure professional sports are in the same
category. that is, nobody who manages a professional team and cer-
tainly a leagne condones this kind of thing—and you have gone on
record against it, T personally feel that all athletics accept an athletic
code. Most wonld profit by our getting it ont in the open and saying,
all vight. there is an example here of this abuse and we are not going
to let it happen in the futnre. ‘

Mr. Bredder has been kind enough to testity and help ns in prev-
ions testimony when we were pursuing the rescheduling problem. It
is good to see him again.

It is foir to say that the Amierican Medieal Association would have
some influence on State societies and State licensing boards if they
were to use their influence to point out certain transgressions; is that
not a fair assessment ? '

Mr. Berpper. T would think so, yes.

Senator Bavu. New, this is a new field, yon know, so T am not
being critical, but since we are talking aboit a few, have you had
any examples of. say, a team psysician who for some reason or other
1s using—dispensing these dimgs which the Association feels have
no reasonable use in this avea ?

Have vou had any example brought to your attention?

Dr. Coorer. T am not aware of any.

Senator Bavir. T am not talking abont the whole profession now.
¥ am talking about cne or two.

Dr. Coorer. At this time T am not aware of any physicians who
are preseribing either of these substances, as a team physician,

Senator Bayvir. This would apply to amateur athletics as well as
professional athletics?

Dr. Coorer. T am not familiar in the arvea of professional athletics,
T would not pretend teo speak for that area. I am talking about
amatenr athletics at the collegiate and high school level.

Senator Bavrr. This applies to steroids as well as amphetamines?

Dr. Coorer. Tt would have to apply to steroids as far as my per-
sonal knowledge is concerned, yes.

Senator Bayi. You are familiar with the conrt cases involving the
San Diezo Chargers. T believe these allegations relate to the late
sixties. There were a couple of conrt cases alleging abuse. Deposi-
tions were taken.

Dr. Cooper. This was the team physician for the professional
team? '

Senator Bavm. Yos.

Dr. Conrrr. Yes; T am only familiar with what T read in the

- newspaper about it.

Senator Bavu., Where does cne attack the problem. if you have a
situation where the team physician preseribes drugs for a team as a
whale and then the trainer dispenscs them across the board?
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T?hu.t. certainly would bhe nnethical and probally illegal; wonld it
not

Dr. Coover. I am not familiar with any such case, but I would
have to have more specifics.

Senator Bayu., This goes back to the previously mentioned case
where the phyasician and the taainer testified that the physician pre-
seribed drags for the team and then the trainer dispensed and dis-
tributed them.

Dr. Coorer. T think this would be a highly questionable practice in
my opinien and T thiuk it would be wrong.

Senator Bayn. I think we could go a little bit further than that;
conldn’t we?

Dr. Cocrer, As I say, T am not familiar with the details. other
than just in general, of what you are talking about. You haven’
mentioned any specific drugs. ‘

Senator Bayu. I am talking about amphetamines and steroids.

Dr. Coorver. T am not really familiar with any place where that
11:15 ocaurred. As I say, if this is what happened with the professional
eam

Senator Bayr. T don’t know whether it occurred or not either, adl
we have is testimony to the effect it did ocenr some time ago so 1
think we can talk about it without in any way alleging misdeeds. T
u]ndm'sta‘nd that the management of the Chargers has changed since
then,

T don’ know the truth or veracity of the allegations that were
made either. But looking at a specific example, is it fair to say unless
we are talking abont some communicable disease where the whole team
needs to be treated, there is no validity in issuing a preseription for
amphetamines to a whole team?

Dr. Coorer. There is no validity to issuing it to one person let
slone the whole team,

Senator Bayrr. Well. thank you.

_ Dr. Coover. Success in ameliorating the total drug problen: requires
the concerted effonts of agencies representing all segments of the
community—Ilaw enforcement, education, religion, industry, busi-
ness, medicine, along witix parents and most important, the youths
themselves. Many communities have been able to provide prevention,
rehabilitation, and understanding through the synergistic action of
evervone in the community. They have found that a shotgun ap-
proach to drug abuse prevention with facts alone about drugs does
little to discourage abuse.

I think the most promising trends in mounting successful pro-
grams have include’ a reexamination of relationships between people
as well as assistance to help them learn and use accurate information
to humanize education, This course is superior to placing the
emphasis on the acquisition of knowledge. Whereas many of the
original programs were oriented towards the drugs, more promising
programs focus on the individual. The abuse of a drug is usually
only an external manifestation of a problem, and is an indication of
the individual’s value system.

Tn athletics, a discussion of values mnst include a reconsideration
of the purpose of sports programs. These considerations may lead to
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modifications of a syvstem that frequently only rewards the winner,
and with jittle regard for individual athletes. Such limited programs
restrict the health. education, and recreational benefits of athletics.
The lack of regard for the individual. in addition to game pressure,
may well be factors in enconrnging drug abuse among athletes.

Since the athlete is like any other youth, as pointed out, general
prevention is necessary. New ways are needed for health educators
to deal with the total family unit. Parents exert substaitial influence
on their children through their own unconscious behaviors. Provid-
ing an orderly growth and development for young children through
aiding fammilies and improving environmental influences holds the
greatest promise of success in combating drug abuse among youths,
mcluding athletes.

THERAPLUTIC USE OF DRUGS

This is another area. This is in counterdistinction of what we were
talking about.

‘Therapeutic nse of drugs to relieve pain is a second broad category
of ding nse of intorest to this subcommittee. Perhaps a reminder is
in order that the therapentic use of drugs to treat disease or injury
and relieve symptoms should not be confused with use of drugs taken
solely for a supposed advantage in sports.

The class of drugs referred to herc -represents local anesthetics
(c.g. Novocaine), analgesics (e.g. aspirin and narcotics), and anti-
inflammatory agents (e.g. cortisons). The first two. groups are often
referred to in lay terms as “pain killers.”

The local anesthetics can be injected directly into a damaged
tissne to produce ahmost instant pain relief. The analgesic drugs can
be taken orally or by injection, to produce a reduced consciousness
of pain. An cnumeration of all these agents would be extremely
lengthy and serve no useful purpose. Sl?(ﬁ\ a list would contain ail
the medications in these classes which are prescribed for the gemeral
population,

We should remember that in the medical care of athletes, as with
other patients. consideration must be given to the whole individual.
Medical judgments often inclnde psychological or social consider-
ations relating to the total well-being of the individual.

Of conrse the primary consideration entering into a physician’s
decision concerning whether an athlete should play again immed-
lately following medication to rednce pain is the location and severity
of the injury and the extent of risk of further damage. Of formost -
concern is the general health and well-being of the athlete, and
nowhere do we imply that there is an attempt to gain an athletic
advantage through such required medical treatment.

This raises the issie of participation by athletes handicapped by
an illness, such as asthma, or diabetes or epilepsy, and who can only
compete with the aid of medication. These athletes are to be com-
mended for overcoming tremendous physical handicaps in achieving
the athletic success that they do. Many amateur athletic associations
may have to re-evalnate their stringent rulings in this regard to
enconrage such individuals to participate.

From this discussion, T am sure it is apparent that reaching a
jndgment in sports medicine is perhaps more complex in some ways
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than it is in the ordinary practice of medicine, Mr, Chairman, I will
conclnde here, and will attemnpt to answer any questions yon might
have,

Senator Bayi. Dcetor, this is a very thoughtful and comprehen-
sive statement. I do have some questions I would like to ask you, to
expand on your comments. I suppose cne of the most eritical and
vet difficnlt” decisions involves your clesing reference to the use of
certain types of drugs to ease the pain and thus let an athlete con-
tinue to participate.

Frankly, I have always thought and do feel that it is an act of
courage 1f a person has a painful injury where their conipetitive
spirit is such that it drive him on to compete in spite of the pain,
So where do you draw the line? Who makes that decision whether
competing, absent the paint bacause of temporary relief, is injuring
that athlete? How do you apply a standard? I noticed a study
showed that most State {aws prohibit the use of pain killers, of pain
killing drugs, on horses, within 48 hours of a race yet we go ahead
and let hunan beings have the advantage if you want to call it an
advantage of this particular type of drng to drive them on to con:
pete. Where do yvou draw the line? You set one standard for horses
and another for adults, apparently.

Dr. Coorer. Well, I think there are some very obvious differences
between the horses and the humans. '

Senator Bavn. That is a very profound statement,

Dr. Coorer. As T say, horses don’t bet on llmmans and they are
pretty smait for not doing so.

It 1s a very diffienlt problen, This is one of the areas where what
we call the art of medicine and the art of experience and the art of
being in a sitnation numerous times as a team physician and in a
sense as an athletic trainer, comes in. T don’t know any way you

an avoid playing with some pain when you play a competitive con-

tact sport. I think there is a wide variation of individnais that will
have what we call different pain thresholds, It is difficult really to
judge.

I was recently advised of a young man, who is known to you. and
goes to school with your son at St. Albans and who was in a wrestl-
mg tournmuent in carly Spring. In the workonts before the tourna-
ment. even begzn he cracked or fractured—it was not a complete
fracture—but he fractured his right clavicle. It gave him pain. The
coach said if it bothers you this much you don’t have to participate
but he said no, he would. And he wrestled five different opponents.
Apparently he has a high threshold for pain.

Ho lost thie final match to a much older and experienced wrestler.
It wasn’t known until 2 days later when he went to the doctor that
he had sustained in the initial injury sometime back this fracture
of the olavicle, but ¢ven so he wrestled five matches with a cracked
clavicle.

So we see many individuals with painful conditions that are tiz ated
by these substances. I mysslf have used it on numerous cases, for
example, where a boy has a—what we call a hip pointer. T don’t
know if you ever heard of a hip pointer but it is a very minor injury
in regard to any serionsness in regard to future activities or future
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longevity or any other perameter von want to measure it by, but it
is a very discomforting injury because every time you cough or
sneeze or try to langh it canses pain. By injecting this, you relieve
the individnal of his pain and he can be more comfortable in ordi-
nary living. '

We have the samme treatment, not exclusively for the athletes, but
for the college stivlent who falls down the stairs and gets a hip
puinter. We do this for him too. Once it clears. yon can stop treat-
ment.,

So I think you have to take each individual individually. As I
said, it is very difficult to set hard and fast standards. But your ques-
tion was where do yon draw the linc? What may be the line for one
man may be completely different for another. There are people who
think that these substances should never be used under any conditions
for anybody. They are what T call hard heanted in o way because
they have never had the injury themseclves, But there are physicians
who believe that. Aud that is an easy way to do it in the sense of it
being a copout to the athlete becanse, you know, for an athlete who
has worked for many years—and many of them do—and they. strive
and go through great amounts of devotion of time and effort and
injnries and they want to be able to compete, and I think they have
the right to compete under what I would say “none-severe risk-taking
behavior” in the sense that the guy has a right to compete as an ath-
lete because of all the time he has devoted to this. And if there is
any way he can be oable to comnpete that is relatively safe to him, we
shonld help him.

Senator Bavy:r, With the emphasis on it being relatively safe?

Dr. Covrer. This is a tongh judgment to make.

Senator Baxis. If you as the team physician had known that the
claviele had a parallel fracture how would you have decided that
particular case? .

Dr. Coorrr. In that particular instance I would not allow him to
have wrestled anybody had I known it ahead of time.

Senator Bayu. Do we have any specific examples—in yonr knowl-
adge—as to the use or abuse of amphetamines in athlecies, any ex-
amples where it has been linked with serious injury or fatalities?

Dr. Coovrn. There are reports in the literature; yes, in fact I think
vonu will find in the 1960 Olympics there was a cyclist, a Belgian
cyelist, where this happened. T think yeu will find in some of the
various luropean experiences occurences of this. I could go back
throngh the literature and give yon specific references, .

But there have been deaths. What happens in these sitnations
apparently is the individual, what was his, I guess you would say,
central nervous sysiem excited state does not recognize or they are
not awars of the normal signs and symptoms of fatigue and signs
of exhaustion and they continue to go on to the point of heat buildup
and go into what we call a circulntorv collapse. There are deaths
associated with amphetamine nsage in these long-endurance events.

Senator Bavi. Youn refer to urinalysis in international competi-
tion. As someone whe has been involved in amatenr -athletics as &
team physician in this country, what are your thoughts on the advis-
ability of nsing that kind of a system in American amateur athletics
and professional athleties?
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Dr. Cooren, It 15 relatively expensive to do and it is somewhat
complicated to do. T don’t thiuk there is any question of the impact
that it has on ihe international competitors in terms of their more
diseriminatory nse of snbstances.

I think you get into the very complicated arca of saying which
drugs are to be banned.

Some individuals have banned ephedrine, which is the most com-
monly used drag for the treatment. of asthma, and yet isoprotereno 4
hydrochloride, which is a commonly used drng, has not been banned.

There is no evidence I kmow of anywhere in the literature that
wonld validate it would increase the ability to perform any type of
athletic enmtest.

So T don’t think there is any question of the efficiency of a sophis-
ticated laboratory process that could be done now. It is jnst relatively
exnensive. It would be very awkwaard to perform such a test on every
contest. There may be some way they conld set wp random sampling,
but T thuik if vou are going to do random samphng, yvon better do it
on everyhady who is pavticipating. This is one thing T object to where
in cortain areas of international testing, for example in 1971 when
they had the worid weight lifting championships in Colnmbia, Qhio
they tested the winners. They tested the first and second and third
finishers and found all of them using anphetamines. So they took
the first, second. and third medals away and awarded them to the
fonrth, fifth and sisth winners without any testing on them, thereby
implying that the dvugs had something to do with these people win-
ning in this instance. And [ think they would have done better to
have tested everybody or not tested anybody at all.

Senator Bavir, How in the world conld anybody apply a test to
only the top threc? My information was that in this particular in-
stance, there wore nine top medalists involved

Dr, Cooper. Well, that was different weights, Senator.

Senator Bavyn. Acress different weights?

How could you apply that test to the top contestants and not
apply it across the board ?

Dr. Coover. T don’t know who made that administrative deecision.
I think it was a very bad one though.

Senator Bayn. Well, Doetor. T won’t delay yvon further. We may
bave some snpplemental questions we wonld like yon to answer in
writing.

But it is your position as the resnlt of significant experience as a
trainer, as o physician, as an advisor to trainers, that there is nothing
to be gnined by the nse of these stimulative drugs and that the adinin-
istration of these drngs to reliove pain and thus permit participation
shonld be confined to those arcas where it will not damage the ath-
lete involved?

Dr. Coorrr. Yes sir.

Senator Bavi. One last question. Is the kind of drug which re-
lieves pain free from affects that might increase competitiveness?

Dr. Conrer, OFf eonse aspirin will relieve pain, Tt is probably the
most commonly used pain veliever most of ns use and T am not just
exactly sure what venr question is getting at. T don’t nnderstand
completely
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Senator Bayn. Is it possible to inject a drug for the relief of pain
and be certain that in relieving pamn, which is the primary use of
the drug, that you are not giving that athlete a shot of something
that might charge the rate of metabolism. or whatever effect it might
have on the athlete to increase his performance beyond just relieving
the pain? v '

Dr. Coorer. To my knowledge there is no evidence that any of this
has ever happened to increase anybody’s ability to perform. I think
conversely, in certain susceptible individuals, you might find certain
drugs used to relieve pain which might indeed slow them down.

When they talk about horseracing, I amn sure you are aware of the
fact when they talk about a fixed horse race, to my knrowledge there
is no way theyv can fix it to make any horse run faster. What they
will do is set it up so they will sedate maybe six out of eight lorses
and then bet all of their money on the two horses that are unsedated.
Tt is kind of a reverse doping situation. This is the reason for the
justification of the testing in the horse or in the animal.

Senator Bavi. Well, then, what is the purpose of testing for
drugged horses, because, you know, if what you say is true, why
should you deny the horse a clhiance to run in the Preakness or the
Kentncky Derby as the case may be, just because that horse had been
given drugs? You say it doesn’t make him run any faster but actually
slows him down.

Dxi; Coorer. Well, this is one of the things that is a good question
to ask.

Senator Baxn, That is why I ask it.

Dr. Conct}:n. Well, I wondered the sanie thing. As I say, there is
no evidence, althouglh, yon know, people might think that it w’
make them run faster.

Senator ArLex. But it does not stimulate them ¢

Dr. Coorex. Not to my knowledge.

In France for the last 6 ycars they have been conducting experi-
ments with the racing horse people where they have been on every
Wednesday injecting every known medicine that has ever been ac-
cused of being a stimnlant into the horses—or for that matter to the
humans—and over these last 6 vears they have never ever, measuring
every perameter, that is, running the horse warmed up, running the
horse fatigued, under every type of situation and condition, there
has never yet been shown a horse that could run any faster than he
could when he was drug free.

As I said. this is one of the things that is & paradoxical situation.

I am sure it is up for debate, just like many things are debatable,
bnt it is my opinion the French studies ave relatively significant.

Senator Bavya. Well, I certainly know nothing about the ins and
outs of horse racing with or withowt drugs, but it is rather intercsting
to note that there is this prohibition in the horse racing field against
any kind of drug.

Dr. Conver. Yes, they have a very strong feeling, and even Buta-
zolidin caused them a lot of problems. I don’t think anybody ever
said Butazolidin allowed a liorse to run faster.

Senator Bayn. Maybe it is rather difficult for a horse to tell you
where that pain threshold is.
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Thauk you very much, gentlemen.
We appreeiate your giving us your thoughts on this problem.
[ Dr. Cooper’s prepared statement is as foliows:]

PREPARED STATEMENT OF DoNawy L. Cooreg, M.1), 08 BENALF OF THE AMURICAN
MEDICAL ASSOCIATION

Mr. Chairman and members of the subeonnnittee, 1 am Donald L. Cooper,
M.D., a general practitioner, presently serving as team physician at Oklahoma
Stte University, Stillwater, Oklalioma. I also serve as a member of the Com-
mitice on Medieal Aspects of Sports of the American Medieal Association. With
me is Mr. Roy 8. Bredder, a member of the AMA Legislative Depurtiment.

The American Medical Association welcomes this opportunity, in response to
yeur invitation, to present its views on the use of drugs in athletics. Our Asso-
cintion sharves the strong concern of the Commitiee, evidenced by its extensive
hearings held to Jate, regarding the widespread abuse of drugs by youth in
general. We have for sume titne been concerned, not only with the geneval
widspread usuge of drugs by our youth, but also with the special use of drugs
1y our young athletes. We believe that your current hearings on the proper
and improper use of drugs by athietes, focusing on high school und college
age athleties, provide a timely exploration of this subject. We shull attempt
to respond 1o the Copnirfee’s stated interest in the use of drugs such as am-
phetimines and anabolie steroids, the extent of nse of additive and restorative
drugs, as well as in guidelines relative to the improper and proper use of drugs
by athletes in athletie competition,

For the purposes of this discussion it should be kept in mind that drugs
which may Le the subjeet of abuse may also have proper therapeutic usage.
Drug abuse in this context. then, refers to the self-administration of drugs,
without medical supervision and partienlarly in large doses. By contrast,
therapeutie use refers to a drag with medicinal value administered by a physi-
cian to treat illnoess, injury. or deficiency. Drugs abused in athleties also have
therapentic value when used properly. They are abused when they ure taken
without o physician’s advice and without infurined medieal judgment.

I want to make it elear from the outset that drug abuse in athletics is not
an isolated event bat mirrors a widespread problem particularly among the
south of our eonnnunities.

A listing of drugs that athletes experiment with wounld be lengthy. The
amphetamines and the steroids, however, are the ones causing most concern.
A synopsis of theze two classes of abused drugs will illustrate the general nature
of drug abuse among athletes,

AMPHETAMINES

Qur first concern will be amphetamines, the so-called pep pills,

This Comuitteg is well aware of recent actlons taken to reduce the avail-,
ability and use of amphetamines. The medical profession has strongly supported’
these restrictions, particularly in view of the limited therapeutic indications
for such drugs. Amphetamines may be indicated medically, however, in selected
instances such as the control of hyperkinetie behavioral disorders in children;
and in the treatment of patients with nareolepsy—an uncommeon disorder char-
aeterized by an uncontrollable desire to sleep.

There is, however, no valid reason for their use by athletes in athletic con-
tests. Moreover. the National Association of Intercollegiate Athletics, the
Amatenr Athletic Union. the National Collegiate Athletle Association, the
Internationn] Amatenr Athletle Federation, and the International Olympic
Commitiee have all banned the use of these drugs in athletics.

The position of the American Medical Association ig also very clear on this
misttor-—&mphetinmines have no place in athletles.

AMA concern wlith drugs in athletics dates at least to 1957. A resolution
was introduced that year into the House of Delegates of the AMA alleging
widespread abuse of amphetamines. An Ad Hoc Committee on Awmphetamines
and Athleties was appointed by the AMA to undertake a survey. A sample of
800 high schools and colleges revenled that less than one percent of the athletes
had abused drugs. The low drug abuse reporied in this survey among athletes
corresponded generally with the relatively dow incidence of abuse in the youth-
ful population at that time. No recent national surveys have been conducted
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on the extent of amphetamine abuse in athleties, but there is reason to believe
that the incidence is higher, again corresponding with the higher use among
stiudents generally. As members of the youth subculture, athletes are encour-
2ged through sometimes subtle social persuasion from their peers to consuwme
drugs. quite distinet from reasons of tuking them for n supposcd advantage in
spons. ‘The athlete could conceivably start abusing amphetamines in high school
and contime in college, His frequency and duration of driug abuse over that
period would be substantial. His habits of abuse coupled with apparent easier
accessibility of the drug and peer aceeptance of drug abuse could develop into
2 behavier pattern difticult to eliminate even after his formal athletic cureer.
The “National Survey of Student Data,” conducted by the National Commission
(n Marihuana and Drug Abuse, indicates that drug abuse among the general
student population has increased. and it is logieal to expect that athletes as
members of that subenlture have also been influenced to abuse drugs more
in recent years. Therefore, our impression is that athletic drug abuse has
increased.

Becanse drugs such as amphetamines are not permitted in athletic events,
coneerted efforts have been made in recent years by the athltic community to
cateal abise, The prestige associated with winning at an international compe-
tition raises the incentive. even more than most athletic contests, to use any
method to try to improve performance. As a result several procedures for con-
trol have been developed and used in international competitions.

A relinble xeientific drug deteetion and jwemitoring program instituted in all
difletic events would be expensive and time eonsnming, For instance. where
urine is wonitored, facilities and staff must be available to colleet sumples
and to tabel, seal, md code them properly. Most laberatories are geared oniy
e determination of fairly large antonnts of drugs, as in poisonings or snicides.
tas cliromatography. electrophoresis. and crystallography can be used for
paaly =ik, bt these must be well controlled.

When testing is to be done, it should be earried ont on all parlicipants, When
only winners arve fested, the hinplieation arises that there is’ sowe relationship
Lietween winning and drug taking. In reality the opposite has been found to
be rrue. Where o drug detection system has been used it has geuersnlly been
weleonied by thie athletes Decituse it assists them in resisting social pressare
to axe drugs, This <honid be a primary consideriation in the implementation
of drng deteetion systems.

There are confliecting reports in the liferature as to the possible minimal
benetits of amphetamines in enhanecing performance, But it is our opinion at
this time that valid scientifie evidenee does not show fmprovement in athleties.
Nome stidiex uetnally show impairment of eertain gkills. Even if it were fonnd
vt such drues enhaneed performanee, there would remain, among others, the
auestion concerniug the propriety of snch use within the spirvit of amatear
athleties,

Moreover, the detrimental etfects of contitmed amphetamine abuse are sub-
stantinl, It ix stated in AMA Drug Evaluations that overdosage may enuse
ke, vomiting., retehing, cardine irvregularities or convalsions, and that
dedayed psychotie reaetions echaraclerized by euphoria, agitation, confusion.
and viswal hallieinations have ocenrred. The Counceil on Mental ITealth of the
AMA has said @ Abaxe of (hese substances arises frem and is perpetiited solely
by peyelhfe needs to overcome depression or fatigne or to attain the euphoric
and exeilatory effeets assoeinted with the drugs” Clearly there is a snbstantinl
health visk involved in amphietamine abuse.

ANDROGENIC-ANABOLIC STIIROIDS

Synthetie anabolie steroids were originally developed to simutate the body-
lmilding aetior~ of natural androgens, Androgen is any substance that possesses
maxenlinizitte L ctions, Testosterone, the male sex hormnone, is the most potent
sndrogen, It i a primary factor in growth and development of male secondary
sexintl characteristies. The development of i1 synthetie steroid that conld refain
the anabolie growth effeets of {estosterone without the associnted sexnal ehanges
would be an important medieal advaneetent, There is no pure anabolie
without the andeogeric effects. Tu proper dosage. these drugs ean henefit some
enrefully seleeted ehildren, boys and girls, with growth disorders, and they
are nsid oin debilitative diseases of hoth men and women. Thnus they have a

O
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valid mediciual value when treating certain deficlency disorders. They have
no role where normal wetalolism exists.

The extent of abuse of anabolic steroids in sports is unknown. While no
: uational surveys huve been conducted to assess it, it is believed by many team
' physicians that their abuse has increased in recent years. Unlike amphetainines,
k there are no analogons data available from a survey of the gencral student
population. Anabolie steroids have sueh a specific purpose that their abuse is
confined much more to the athletic eommunity. In athletics, anabolic steroids
are used largely by weight lifters, shot puntters, discus throwers, javelin throw-
ers, wrestlers and football players in an attempt to increase body size or
strength. The suspected inerease in abuse may aguain reflect the current liberal
position of the yonthfnl ecommnunity to ding abnse practices.

The issue of whether these drugs enhance strength or athletic performance
in athletic competition is purely academic. Their nse by athletes is banned by
all maatear athletic codes and there is no thevapeutic reason to justify their
use by a heaithy athlete. Neverthieless, the use of snabolic steroids presents a
complicated problem. The humam body has many known steroids, and the total
interrelated action of all these and other hormones is not fnlly wderstood.
When a steroid drag is introdueed or given 1o a normal individoal, it can enanse
profonnd metabolie imbalinees. The problemn is further compounded by the fact
that many athletes in their zéal will take five, ten, or fifteen tinies the norvisl
dise recomnended by the nmnufactnrers or the pharmacologists. No one to wmy
kuowledze has dome resesreh with these massive doges, and the human damage
that could rexult is unknown. One stndy was unable to demoustrate any in-
creased strengih, motor performance, vital capacity, and physical work capaeity.
This was a goad, seientifie investigation that used normal dosages of androgen-
ic-anabolic sieroids. There was some weight gain, bt most of this was believed
to be due to fluid refention, which is a common tinding with the use of stevoids
in lmnans, and eanxed by sodinm retention from altered clectrolyte balanee.
Another study also doenmented the inability of anabolic steroids to iucevease
cffective weight or strength among nermatl persons, Where other stuslivs scemed
to show a gin in strengtin and size, they were in general not of the donble
blind type and this fact made it difficnlt to evaluate the “psychological input.”
The placebo cficet nmst be eotrolied as it has recently Dbeen shown that
dramatie improventents in strength were recorded when subjects were told
ey would be given anabelie steroids even though they were not.

There are real dangers to youths using anabolie steroids. The possibilities
of the premature development of male secondary sexnal charneteristies in young
boys  virilization in females, and aceeleritted hone matnration of both sexes
are definite risks, The aceelerated Loite maturation menans premature closnre
of the epiphyses in long bones, In other words, a youth may close his epiphyses
preaaturely and uever beeome the height and size of which he is eapable.

Besides these offects, miabolie steroid use by normal men has been assoviated
with testienlar atrophy. logs of libido, and on rare oecasions, Inerease in size
of the prostate glaul, I a young person has a hormone sensitive tuwor, the
inertsed amommt of stevoid may spur it o t¢ more rapid and dangerous
zrowth., Inftimmation of the liver has been repovied as ii apparently cannot
motabolize all of the extra steroid honnone.

VREVENTION ANDL CONTROL

Tihere ks been it eoncerted eifort by the sports nedicine comnnmity to
poexstove 8 meaningful perspective to the snedical nses of drugs in atlileties.
When the AMA Committee on the Medieal Aspects of Sports first alerted the
athletie community to amphetamine abnse in 1959, it also voiced netive opposi-
rion fo any nse of dirugs by athletes {or the purpose of supposedly enhaneing
athiletic performance. In 1965 the Cominittee agaln strongly advised that the
giving of muibolic steroids to healthy athletes had no wmedieal justifieation.

: recently as June 1972, the Ilouse of Delegntes of the AMA reiterated
an unegquivoeal statement by the Associntion ihat amphetamine and anabolic
steroid drngs have no wmedical purpose in athleties, ’l‘hrnnf_'h_smt this whole
period. the Coamnittee kas ntilized varions coommmmieation media in a continu-
ing offort (o edncete athletes, conches, athletic trainers, and team physicians
converning the lealth hazards involved in the abuse of these drugs. But the
mullipticity of drug abuse patterns among youth dewand diverse edneational
strategies. Drug abuse prevention among athletes requires approaches similar
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to these for any group. Even though drug deteetion procedures are necessary,
drug education related to prevention is more important.

Ruccess in ameliorating the total drug preblem requires the coneerted efforts
of agencies representing all segments of the commmunity—law enforcement,
edneation, religion, industry. husiness, medicine, tilong with parents and most
important, the yonths thewmselves. Many communities have been able to pro-
vide prevention, rchabilitation, and understanding through the synergistic
aetion of everyone in the community, They have found that a shofgun approach
to drug abuse prevention with facts alene about drugs does little to discourage
abuse.

The most promising trends in mounting suecessful programs have ineluded a
reexamination of relationships between people as well as assistance to help -
them learn and use accurate information to humanize edueation. This course
is superior to placing the emphasis on the acquisition of knowledge. Whereas
many of the original programs were oriented towards the drugs, more prom-
ixing programs foens on the individual. The abuse of a drug is nsually only
an external manifestation of a problem. and is an indication of the individual's
value system,

In athleties, a discussion of values must include a reconsideration of the
purpose of sports programs. These e¢onsiderations may lead to modifications
of w system that frequently only reward the winner, and with little regard
for individunl athletes. Such limited programs restrict the health, education
and recreational benefits of athleties. The lack of regard for the individual, in
4ddition to game pressure, may well be factors in encouraging drug abuse
amoeng athletes.

Nince the athlete is like any other youth, as pointed ont, general prevention
is necessary. New ways are needed for health educators to deal with the total
family unit. I’arents exert substantial influence on their children through their
own unconscious behaviors. Providing an orderly growth and development for
yvoung children through aiding families and improving euvironmental influences
lolds the greatest promise of success in cembating drug abuse among youths,
including athletes.

THERAPEUTIC USE OF DRUGS

Therapeutiz use of drugs to relieve pain is a second broad category of drug
wse of interest to this Subcommittee, Pechaps a reminder is in order that the
therapeuntic nse of drugs to treat disease or injury and relieve symptoms should
not be eonfused with use of drugs taken solely for a supposed advantage in
sparts,

The dlass of drugs referred to here reprosents local anestheties (e.g. novo-
caine). annlgesies (o2 aspirin and narcoties), and anti-infiammatory agents
(o, cortisone). The first two Zroups are often referred to in lay terms as
pain killers.”

The local anestheties can he injected directly into a damaged tissue to pro-
dnee almost instant pain relief. The annlgesic drugs can be taken orally or by
injection, to produce a reduced consciousness of pain. An enumeration of all
hese agents would be extremely lengthy and serve no useful purpose. Such
a list wonld contain all the medicazions in these classes which are preseribed
{or the general population,

We should remember that in the medical care of athletes, ns with other
patients, consideration nmst be given to the whole individual. Medical judg-
ments often incelude psyehologieal or social considerations relating to the total
well-being of the individual.

Of course the pimary consideration entering into a physiclan's decision
concerning whether an athlete should play again immediately following medi-
eation to reduce paln is the location and severity of the injury and the extent
of risk of frthier damage. Of foremost concern is the general health and well-
being of the atlilete, and nowhere do we imply that there is an attempt to
gain an afhletic ndvantage through such required medical treatinent.

This raises the issue of participation by athletes handicapped by an illness,
such as asthma. and who can only eompete with the aid of medication. These
athlotes are to be conmmended for overcoming tremendous physieal handicaps
in nchieviug the athletic success they do. Many amateur athletic associations
may have to re-evalunte thelr stvingent rulings in this regard to encourage
such individuals to participate.

Q
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From this discussion, 1 am sure it is apparent that reaching a judgment in
sports medicine is perhaps more complex in some ways than it is in the ordi-
nary practice of medicine. Mr. Chairman, I wili conclude here, and will attempt
te answer any questions you might have.

Senator Bayir. Our next witness is led by Walter Byers, executive
director of the National Collegiate Athletic Association.

I understand Mr. Byers is going to lead a panel of witnesses?

STATEMENT OF ROBERT PRITCHARD, CHAIRMAN, NATIONAL COL-
LEGIATE ATHLETIC ASSOCIATION’S DRUG EDUCATION COMMIT-
TEE, ACCOMPANIED BY PHILIP B. BROWN, LEGAL COUNSEL OF
NCAA; DR. CARL S. BLYTH, CHAIRMAN OF THE PHYSICAL EDUCA-
TION DEPARTMENT AT THE UNIVERSITY OF NORTH CAROLINA
AND ADMINISTRATOR OF THE NCAA COMMITTEE ON COMPETI-
TIVE SAFEGUARDS AND MEDICAL ASPECTS OF SPORTS; ALLEN
HART, HEAD TRAINER AT OHIO0 STATE UNIVERSITY; JAMES
WILKINSON OF THE NCAA ADMINISTRATIVE STAFF AND DIREC-
TOR OF THE NATIONAL SUMMER YOUTHS SPORTS PROGRAM;
AND DR. DONALD L. COOPER, TEAM PHYSICIAN AT OKLAHOMA
STATE UNIVERSITY

Mr. BrowN. Mr. Chairman, Mr. Byers is not liere. The NCAA’s
statement will be presented by Robert W. Pritchard, chairman of
the NCAA Drug Education Committee and we will introduce the
other participants.

Senator Bayd. Fine.

Before you get started, for the education of the chairman as well
us the reporter, could you identify those with you?

Mr. Prrrcuann. Yes, sir. 1 will. To my extreme left is James Wil-
kinson, who is our linison man between our committee and the NCAA
Executive Offices in Shawnee Mission, Kans.

To my left is our legal counsel, Philip B. Brown.

To my right is Carl Blyth, lisad of the Physical Education rt-
ment at the University of North Carolina and ulso chairman of the
Competitive Safeguards and Medical Aspects of Sports Committee.

To my right is also Allen Hart, trainer at Oi.io State. Dr. Cooper,
whom you just heard, will be with us also as par! of our program.

The five points you, Senator, asked us to respond to, will be cov-
ered by separate individuals here. 1 want to state first of all the

licy of the NCAA on nontherapeutic drugs as set out in the fol-
owing resolution adopted by the 1971 NCFA convention :

SrctioN 1, The NCAA condemns the employment of nontherapeutic drugs in
any of its member institutions or affiliated organizations by staff members who
suthorize or allow their student-athletes to use such drugs, and by student-
athletes who do use such drugs.

Sec. 2. Staff members or student-athletes at member institutions who use
drugs in u nontherapeutic manner {n any athletic program are in violation of
the principles of ethical conduct of the NCAA.

Sec. 3. All member institutions, their athletic staffs and thefr student-athletes

should assert aggressively their wholesome influences in combating usages of
nontherapeutic drugs among the Nation’s youth.

Q
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As I said, this was adopted by the NCAA in 1971 at the NCAA
Annual Convention.

The NCAA's efforts against drug abuse are proceeding on these
fronts: (1) Iducation: (2) assessment of the nature and extent of
drug abuse by atlletes; and (3) development of an enforceinent
program.

1. EDUCATION

The NCAA Drug Education Commitiee was formed by the NCAA
Council in August 1970, because of concern over appareudly increas-
ing drug abuse by young people, and it has taken an active role in
the athletic antidrug program.

We are proud of the program we have developed, but we realize
a great amount of work is ahead if we are to conirol drug abuse.

The problem of drug abuse is one of the bigges:t challenges this
Nation is facing. The lives of many young people depend on the
solution. The situation is critical.

Abuse of drugs, always widespread but covert, has become a mat-
ter of public fact in the 1970’s. It is impossible to foresee a time when
it will be eliminated, but we believe that control of drug abuse can
be achieved. In order to accomplish this, however, the institutions
oi society being affected by the problem must accept a responsibility
for its solution.

For this reason, we believe the NCAA Drug Education program is
of critical importance as a practical approach and, furthermore, as
an example for other institutions to follow.

The initial approach taken by the NCAA Drug Education Com-
mittee was an educational poster and media campaign. Since 1970
more than 350,000 posters and many news articles have been printed
and distributed to the following organizations:

The Members of the United States Congress.
‘The more than 700 members of the NCAA.
The entire membership (approximately 500 institutions) of the National Junior

College Athletic Association.

The National Federation of State High School Associations, which is composed
of about 24 or 25,000 high schools in the United States.

The National Association of Baskethall Coaches,

The Boys Clubs of America.

The Califormia Junior College Athletic Assoclation.

The Fiesta Bowl.

The Bureau of Narcoticg and Dangerous Drugs,

The Pop Warner Football League.

The Girl Scouts, Boy Scouts, State and Local Governments.

Health agencies.

I would like to submit for the record and for the subcommittee’s
information copies of the various postors and sainples of news articles
we have published in game programs and newspapers throughout
the United States. These are our exhibits A and B.

The posters are produced thre times yearly. Each issue of 30-
40,000 posters projects the sports activities for one of the three
sports seasons during the school year, one for fall, one for winter
and one for spring. These posters have become a familiar sight in
high schools and on college campuses throughout the country.

We have written and published a pamphlet entitled “The Coach:
Drugs, Ergogenic Aids and the Athlete”. This is our exhibit C.
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Through the cooperation of the Bureau of Narcotics and Danger-
ous Drugs, we printed 250,000 copies of the pamphlet with a goal of
trving to get them into the hands of every coach of amateur teams
in this country. The distribution was as follows:

Distribution: We sent 165,000 to High Scliools, 10,000 to National
Junior College Athletic Associations, 15,000 to 4- Year Colleges, 5,000
to Fiesta Bowl, 3,000 were sold, and 25,000 distributed to superinten-
dents of sclicols in 75 schoel distriets in the United States where
drugs seemed 0 be a problem.

Senator Bayi. What information is included in tkis distribution ?
You talk about posters. I have here & copy of a pamphlet. You send
ot packets of all of this information? And when you mentioned
the numbers, what were you referring to?

Mr. Priteitarn. For example, we sent those to high schools in the
State of Pennsylvania, and we send them to the educational depart-
ment. There are enough copies that they could distribute them to the
various schools in ihe State of Peunsylvania. This was repeated in
all States. '

Senator Bayn. That is what I wanted to get to though. When you
|av copies, copies of what?

Mr. Prrrcnaro. Al right, the copies of the posters you see here
on my left are posted in hallways, lockers and in guidance and coun-
seling rooms and so on.

The 11) phlets that I am referring to were sent to the couches
primarily, .
In the pamphlet is informsation for a coach on how to ize

someone who had a drug problem. Perhaps they can find the problem
out and we offer them some solutions as to how to handle it. These
were sent to many coaches and to many individuals.

We were quite limited in our 250,000 copies though——

Senator Bayu. That is* what I am saying. When you talk about
250,000 copies, are you talking about 250,000 copies of that pamphlet
there or 250,000 copies of those posters there? [indicating] {:am

Mr. Prirciiann. There are 250,000 copies of that particular pamph-
let and 350,000 copies of the various posters.

Senator Bayx. Thank you.

Now while T am on this, has the NCAA talked with or worked
with or established any kind of working relationships with the vari-
ous State athletic associations, the boards of education and similar
organizations to make education in the area of drug abuse and misuse
more meaningful than a poster on a wall or a pampllet on the desk of
a coach? In other words, both of those are salutory efforts but it does
seem to me actually making the athletes themselves aware of scme of
nuances contained in this pamphlet is what we are after first. This
pamphlet helps the coach observe and perhaps be able to discover
some of his charges who mafr have fallen prey to drugs, but what have
you done for the actual athletes?

Mr. Prircaarp. We worked primarily with Mr. Cliff Fagan, who
is head of the National Federation of State High School Associations
and he took care of the distribution.

We felt we had to start first with oir membership. You will find
as you go through this material that many members of our commit-
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tee and others have spoken at large congregations of students and
canaches, clinics and so forth. which we hope will make coaches more
aware of the problen. so they will read up on it and study it and be
more helpful 1n solving this problem. )

We are quite liimtred though, sir. We have a committee of people
who donate their time. We do not have a full time man anywhere
in our organization. With more assistance, with more finances, W.lth
ome full time people we probably could move more in the direction
of what you ask.

Senator Bayir. Thank you. I appreciate that.

Mr. Prircuarp. Furthermore, 2.000 copies of this were sent to
the Burean of Narcotics and Dangerous Drugs and 1,000 to Members
of Congress, 2,000 to California junior colleges, 3,000 to football
coaches, 3,000 to basketball coaches, 1,000 to college. commissioners,
10,000 were donated to organizations—snch as:egl\ICA’s, PTA’s,
NSYSP, State and local governments, Boy Scouts, Girl Scouts, U.S.
military and many others and 4.000 to Volunteer Service Bureau,
Kiwanis, Human Resources Organization, boys clubs, American Med-
ical Association and other other groups. Also, 1,000 misceilaneous.
So that tetaled 250,000.

The demand for this was so great that we then had printed a
second printing of 50.000 copies sent out. This is our exhibit D.

As an example of the reaction generated by the pamphlets, I
would like to present a coluimnn by the National Interscholastic Swim-
ming Coaches Association of America. This is our exhibit E.

Once again, through the cooperation of the Burcan of Narcotics
and Dangerous Drugs, we printed und distributed more than 40,000
copies of a drugs identification chart for display in locker rooms
and training rooms. The chart was widely distributed among 4- and
2-year colleges and high schools. This is our exhibit I,

In 1972 we expanded our posters, news article, and pamphlet cam-
pa:ign by publishing and distributing more than 1 million copies of
a h!glg élyer entitled “Get High on Sports, Not Drugs.” This is
exhibit G.

This publication, containing a featiwe article prepared by Dr.
Hardin Jones of the University of California, Berkeley, and 2 'mem-
ber of our committee, who was unable to be here today because he is
in Alaska on similar business. was designed to provide information
on the 1proble.ms of drug abuse for the parents of young athletes.

I will not go through the details of the distribution. It is contained
in this statement. There was a total distribution of 1,080,000 copies.

Financial support for this pamnphlet was provided from the Fiesta
Football Bow! at Phoenix, Ariz.; National Federation of State High
School Associations; and the Burean of Narcotics and Dangerous
Drugs. Incidentally, I want to compliment the Fiesta Football Bowl
Committee of Phoenix, Ariz., which this year completed a pledge
of $30,000 to the NCAA Drug Education' Committee. This is our
exhibit H.

In addition to the printed materials we provide, we have produced
spot_television promotions which have appeared regularly during
the NCAA college football telecasts. These spots have featured out-

ERIC

IToxt Provided by ERI



27

standing college athlotes such as Avizona State’s quarterback, Danny
White and Florida State’s quarterback, Gary Huff as well as out-
standing collegiate coaches such as Penn State’s Joe Paterno. )

A “rap session” among a group of young people at St. John’s Uni-
versity in New York was also a part of the serics. It was held during
the youth summner program, which the NCAA supports. We have
photograplis of this taken from the film clips and I think Mr. Wil-
kinson has thein here. ‘

Jim, would you liks to hold thetn up briefly please?

This is a rap session done on drugs two summers ago.

Our committee members have also spoken to groups of coaches
and trainers about drug education as well as to medical symposiums,
civic groups, and convocations on college campuses. Dr. Cooper
has been especially active in this program. )

T would be remiss not to point out the NCAA’s participation in
conducting tonrs to the Far East and Europe where many outstand-
ing college athletes and coaches used their summer and Christmas
vacations to talk with our servicemen. One of the most discussed
topics was drug education. The NCAA currently is conducting tours
number 8 and 9 with the Department of Defense and two tours
are bein geosponsored with the U.S. Pacific Air Force this summer.

T have spoken first about the educational part of our program:
t.hebsiooond phase of the programn has been the assessment of the
problem.

The NCAA is presently in the midst of a project designed to de-
velop hard information on the questions whether there is a drug
problem a:nong college athletes and what the nature and extent of
the problem are if, in fact. one exists. From mneng member institu-
tions which volunteeved to cooperate, the NCAA selected 143 repre-
sentative colleges to which “blind” questionnaires entitled “NCAA
Drug Use Questionuaire” have been sent. This questionnaire, copies
of which we are submitting to this subcommittee—exhibit I—ia to
be filled out anonymously by student-athietes at the selected insti-
tutions.

In all, 22,600 individual questionnaires have been sent, to institu-
tions which include both large and small colleges, both public and
private institutions and colleges located in each of the States. The
completed replies are being sent to a computer service center in
Memphis, Tenn., for compilation of the data.

This survey is designed to obtain information indicating the types
of drugs used by college athletes, and the extent and degree of usage
in college athletics. We fecl that we are developing the mnost meaning-
ful information ever obfained in this area, and that it should be
invaluable in assessing the need for and design of future NCAA pro-

grams. We will provide this subcommittee copies of the results of
the survey once they have been compiled.

The third phase of our pregram has been the development of
testing and enforcement programs.

At the 1973 NCAA Convention, the member institutions amended
the association’s bylaws to establish legislation in addition to their
previously adopted policy declaration. It is our exhibit J. Bylaw 4,
section 2, reads as follows:
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Student-athletes competing in NCAA championships shall not use any un-
anthorized drugs which may endanger their health or safety or which may
s~semingly give an unfair competitive advantage to an individual competitor.
Tiis does not preclwde the use of drugs prescribed by a physician in the
course of medical trettment. (Adopted: 1/13/73)

(a) The Council shall. from time to time after enlisting expert advice and
study, enumerate the drugs which may rot be used. (Adopted: 1/13/73)

(b) The Executive Committee may authnrize urinalysis or other methods
for testing student-athletes who compete in NCAA championships to determine
the extent of drug usage therein. (Adopted: 1/13/73)

We are presently in the process of determining wlish substances
the NCAA council wil lofficially designate as drugs which “may not
be nused”. We also intend to institute a program of urinalysis of ath-
letes competing in NCAA championships. Testing will start in the
fall of this year. In this first effort, we do not intend any punitive
meuasures fo: any individual or college. We plan only te gather facts
which we hope will provide us with future direction.

In conclnsion, the NCAA, in genaral, and the NCAA Drug Educa-
tion Committee, in particnlar, stand ready to cooperate with any
valid and responsible effort to deal with this issue.

With your permission, I would like to ask the members of this
panel to speak directly to the other specific areas outlined by Chair-
man Bayh in his invitation to testify.

T have attempted to cover the other points, Mr. Chairman, that
vou requested be reviewed. If the other members of our panel would
like to offer addiiiwial comments, I invite them to do so.

Mr. Chairman, I would like to submit this statement for the
record.

Senator Bayir. Fine. It will be inserted at the conclusion of your
testimony.

Mr. Pritcaarp. Mr. Chairman, in response to your first question
of your original letter to us, I wouid like to ask Dr. Cooper after
he returns if he will focus on the ethical considerations involved in
the use of nonrestorative drugs including stimulants, such as amphet- -
amines, and anabolic steroni]gs, and I think 8 to 5 minutes would
probably cover a subject of this type.

Senator Bayn. Let me first suy, Mr. Pritohard, I appreciate your
statement representing the NCAA and the overall policy. I appre-
ciate the contribution the other gentlemen can and will make.

We have a problem of time here, though. If you could hit the
highlights, we w’ll put the whole staiement in the record. So if you
ovuld confine your remarks to specific questions and concerns, I
weuld appreciate it 1'ery much.

Dr. Coopex. 1 want to mention in terms of the ethical situation,
again, it is one where the physicians, I think as a group, the team

hysicians, and the trainers as the group of certified trainers. the

Vational Athletic Trainers A=xnciation, have all become much more
aware of the encroachment of thiis problem in our areas of endeavor
and have all become much more concerned with the fact that there
be no question of our position on these situations.

. And the basic position of the teain physicians, as far as the organ-
1zed groups, whether it is throngh the American College Health
Association, the Athletic Medicine Section or the group that is
associated with the NCAA in their winter meeting, they have all
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taken the position that there is no legitimate indications for any
of these substances at any time in an athletic contest, except for
possibly the exceptional individual who has a medical condition and
1s taking a medication for treatment for the medical condition.

The problem in teams of testing for the amphetamines, is one that
can be resolved. The problem for testing for anabolic steroids is one
that has not been resolved. The individual could conceivably take
these things not under the prescription or prescribed use, to my
lmowled%e, of any ethical physician or athical trainex at this time.

I think thers are many uninformed physicians and I think we
have a tremendous tesk in terms of educating our own people to the
potential dangers involved. I think this is one of the things that
makes it extremely difficilt to reach the people that are in a posi-
tion that would be prescribing the substances relatively unknowingl
and unaware of the possible complications assoomzte({ with them.
think many times fanily physicians are busy, overworked, and put
into a situation wlere the boy concerned makes an appealing story
or brings some magezine or some article from somegylace in and says
this was used and so the doctor says, all right, let’s try it without
really exploring the ramifications of it.

I think we have a very important job to do in terms of educating
our own people.

Senator Bavi. I think you are in a particularly important and
res ible position; wearing two hats as a member of a profession
which is charged with the health and welfare of «sar people on the
one hand, and on the other hand, having your syuxcific relationship
with one of our outstanding universities and their athletic accom-
plishments.

Let me just ask one guestion in this regard. In referring as you
did, Mr. Pritchard—and 1 don’t know whether to direct this to you
or Dr. Cooper or any other member of the panel—to urine testin
of amateur athletes or at least of students who compete in NCAE
championships, whatever meil:od you devise or pursue, are they
going to be applied across the board to all of those who compete or
just to the winners as Dr. Cooper pointed out in the world weight
lifting championship ?

Mr. Prironarp. It would be out intention to test everyome in a
uniform manner.

Dr. Coorrr. All of the participants, yes.

Mr. Priacaarn. And not just the winners.

Senator Bayi. How are you going to determine where you tes.
and where you don’t test ? ,

Mr. Pryrcuarp. It is a matter of logistics and whether we have
the money and have the people available. For instance, it would be
almost impossible to test at a cross-country championship where
there were 600 or 700 people running.

We hope that they will do it in such sports as soccer, with a lim-
ited number of participants, limited by rule; in football where there
are also Jimits; basketball where there are traveling limits; swim-
ming where by nature there are not too many athletes involved. Our
intention will be, if we can handle the logistics, to test all partici-
pants; both winners and losers.

Q
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Our inteation is to test originally without any punitive measures
in mind whatsoever, because we are looking for facts; we are look-
ing for research ; and we want to know what the situation is. Nobody
knows right now.

Senator Bayn. Yes; well I certainly will be very anxious to have
the results of the studies that you are wndertaking. It is sort of a
sad comment, isn’t it, that organizations such as yours, representin,
the finest in American amateur athietics, are contemplating or force
to contemplate lining up the participants before or after an event.
Perhaps the results of this ether positive effort to educate will make
the need for this testing after the fact less necessary.

If there was just some way we could find the few nnscrupulous
individuals and thus avoid treating everybody in this manner. But I
don’t suppose there is any magic way to do that?

Mr. Prircnarp. I assume if an athlete kmew he would be tested,
it would be a deterrent to use of drugs to begin with.

Secondly, we are convinced the youth of America today looks up
to athletes more than any other people. We all know that athletes
are on television selling underwear, cigarettes, cokes, everything else.
All they have to do is have an athlete step out with something and
all of the kids run down to the corner and buy it. If we can get our
athletes, who are highly revered by young people, to give a hard sell
on the dangers of drugs, we think we can be most effective and
maybe beat this problem which is the worst social problem facing us
today.

!Se)r,mtor Bavi. Well, I have noticed and am sure you have, the
number of professional athletes who have lent their names and per-
sons, as well as amateur athletes, to what I feel are very effective
short spots on televicion dealing with this very thing. In fact, there
is a_problem here. I can’t help but feel those who have lent their
good names to this kind of thing are probably making a greater
service to the future athletes in our country than those who want to
sell underwear; not that there would be anything wrong with selling
underwear too, you understand.

Mr. Prircrarn. I wouldn’t disagree with you, sir, but I think any
boy on the street can visualize himself as becoming a collegiate ath-
lete because his brother may be one or his neighbor may be one or
the boy across the street may be one. but he may find it difficult to
associate himself with a professional athlete.

I think using a college athlete may have a hetter effect than a pro.
T don’t want to get into an area like this because that is an area
remote from us. :

There are problems involved and I would rather not speak too
much about the professional athlete in this.

Senator Bayr. Well, I don’t want to participate in any balancing
of the merits of who can do more, because I think there is room for
both. T must say, if you see the best athlete, a person recognized as
the best pro in thz country, telling future star amateurs that he is
getting a worse knock by using drugs than he gets on the field, that
that has an impect on amateur athletes, who watch.

Mr. Prrrcuarp. I agree with you.

The second member—if you want us to continue on our five
points ?
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Senator Bayu. Yes. please.

Mr. Prircuarp. Is Mr. Hart, athletic trainer at Ohio State, who
will discuss the assessinent of the extent of the use of additive and
nonrestorsitive drugs by athletes.

Mr. Harr. Thank you, Mr. Chairman. My statement actually is
very brief. You changed the question on me, frankly, from the first
letter that I got, which said “an assessment of the extent of use of
additives and resorative drugs by atliletes” from the one we have
today of “the extent of use of additive drugs by athletes.”

I really only have cne brief statement to make. I, like Dr. Cooper
here, know of no tramer, and of no team physician, who is preserib-
ing what we must consider illegal medications in athletics. I would
just as soon submit this as a general statement.

We certainly do not at my institution do that and really I do net
know of any physicians or trainers who are dispensing any medica-
tion that they shouldn’t so to speak.

Scenator Bayir. Let me ask you as a trainer who must implement
the NCAA rules and regulations as well as the regulations of your
institution at Ohio State—and I might as & Purdue alummni, add I
have heard of it.

Mr. Hakr. Thank you, sir.

, S%nmbor Bayn. How does a trainer assess where you draw the
ine? -

I heard Mr. Pritchard saying they are now undertaking a study
to determine what drugs will cfficially be designated as drugs which
may not be used. But how do you interpret the regulations—and I
think to prove I have the NCAA position I will quote:

Student athletes competing in NCAA championships shall not use any un-
authorized drugs which mar endanger their health or safety or which may
seemingly give an unfair competitive advantage to an individual competitor,

How do you as a trainer, define what are nontherapeutic drugs
and under what circumstances?

Mr. Har~. Well, as a trainer, I really do not get involved in drugs.
This is up to the team physician to determine what he will presert
and not preseribe, and I as a trainer. do not dispense any medication.

I should qualify that by saying if my team physician asks me to
give at least 10 aspirin tablets to player number X, I will do that
acting simply as a pharmacist in this event, but I can, as a trainer,
and do not dispense medication. :

Senator Bayn. You don’t dispense medication at all?

Mr. Hart. Only tbat anthorized by the team physician, which is
very very little.

Senator Bayir. No other trainers do to your knowledge?

Mr. Hart. To my knowledge, they do so only in the same situa-
tion; where the team physician asks us to give someone a particular
medication, we would do this and this is recorded duly on the ath-
lete’s chart.

Senator Bavm. Just for niy own information, when you men-
tioned a moment ago you were not aware of any other trainers or
any other physicians who were utilizing or dispensing these drugs,
did vou also say physician or did yon just say trainers?

Mr. Harr. I said trainers and physicians. I am talking about a
numll?gr of physicians and trainers. I feel very strongly in this
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Senator Bavit. Since you vourself by definition are not charged
with dispensing this kind of medication, how can you be so certain
that it 1s not being dispensed by physicians who do have that
responsibility ? .

Mr. Harr. Well, T am sure—well, let’s define the medications we
are talking about ? ..

Senator Bayu. Somebody has to niake this decision ¢

Mr. Harr. Right. Are we talking about amphetamines or anabolic
s{le'roigls, or are we lalking about cold preparations and this type of
thing ?

Senator Bayn. We are talking about the use of any substance, any
drug, that may be unauthorized and that may have a seemingly salu-
tory effect on competition. We are talking about where you draw
the line botween making it possible for an athlete to play because of
a relatively minor injury that causes significant pain and where you
get across the threshold where competing under those circumstances
may have long-term disadvantageous effects on the individual.

T can’t make that assessment sitting back here.

Mr. Haxr. Right. Certainly I cannot speak for other institutions
other than what T have observed at various competitions and from
what T have heard in talking with trainers and talking with pht{i-
cians. And I think we all feel pretty much the same way on thi
Let me give you an example of my own institution and how we
handle medications.

We have medications locked in a cabinet and when the doctor
wants to presoribe any medication, he will ask me to dispense the
medication. The unit is recorded on a chart. I keep track or keep a
log of what medications are dispensed and am responsible for the
purchasing or the requisition, I should say, from a pharmacist of
the medicutions to restore the stock. .

So I know exactly what our physician is doing with this stock.
Also if he happens to write a prescription, we have a copy of that
on the chart.

I think this is done very similarly in other institutions. We do not
stock in Ohio State any narcotic stimulative type medications. If, for
instance, the doctor wants something for pain, if he wants a little
codeine to use for pain, he will write a prescripbiorn and that will
be filled at the health service pharmacy. We don’t stock anything of
a narcotic nature in our particular sitwation.

Senator Bayn. Well, will that doctor have that pain killer in his
bag in the event he needs it at halftime or does he have to run to
the pharmacy to get it ?

Mr. Hart. No; he will have in his own personal medical bag that.

Senator Bavir. Mr. Hart, this is significant. What impact does the
conchh have on this decision which according to you is a decision
made b{{t.he physician ?

Mr. Harr. I think that has to be handled individually. Again, at
ow institution the coach really has no influence on the physician.

_Senator BayH. You mean he never stresses the importance of a
given athlete and a given game in trying to find out just what is
necessary to make it ible for that athlete to compete safely?

Mr. HarT. Absolutely, Woody Hays has the health of the athlete
paramount in mind.
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Senator Bavir. You didn’t listen to my question, Mr. Hart. You
were too quick to druw to Mr. Hays criticism that I wasn’t directing
at him.,

Mr. Hart. Please restat: the question. .

Senator Bayx. You know, I must be totally frank about this, it
is hard for me to believe that Woody Hays or Coach “X” or Coach
“Y™ is not going to be pretty mucg involved in stressing the im-
portance of a given athlete in a given game and anxious to find out
whether that athlete “A” or “B” is going to be able to participate
and can he do it safely. I have never been involved in this kind of
situation, but it seems to e as a trainer who has the responsibility
of treating these athletes you are in a better position to testify than
I on this——

Mr. Hart. Absolurely. After every practice, after every ballgame,
the team physician, the coach, and the trainer—whether it is a bas-
ketball coach or football coach—get together and discuss personnel
and what is the situation or status of rhis partioular athlete, what
is being done for him from a physical therapy standpoint, from a
mcdica% standpoint, and so on and what the coach can expect from
this athlete the following day.

So that coach. the doctor and the tminer are a feam so to speak
and all know what the other is thinking. This is how we handle
it at our institution and I think again it is handled similarly at most
other institutions.

Senator Bayst. Is this decision s exact science or are there margi-
nal cases where u decision might be made if n ¢

Mr. Hart. There are marginal cases 1n anything. The decision in
a case Jike that would be made by the physician.

Senator Bayx. What input does the athlete have?

Mr. Harr. The athiete gets involved certainly also. I would state
another example, there may be a situation where the physician, the
trainer, and the coach may feel that the athlate is able to participate,
looking at it from a purely clinieal standpoint, for example, let's
say this individual has a sore knee and medically it may be all right
for this individual to icipate, but w2 have to leave this up to the
boy. We do discuss this with the buy. We say, look, son, we find
no reason that you should not be permitted to participate, however, it
is your knee and you know how 1t feels. If you feel you can’t go in,
you don’t go.

This is the athlete’s decision.

Senator Bayu. Do you go one step further by saying you would
see no damage that could be incurred from playing? Ma.ybe it. hurts
like the blazes, but do you say we can take care of the pain and there
will be no ?

Mr. Haer. This again is up to the physician and, yes; that will
happen occasionally. If the doctor feols that it is safe for the boy
to participate and probably safe for him to have some sort of pain
preparation to maks him more comfortable, this can and maybe will
sometimes be done. .

Again, this is a medical decision.

Senator Bayu. Now here agnin, the NCAA is trying to find out
facts. and we are trying to find out facts. Probably both of us are
sort of groping around here for direction and not wanting to make
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accusations that ave ill-founded but 1eally wanting to know what we
can do te help the athlete, the institution, and sports in general.

You say you know of no tminer, no physician, no school that was
engaged in dispensing these drugs?

Mr. Hart. Correct. .

Senator Bavi. That is gocd to know and it doesn’t come as a
surprise to me. Do you know of specific examples or have you per-
sonally in your own ¢xperience found examples of athletes who were
using drugs—not as part of vour institution or a team inspired pro-
gram—but as individuals who thought that, either accurately or mis-
takenly they oould take advantage of some kind of drug to enhance
their perfermance ¢

Mr. HarT. Right. I am not naive enough to think that our athletes
or any one athlete cannot get these drugs on the street corners just
like any other individual can.

If we are aware of it though—and it is relatively very difficult
to know whether an individual is taking something—but if we are
aware of it. action would be taken.

Senator Baym. Ar: there specific examples where you have become
aware of it ?

Mr. HarT. Noj; there are not in my own experience. I have heard
of situations, but I couldn’t cite anything specig:amly.

Senator Bayir. Well, now, all right. I am trying to determine which
hat you sre waaring; either that of the NCAA or of Ohio State?

M{:. Harr. Well, both really.

Senator Bavwu. Are there any specific examples that have been
brought to your attention? I just want to find ont what is done,
what policy is followed when this kind of thing is uncovered ?

Mr. Harm. Let me say what is the policy at Ohio State. I think
this is an institutional thing though. But if we are aware of someone
taking some of these medications they are immediately relieved from
participation in a particular sport, ‘This is an institutional rule. This
1s how we at Ohio State handle it. Other schools may do it entirely
differently.

Senator Bayn. Do you have specific examples of an athlete that is
prohibited from competing because of it ?

Mr. HarT. Yes.

Senator Bayx. How many examples?

Mr. HarT. One, since T have been in the business, just one.

Senator Bayn. What particular sport ?

Mr. HarT. Football,

Senator Bayn. You just prohibited the athlete from competing?

Mr. Haer. Absolutely.

Senator BayH. Thank you.

Mr. HarT. Thank you, sir.

Mr. Prircuarn. T would now like to ask Dr. Carl Blyth for some
suggestions and recommendations to facilitate the proper use of drugs
in athletic competitions. This is in response to one of your points.

Dr. BryTth. The previous testimony and questioning and answers
have really covered for me at least some of the things that I have
learned and believe ubout this business of athletic participation and
the use of drugs. Senator, you, yourself, have taken the thunder from
one of my points as has Dr. Cooper.

Q
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I don’t think that the literature substantiates one bit that the
amphetamines would improve physical performance. I am convinced
of that. The problem of misinformation in this area is related to the
to the studies that were done by Smith and Beecher in 1959, in
which they stated that there was some indication of improvement.
I would like to state the critiques that were done found many faults
with that research, and I don’t think it was very gcod.

I further believe-—and this may be in relation te what the Senator
was alluding to when he talked ahout his relationship to athletics
and physic:ﬁ education—I would like primarily to take a positive
approach to reducing the drug menace and I believe that that can
be accomplished by support o programs of athletics, both in the
public schools, the colleges and the communities of this country.

I think most of you recognize the limitations on funding; some
of these things have been cut back. I am convinced

Senator Bari. Would you give me examples of programs that have
been eut back in this area ?

Dr. BuyTh. Philadelphia was cut back.

Sena@.tor Baru. These are federal programs or city or state pro-
mrams ¢
y Dr. Bryri. T am not talking about federal programs. I am talking
about the total program. I am talking about governmental agencies
and private sources.

Senator Bayir. What kinds of cutback ¢

Dr. Buyra. In programs for youngsters.

Senator Bayir. Were these athletic programs?

Dr. Buyti. Athletic programs and physical education.

Senator Bayn. Were these drug treatment or drug oriented edu-
cation type programs?

Dr. Buymi. My argnment, Senator. is if we have youngsters partic-
ipating in athletic programs and encourage them to participate in this
tvpe of pregram, we won’t have the problem with drugs we are find-
ing. Specifically you are trying to get me to drive at what would I
su%gest to prevent them from using drugs at athletic events.

think the State and local inedical socicties have to take a firmer
view against the unauthorized use of drugs. I think that they have
to have some guts about it and stop it where they find it. I will give
vou one example——

Senator Baym. Why should that take guts?

Dr. Buyrn. Courage then.

Senator Bayu. Why should that take anything more than a normal
amount of determination to stop this kind of thing?

Dr. BuyTu. Too frequently we turn our back to it I guess.

Senator Baym. Because by gosh, if there is any area in which there
is & groundswell of public opinion it is with regard to stopping drug
traffic, drug abuse, drug misuse. If there is anyplace we ought to be
able to command enough energy to get. the job done, it o#ht to be
in the arce of athletics. which is supposed to—and T think basieally
does—epitomize the finest in competition and good health and living
practices.

. Do we have a problem there of some people who are timid in enfore-
mg the prohibition of drug abuse in this area ?
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Dr. BuyTa. Well, the implication in these kinds of hearings is that
there is a problem. [ am not convinced that the problem is as serious
as we have been led to believe in the newspapers. I am tive from
my own relationship with the public schools of North Carolina that
we do not have a pmblem. When I speak about medical societies tak-
ing some action it is because down there this has happened and cer-
tamn people have been fired; people who have used unauthorized
drugs. That is what I mean. . .

If you let these people know that we are not going to have this -
kind of thing, then I think they are going to stop. .

Senator Bays. I concur with you. I -sslute you and the others in
the North Carolina system for coming forward with what seems to
me (0 be a rather resolute determination that your organization is
not going to tolerate this.

The reason I wanted to pursue that, Doctor is that I don’t think
we need to make any apologics for establishing a standard in amateur
athletics that will not permit the use of substances that are dilatory
to the well-being of the athletes who participate in these programs,
I see no reason myself that we shouldn’t apply this across the board
to amateur and professional athletics. :

Dr. Bryta. That is right.

Senator Bayn. Well, I don’t think we can afford to be timid in
this and from your testimony you don’t either.

Dr. Buytn. No, I don’t think so. I think we should go after it.

Of course, one other point, I think that the only person that
should be permitted to dispense a drug to an athlete is a physician.
1 disagree with even the trainer giving the drug. Some of the physi-
cians and trainers won’t agrec with that, but even on prescription
T would not have a trainer give a drug.

So in summary, 1 woulf1 say that we need increased support and
promotion in the athletic programs to get kids interested in partic-
ipating and to get them away from the drug scene. I think we need
improved drug education programs in our schools and our institu-
tions. I think physicians should have the primary authority and that
where he has given up his authority, I think he is wrong. I think we
need greater participation by both State and local medical societies in
combating the effects of the use of drugs in our athletic programs in
our public schools.

Thank you.

Senator Bayu. Thank you, Doctor. I think we have two problems,
two areas of concern. One, the establishment of ethical and profes-
sional standards of cor.duct, which is I would think the most iinport-
ant thing we should direct ourselves to. And you and I the
others should make no bones about the fact that we feel that partici-
pation in this type of conduct and utilization of these types of sub-
stances for nonthevapeutic purposes, is wrong: just plain wrong. I
think we should take whatever steps are necessary to see that those
who violate that standard are treated accordingly.

And secondly, I think we can support this finding and perhaps
assist in controlling the abuse by those who might be tempted to go
beyond what is proper. We should do this by educating these who
wonld otherwise be tempted ; educating them that this really doesn’t

make them gain anything whether they use amphetamines or steroids
and may be%rmfu%{‘.l d P :
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I noticed her> in the Physicians’ Desk Reference a warning saying
that steroids do not cnhance athletic ability. The more we can direct
attention to the fact that ther: is nothing to be gained and a great
deal to be lost by an individuai athlete—be he amateur or professional,
embarking on a toot of his own fecling that drugs will enhance his
prowessness and performance—I think we would be better able tn
control this situation. .
Mr. PrircHarp. I have one other panelist if vou have time. I would
like to have Jim Wilkinson speak briefly on the drug education pro-
gram in the National Summer Youth Sports Fellowships program.
Mr. WiLkiNsoN. As & staff member for the NCAA, I work as the
controller. I am also assigned to thz drug education committee and I
am also national program director for the National Summer Youth
Sports program. L : o
For a few minutes I would like to show what this program is doing
to combat the drug problem among our young people.
The National Summer Youth Sports program is a program de-
signed for the disadvantaged youths of our country. The cost of
operating this program for 40,000 enrollees is approximately $5.800,-
000 yearly. Of this total, the Federal Government allocates $3 million
annually while institutions of higher edncation, the USDA, the State
and local governments, private organizations and businesses and the
NCAA not counting its television coverage of the program, con-
tributes $2.800,000. The NCAA spends $50 to $r0,000 annually on this
program. It has TV coverage of this program. My own services to
this program are free.
The participants in the program meet on our college campuses
for daily instruction and competition in various sports. In addition
to this, each enrollee receives a free medical exam, insurance pro-
granm, a meal, transportation, and an enrichment program. We have
an insurance program that protects him from the time he leaves home
until he gets back and a hot meal in most institutions. Transportation,
and this enrichment program.
For a minute or two I would like to talk about this unique enrich-
ment program.
Each project devotes a minimum of 3 hours per week to drug abuse
education; to instruction concerning job responsibilities and educa-
tion and career opportunities; and to aclivities designed to promote
sound health and nutrition practices.
In the drug phasc of the p m, each enrollee is given drug
educationa] materials, lectures a;n% many other experiences designed
to combat drug abuse.
The continuation »f this program in future years wil! do much
to help educate the youth of our country on drug abuse.
Since the inception of this program in 1969 we have reached over
140.000 participants, ages 10 to 18 with that drug program. So this
summer we anticipate another 34,000 or 35,000 youngsters in 105
institutions will receive more drug education.
At the present vime there are 148 more institutions waiting to par-
ticipate in these pregrams. We have been informed that this may be
the last year for this program unlss we can get new legislation. This
is 2 quality program that needs to be expanded and not ended. The
National Summer Youths Sports program continued and supported
would have great impact upon the attitude and accomplishments of
Q
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our youth, and help them join the mainstream of society without a
monkey on their back.

Thank vou.

Senator Bayn. Thank yon, Mr. Wilkinson.

Let me ask you abeut that program. You talk about drug educa-
tion. Now are vou educating the yvoung athletes and participants in
the dangers of all kinds of drugs or is this an antiheroin type
program?

Mr. Wirxixson. All types of drugs. We leave the information or
instruction of this to each project administrator on each campus. In
a lot of situations we have brought people in who have been on dru
before to come in and talk with the kids and also people from the
Bureau of Narcotics and Dargerous Drugs who come in to talk with
the kids. We put educational material together and use it in the
schools. Anything that wounld inake them aware of the problems that
exist in our country would be nused.

Senator Bavm. Tn other words, they are told that it is not only
a problem with the heroin monkey, but the little red or vellow jacket
or the Christmas tree or whatever it might be that they could pick
up on the streetoorner; that they are equelly as dangerous?

Mr. WiLkixsoxN. That is right.

Senator Bavyn. What Federal funds are used to support these
pro

Mr. WiLkinsox. For the last 4 years the financing program came
from the OEO program. At the present time this program is out of
existence.

Senator Bav1. Let’s be more specific. Some of us in Congress feel
that when a Federal court says it is still in existence, then it is still
in existence even if ihe President would wish it away.

You are saying funding from OEO has made it possible for you
to reach all of these voung underprivileged youngsters to participate
in this kind of proiz\mm and you feel that it has been helpful and
would be helpful in keeping them out of the drug scene?

Mr. WiLkixsoN. Yes; I do.

Senator Baru. And if we ar» unable to continue the OEO program,
you feel you will have to cancel all of those programs?

Mr. Wirxixsox. 1 would say so or most of them because right
now _the colleges are doing what they can withont any money to
continue this program during the fall months. This program, this
§3 million that we get directly from the Government, well, we can
only operate in the summertime.

There are institutions right today that are involved in this pro-
gram who do things on their own over the $3 million. They take
It upon themselves to begin in September and work with these kids
all during the year on 2 minimum type budget.

Senator Bayu. And how many ycungsters do you think you will
reach during this pregram this vear?

Mr. Wixivsox. We anticipate 33,000 or 34,000 youngsters that
will be reached. Our daily average attendance in this program last
year was about 33.000 voungsters. We projected enrollment last year
—well, as a matter ¢f fact, we examined 40,000 youngsters last year
n the program.
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Senator Bavi. Doesn’t it strike you as a little bit inconsistent to
make policy pronouncements about the evils of drug traffic and the
disastrous effects on young lives if they are subjected to a lifetime
of the drug habit on the one hand, and ¢:1 the other, to be in favor
of cutting out those programs that make it »ossible for you and
others like you around the country to reach 3%.000 and have a posi-
tive effect in keeping these young people out of the drug scene? Isn’t
that a little inocnsistent ?

Mr. Wigixson. I don't think so.

Senator Bavu. Let me rephrase the question before you go on
record as svying that. Because the question was rather extended.

Do you feel it makes sense en the one hand to say that it is bad
for the country to abuse drugs and that we have to do something
about stopping the traffic in ﬁrugs and the increase in drug addic-
tion, to take that position on the one hand, and then to be in favor
of cutting out funds that malke it possible for you to reach young
peoPle and convince them not to participate in drugs?

Mr. WiLkinsox. No.

Senator Bayn. Thank you. Those were your comments and not
influenced »y my rephrasing the question ?

Mr. WiLkiNsoN. Right.

Senator Bayu. All right. Sometimes T get involved in questions
that get strung out to the point that the question doesn’t make
sense. Well, that may be a bad udmission.

Gentlemen, you have been very helpful. Nobody else has any
comments to make ¢

Well, we hope you will let us have the results of the study you
are Fartaclpamng in.

Mr. PrircHARD. Yeos, sir. Thank you.

; ][]Mr. ]Px-lwha.xd’s prepared statement with exhibits A-J is as
ollows:

PREPARED STATEMFENT OF ROBERT W, PRITCHARD, CHAIRMAN, NATIONAL COLLEGIATE
ATHLE1IC ASSOCIATION, DRUG EDUCATION COMMITTEE

My name is Robert \W. Pritchard. [ zm dlrector of athletics at Worcester
Polytechnic Institute in Worcester, Massachusetts. I serve as chairman of the
National Collegiate Athletic Association’s Drug Education Committee.

Joining me on this panel ure three other members of that Committee. Dr.
Donald L. Cooper is team physician at Oklahoma State University. Dr. Cooper
also served as team physician for the United States Olympic Team at the
Games in Mexico Cily. Alan Hart is head trainer at Ohio State University
ond will serve as a trainer for the United States Team at the World University
Games in Moscow this summer, James Wilkinson of the NCAA administrative
staff is director of the National Summer Youth Sports Program and serves as
}i{alson between our Committee and the NCAA Executive Offices in Mission,

ansas.

Also with us today is Dr. Carl 8. Blyth, chairman of the Physical Education
Department at the University of North Carolina and administrator of the
NCAA Committee on Competitive Safeguards and Medical Aspects of Sports.

In the invitation to testify at these hearings, Chairman Bayh outlined
five areas relating to the question of drug abuse by athletes regarding which
the views and data of the NCAA were invited. Several of these areas will be
discussed by other members of this panel. I will begin by outlining the NCAA’s
policy condemning drug abuse by athletes, and the programs which it has
undertaken in this area.

The NCAA'’s policy is clearly set out in the following resolution adopted by
the 1971 NCAA Convention :

)
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“NONTHERAPEUTIC DRUGS

“SECTION 1. The NCAA condemns the employment of nontherapeutic drugs
in any of its member institutions or affiliated orgunizations by staff members
who authurize or allow their student-athietes to use such drugs, and by student-
athletes who do use such drugs.

“SEC. 2. Staff membess or student-athletes at member institutione who use
drugs in a nontherapeutic manner in any athletic prograin are in violation
of the principles of ethical conduct of the NCAA.

“SEC. 3. All member institutions. their athlctic staffs and their student-athletes
should assert aggressively their wholcsome Inflnences in combating usages of
nontherapeutic drugs among the nation's youth.”

The NCAA's efforts against drug abuse are proceeding on these fronts: 1)
education ; (2) assessment of the nature and extent of drug abuse by athletes;
and (3) development of an enforcement program.

1. EDUCATION

The NCAA Drug Education Committee was formed by the NCAA Counci! in
August, 1970, because of concern over apparently increasing drug abuse by
young people, and it has taken an active role in the athletic anti-drug program.

We are proud of the program we have developed, but we realize a great
amourit of work is ahead if we are to control drug abuse.

The problem of drug abuse is one of the biggest challenges this nation is
facing. The lives of raany young people depend on the solution. The situation
is eritical.

Abuse of drugs. always widespread bul covert, has become a matter of public
fact in the 1970's. It is impossible to foresee a time when it will be eliminated,
but we believe that control of drug abuse can be achieved. In order to accom-
Dlish this, however, the institutions of society being affacted by the problem
must accept a responsibility for its solution.

For this reason, we believe the NCAA Drug Education program is of critfcai
importance as a practical approach and, furthermore, as an example for other
institutions to follow.

The initial approach taken by the NCAA Drug Education Commiftee was an
educational poster and media campaign. Since 1970 more than 350,000 posters
and many news articles have Leen printed and distributed to the following
organizations:

Members of the United States Congress.
More than 700 members of the NCAA.
Entire membership (approximately 500 institutions) of the National Junior

College Athletic Association.

National Federation of State Iigh School Assoclations which is composed
of about 24 or 25.000 high schools in the United States.

National Association of Basketball Coaches.

Boys Clubs of America.

California Junior College Athletic Assoctation.

Fiesta Bowl.

Bureau of Narcotics and Dangerous Drugs.

Pop Warner Foothall League.

Girl Scouts. Boy Scouts, State and Local Governments.

Health Agencies.

I would like to submit for the record and for the Subcommittee's informa-
tion copies of the various posters and samples of news articles we have pub-
lished in game programs and newspapers throughout the United States. (Exhib-
its A and B)

The posters are produced three times yearly. Each issue of 30-40.000 posters
projects the sperts activities for one of the three gports seasons during the
school year, one for fall. one for winter and one for spring. These posters
have become a familiar sight in high schools and on college campuses through-
out the country.

We have written and published a pamphlet entitled “The Coach: Drugs, Ergo-
genic Aids and the Athlete.” (Exhibit C)

Through the cooperation of the Bureau of Narcotics and Dangerous Drugs,
we printed 250.000 copies of the pamphlet with a goal of trying to get them
into the hands of every coach of amateur teams iun this country. The distribu-
tion was as follows:

ERIC
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Distribution

High schools_ _ . ... eeeaaee 165, 000
National Junior College Athletic Association_ ... _ . ____._ ..o ___.._ 15, 000
4-year COlleEeS - _ _ - e . 15, 000
Fiesta Bowl . s 5, 000
Sold . - e e_. 3, 000
Distributed to superintendent of schools in 75 school districts in the

United States where drugs sezmed to be a problem _______._________ 25, 000
Bureau of Narcotics and Dangerous Drugs.______._._.________...__. :
Members of Congress_ . _ __ ... L eoa_ 1, CO0
California junior colleges _ _ _. _ . e 2, 000
Football coaches__ .. .. e 3, 000
Basketball coaches_ .. ... 3, 000
College commissioners___ ___ ____ . __._ oo 1, 000

Donated to organizations—such as: YMCA's, PTA's, NSYSP, State
and local governments, Boy Scouts, Girl Seouts, U.S, Military and

mAanyY others _ . e e 10, 000

Volunteer Service Bureau, Kiwanis, Human Resources Organization,
Boys Clubs, American Medical Association and other groups__.__.__ 4, 000
Miscellaneous - - - oo oo 1, 000
Total - e e 250, 000

Later we had a second printing of the pamphlet with a distribution of
50.000. (Exhibit D)

As an example of the reaction generated by the pamphlets, I would like
to present a column by the Nationai Interscholastic Swimming Coaches Asso-
ciation of America. (Exhibit E)

Once again, through the cooperation of the Bureau of Narcotics and Danger-
ous Drugs, we printed more than 40,000 copies of a drugs identification chart
for display in locker rooms and training rooms. The chart was widely distribu-
ted among four and two-yenr colieges and high schools, (Exhibit F)

In 1972, we expanded our poster, news article and pamphlet campaign by
publishing and distributing more than cne million copies of a drug fiyer entitled
“*Get High on Sports, Not Drugs.” {Exhibit G)

This publication, containing a feature article prepared by Dr. Hardin Jones
of the University of California, Berkeley, and a member of our Committee,
was designed to provide information on the problems of drug abuse for the
parents of young athletes,

Disiribution

High schools. - o e e aciieaas 717, 490
Colleges and universities_ . _ ..o oo e e 200, 000
National Junior College Athletic Association._ . ___.__._..__...__.. 75, 000
Fiesta Bowl ... e 50, 000
California Junior College Association, __ .. ... ... _co_.__, _._ 25, 000
Bureau of Narcotics and Dangerous Drugs.. - .- . _____.__..._.__ 10, 009
CONEreSS . _ e e —aan 2,010
Drug Education Committee. _ - - - e oo e eeeee 500

Total . o o e e em———— 1, 080, 000

Financial support for this pamphlet was provided fromn the Fiesta Football
Bow! of Phoenix, Arizona; Nuticnal Federation of State High School Associa-
tions; and the Bureau of Narcotics and Dangerous Drugs. Incidentally, I want
to compliment the Fieeta Koothall Bowl Committee of Phoenix, Arizona, which
this year completed n pledge of $30,000 to the NCAA Drug Education Com-
mittee, (Iixhibit H)

In addition to the printed naterials we provide, we have pryduced spot
television promotions which have appenred regularly during the NCAA college
footlhail telecasts. These spots have featured outstanding college athletes such
a8 Arizona State's yuarterback. Danny White and Florida State’s quarterback,
Garyv Huff, as well as outstanding cnllegiate coaches such as Penn State's Joe
Paterno, A “'rap session’” among a group of youhg people at St. John's Univer-
sity in New York was also a part of the svries. Here are some photographs
taken from the film clips.

Our Committee members have also spoken to groups of coaches and trainers
about drug education as well as to imedical symposiums, civic groups and
) vocations on college campuses, Dr. Cooper has been especially active in

E l{lC 1 program.

Aruitoxt provided by Eic:



42

I would be remiss not to point ~ut the NCAA's participation in conducting
tours o the Far East and Europe where mary outstanding college athletes and
coaches used their summer and Christimas vacations to talk with our service-
men. One of the most discussed topics was drug education. The NCAA currently
is conducting tours number 8 and 9 with the Department of Defense and two
tours are being co-sponsored with the U.S. Pacific Air Force this summer,

II. ASSESSMENT OF THE PROBLEM

The NCAA is presently in the midst of a project designed to develop hard
information on the questions whether there is a drug problem among college
athletes and what the nature and extent of the problem are if, in fact, one
exists. From among member institutions which volunteered to cooperate, the
NCAA selected 143 representative colleges to which “blind” questionnaires
entitled “NCAA Drug Use Questionnaire” have bews sent. This questionnaire,
copies of which we are submitting to this Subcommittee (Exhibit I), is to be
filled out anonymously by student-athletes at the selectad institutions.

In all, 22,600 individual questionnaires have been sent, to institutions which
include both large and small colleges, both public and private institutions and
colleges located in each of the states, The competed replies are being sent to
a computer service center in Memphis, Tenuessee, for compilation ¢f the data.

This survey is designed to obtain information indicating the types of drugs
used by college athletes, and the extent and degree of usage in college athletics.
We feel that we are developing the most meaningful information ever obtained
in this area, and that it should be invaluable in assessing the need for and
design of future NCAA programs. We will provide this Subcommittee copies
of the results of the survey once (uey have been compiled.

IIL. DEVELOPMENT OF TESTING AND ENFORCENENT PROGRAMS

At the 1978 NCAA Convention, the member institutions amended the Associ-
ation’s Bylaws to establish legislation in gddition to their previously adopted
policy declaration. (Exhibit J) Bylaw 4, Section 2 reads as follows:

“Student-athletes competing in NCAA championships shall not use any un-
authorized drugs which may endanger their health or safety or which may
Secningly give an unfair competitive advantage to an individual! competitor.
This does not preclude the use of drugs prescribed by a physician in the course
of medical treatment. (Adopted: 1/13/73)

“(e) The Council shall, from time to time after enlisting expert advice and
study, enumerate the drugs which may not be used. (Adopted: 1/13/73)

“(d) The Executive Committee may authorize urinalysis or other methods
for testing student-athletes who compete in NCAA championships to determine
the extent of drug usage therein. (Adopted: 1/13/73)"

We are presently in the process of determining which substances the NCAA
Council will officially designate as drugs which “may not be used.” We also
intend to institute a program of urinalyses of athletes competing in NCAA
championships. 'Testing will start in the fall of this year. In this first effort,
we do not intend any punitive measures for any individual or college. We plan
only to gather facts which we hope will provide us with future direction.

CONCLUSION

The NCAA, in general, and the NCAA Drug Education Committee, in particu-
lar, stand ready to cooperate with any valid and responsible effort to deal with
this issue.

With your permission, I would like to ask the members of this panel to
speak directly to the other specific areas outlined by Chairman Bayh in his
invitation to testify.

Dr. Cooper will focus on the ethical considerations-involved in the use of non-
restorative drugs, including stimulants, such as amphetamines and anabolic
steroids.

Mr. Hart will discuss the assessment of the extent of the use of additive and
restorative drugs by athletes.

Dr. Blyth will offer soine suggestions and recommendations to facilitate the
proper use of drugs in athletic competition.

Mr. Wilkinson will discuss the drug education program in our National
Sunimer Youth Sports Program which is ennducted at 105 NCAA colleges and
universities with an enrollment of 40,000 youngsters.

T attempted to cover the other boints Chairinan Bayh requested we review,

W if other members of our panel would like to offer additional comments, I
E MClte them to do so.
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[Exhibit A]

GET HIGH
ON SPORTS
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[Exhibit B]

“DRUGS HAVE N0 I’ART IN SroRTS Ok LIFE™ Say Prominent College Athletes gnd
Coaches

PETER ROBES. University of Wyoming

“We are brought into this life with a wonderful body. We can accomplish
many things with it, but only if it is used, not abused. Our bodies, if destroyed
by excesses of any Kkind. will be of no use to us or anyone else. There are
enough activities tor today's young person . . , or older one, for that matter
- - - to occupy his time. If sports can be built as a life-time ideal, then all of us
would have something to turn to besides drugs. or other harmful activities”

Peter Robes, junior skier. Etna. N.II. Physical education major. minor in
biological sciences; plans to teach and coach skiing on college level ; won NCAA
ski jumping title and All-America honors, 1968; third in nationals in 1969 and
1971; second in U.S. Ski Jumping Championships, 1970, participated with U.S.
Ski Team on European tour.

DAVE RIEHL, Ithaca College

“Drugs, just like many other things. become harmful when misused.

“Some drugs have been proven te be dangerous if used at all—this case speaks
for itself.

“With regard to the ‘soft drugs, I feel that a certain caution should be used
when dealing with an unknown—-both by the people who would use them and
by the people who would use strong measures tc ban their use.

“One should broaden one's physical and mental facilities as much as possible
in a lifetime ; but to use drugs (and, "r that 'natter, one's athletic abilities) as
crutches to cover up one’s inadequacies in other aspects of life is both foolish
und dangerous.”

Dave Riehl, junior soccer goalie, Colton. N.Y. Started every game as a sopho-
more, posting 1.10 goals against scoring average, Accounted for three shutouts.
Named to six all-opponent teams. Rated by Coach Forbes Keith as best goal-
tender in 20 years at Ithaca. Physics major with 3.96 grade-point average.

GARY HALL, Indiana University

“Perhaps the best way to approach the problem of drugs in our society is to
look for changes which may have caused the problem. Only after solving the
problems leading to drug problems can the drug problem, itself, really be
solved. .

“One of the biggest challenges this country faces is a declining standard
of morals. Many media, such as magazines, books and the cinema, influencing
our society have become infested with vile material. By accepting this ‘smut’
we are aceepting lower moral standards.

“The danger and consequence of changing standards is that too many people
can no longer deternine what is right from what is wrong, 2r even what is
normal from what is abnormal. And. unfortunately, far too many have accepted
drugs as a normal way of living.

“It's tragic that such an unnatural and dangerous thing as using drugs could
ever become accepted in such an ‘intellectual’ society.”

Gary Hall. junior swimmer, Garden Grove. Calif. Helm's North Aimnerican
Athlete-of-the-Year, 1970. World Swimmer-of-the-Year, 1969 and 1970. World
record holder 200 butterfly, 400 individual medley and 800 freestyle relay. Won
three NCAA titles, 1971. Has won total of 13 naticnal titles and an Olympic
silver medal. Recent transfer from honors program in physics to pre-medicine
with 3.81 g.p.a.

JORN BROWN, University of Missouri

“Sports have been good to me—and for me The drug scene is only for losers
and dropouts from the world.”

John Brown, junlor basketball player. Dixon, Mo. Missed first eight games as
sophomore with injury. Came back to score 14 points against NCAA champion
UCLA. Team's second leading scorer. Colorado All-America Cliff Meely was

Q
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only other player besides Brown who ranked in four offensive categories in the
’}llig Eight. Averaged 54.6 per cent from the field and 74.8 from the free throw
ne,
JOHN REAVES, University of Florida

“Drugs only keep you from facing reality. If you want to make something
of yourself, to do your own thing as an individual, you have to face everything
as it comes in order to gain coutidence in yourself as a person. This is not
possible when drugs are involved.” ’

John Reaves, senior quarterbuck, Tampa, Florida. Holder of 11 Southeastern
Conference passing records, Passed for 37 1'1)'s in two seasons. Frequent speaker
at youth functions, Was one of two Florida players to trek 20 miles for March
of Dimes Walkathon. Majoring in marketing.

DAVE MORTON, University of 1exas, Austin

1 think that when you use drugs, you are copping out on yourself. You are
admitting that you don't have the courage, or the imagination, to face reality.
I would rather meet problems head-on and try to solve them than to run away
and hide in the surreal world of drugs.”

Dave Mortox, senior trackman, Branch, Texas. Team co-captain. Southwest
Conference record-holder in 440 with time of 44.5. Anchor man on record SWS
mile relay team, clocked at 3:07. SWS 880 champion last year. Anchor man on
conference mile relay championship team three years in a row.

YOSHIRO FUJITA, Oklahoma State University

*Competitive athletics Lhave perinitted me to lead an active and healthy life,
It has given me the strength to meet other challenges. It would be foolish to
destroy all of this with narcotics. The same goes for smoking."”

Yoshiro Fujita, senior wrestler, Hachinohe, Japan. Won NCAA title at 126
pounds in 1941, completing an undefeated (28) season. Closest match in the
championship was an 11-2 decision. Attended Japan’s Senshu University for
cne year before coming to Oklahoma State. Majoring in education.

JOE PEYTON, University of Puget Sound

“Statisties on drugs give evidence that the uver is not in a complete state
of physical, mental or social well being. An athlete, striving to perform at
his best, which should be the aim of every athlete, never should consider
anything which might impair his performance.”

Joe Pexton, head track coach, Won 11 letters at University of Puget Sound
from 1963-68. Only season he didn’t receive a letter was during one basketball
season which he sat out due to a broken leg suffered in football. Little All-
America football selection. Set school records in high jump and long jump. A
former Green Beret sergeant. Farned B.A. and M.A. in Physical Education
trom UPS.

BOBBY MAJORS, University of Tennessee

“The use of drugs, very common today, is something we must face up to.
The nuin who can do without drugs is much be.ler off than the man who
uses them. Drugs are harmful to the body and may damage the braln. Be a
better tnan and don‘t take a chance with drugs.”

Bobby Majors, senior defensive back, Sewanee, Tenn. Led nation in pass
interceptions with 10 in 1970, Helped Tennessee establish Southeasiern Confer-
ence record with 36 aerial thefts. Both kicks and returns punts. Older brothers
John, now coach at Inwa State, and Bill, also starred for Vol eleven. Majoring
in education.

caat, WALLIN, University of Towa

“As a gymnast, I've flipped over lots of things, but I've always maintained
a strong posture against drugs. Drugs and athletics do not mix.”

Carl Wallin, sophomore gymnast, Hinsdale, Illinois. .One of Iowa's outstand-
ing performers as a freshman. Specialized in high bar. Runnerup in that event
at Big Ten Invitational meet. 3.25 grade-point aversge. Majoring in mathe-
matics,

Q .
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CoirecE ATHLETICS STEPS IN To BATTLE DRUG SCENE

“Awmericans put out the most expensive urine in the world. It is a beautiful
bright yeilow urine loaded with excreted vitamins,”

The speaker was Dr. Donald L. Cooper, an Olympic team physician and
the team physician at Oklahoma State University, and his subject was ergo-
genic aids and drugs in athletics—a speech that he has now delivered to many
of the nation’s coaches, athletic associations and other interested groups.

As part of the NCAA's Drug FEducation Program, Cooper delivered his speech
to over 1600 delegates and couches at the January NCAA Convention, expound-
ing on the hazards of many of the ergogenic aids used by athletes, and their
overuse. He has traveled extensively since,

The NCAA has taken an active rolle in the athletic anti-drug program. The
NCAA Drug Education Committee tirst met October 21-22, 1970, and in the
short period of time since that date, it has provided the impetus for one of
the NCAA'S most comprehensive programs,

The Committee, of which Robert W. Pritchard, director of athletics at
Worcester Polytechnic Institute (Mass.), is chairman, is composed of Dr.
Cooper, Thomas J. Hamiiton, immediate past Pacific-8 Conference executive
director; and James 1I. Wilkinson, NCAA. It was formed by the NCAA Council
last August “because of the rising public concern over drug abuse by young
people and athletes,” Wilkinson said.

Cooper is the expert among the group, and has studied drug and ergogenic aid
use by athletes perhups more than any other physician in the country.

UNLIMITED DEFINITION

“The definition of ergogenic is very unlimited,” Cooper says. “According to
Dorlands Medical Dictionary it is defined simply ‘anything tending to increase
work output.'”

Cooper categorizes athletic ergogenic aids into four main groups, emphasiz-
ing that many are dangerous and that many don’t do any good at all.

*This entire area of ergogenic aids and drugs has always fascinated us. We
human beings are notoriously on the prowl for a ‘gimmick’ or an ‘easy way’ or
that ‘special something extra.’ There are no short cuts to excellent performance,
but I guess it is the nature of the beast to keep striving to find some help.”

The four ergogenic categories outlined by Cooped are physical and meehanical,
nutritional, pharmacological (drugs) and psychological.

The pharmacologicul ergogenic aids are the most dangerous and potentially
harmful., Mainly two families are used—the amphetamines and anabolic andro-
&enic steroids.

The anabolic steroids taken by weight men and the amphetamines and related
“speed” and ‘“‘uppers” are the drugs that Cooper says are most commonly used
by athletes.

Cooper and Dr. Hardin Jones, also an NCAA drug panelist, from the Univer-
gity of California Berkeley, say the amphetamines have paradoxical dangers.

“When an athlete takes an amplhetamine, he thinks he’s the greatest,” Cooper
said. “A pitcher may think he’s really throwing hard, but in reality he’s throw-
ing softballs up there and probably just gave up four home runs, His perform-
ance is probahly worse, but he doesn't think s0,” Cooper commented.

“The drug is used,” Jones said, “to speed up the nerve-muscle reaction, but
it has a reverse effect on athletes.

“In any athletic event, the capacity of the adrenal gland to put out adren-
alin is finportant to any athlete. But an athlete has lost some control over the
mobilization of adrenalin if he takes an amphetamine before an event. And
over a period of time, it may cause other difficulties.”

Q
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ANABOLIC BTEROIDS

The anabolic androgenic steroids, the other form of drugs taken by athletes,
are used to gain weight at an extremely fast rate.

Used medically, they help the body retain protein snd nitrogen, and help
the building of muscle tissue.

Other steroids are given to patients with other deficiencies.

“The only \\ay John F. Kennedy could be President was to take cortisone,”
Coopela dl‘ said. “He had Addisons Disease and had a disfunction of his adrenal
glan

“You can give anabolic steroids to a person who is 93 pounds to start with.
But to & normal human being? We just don't know the total effects. Studies
done over a short period of time show there have been no adverse effects with
normal dosages. But athletes sometimes are taking two, five and ten times the
normal dosage.”

Some studies indicate that athletes may gain weight, but don’t increase their
strength and quickness.

“The problems started with the weightlifters and the muscle beach boys—
the body beautiful people. A doctor at UCLA conducted a study, and concluded
that anabolic androgenic steroids caused most people to gain weight, but did
8o because the body retained tiuids. His study showed that there was no increase
in speed or strength.”

Jones says that the steroids are the main drugs being misused.

“It has been proven that they may cause testicular atrophy and hypertrophy
of the prostate gland,” Jones said.

“I consider that a pretty big danger signal.”

CORTIBONE

He also said that cortisone is misused by some athletes, doctors and trainers.

“It is used to get an athlete back in action faster,” he said, "bu. sometimes he
plays before the actual healing takes place.”

The studies into drug abuse by athletes are new and, as of yet, meaningful
statistics on the maount of drug abuse by collegiate athletes are not available,

Cooper has said that a few conches give them out like candy, and that
there is probably a lot of under-the-counter traffic that “we don’t know of.”

“But I don't think, and can't lelieve, too many reputable physicians or
trainers are dispensing them. Reports alleging many athletes are using drugs
really aren’t too scientific in their evaluations.

“More are using drugs than we probably think,” he said. “But they do it
on their own. Like the drug scene everywhere, you don't see many drug abusers.
1 think most of the athletes are getting the drugs from the outside.

ETERNAL HOPE

“Hope always springs eternal that someone will find something that will
make the weak stronger, and the slow faster. But there's one fact that I think
should be set very straight: To our knowledge, a normal, well-fed human
being can never be imnproved by any drug.

“Of all the people taking them..the one who holds the world record in the
shot put doesn't take themn. Randy Matson used to at one time, but he went
off them. That's when he set the world record.

“I took care of Randy, so he's a personal friend of mine. A lot of other
weight men are getting bigger, but this doeesn't mean they're getting qulcker
and stronger. If they are, why aren't they catching Matson?”"

O
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ABOUT DRUGS: (\ D D,

DR. DONALD L. COCPER u\/

“A Normal, Well-fed Human Bodg/ Can Never
Be Improved by Any Drug.”

“Write Off Drugs, Right On Eeality.”

“Drugs Destroy Your Ability to Compete,
in Sports or in Life.”

“Throughout History, Fuman Beings Have
Searched for a Physical Gimmick, But

There Is No Shortcut
to Eacellence

Through Drugs.”
Or. Donold L. Coo, of the on's foremost ovlhon‘lies on drvg L P
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Why a Drug Pamphlet for Coaches?

Dear Coach:

As a coach, you should arm
yourself with as much information
on the drug problem as you possi-
bly can. We want you to be able
to “rap” with youth. Understand-
ing is the basis of all solutions. To
recognize the symptoms and evi-
dence of drug usage, one must
know the tell-tale signs of experi-
mentation and realize someone is
in trouble.

Further, how do you handle
these problems? To whom do you
talk? In whom should you con-
fide? How do vou react—do you
kick the boy off the squad, or is
that the worst thing you can do?
We think this pamphlet will be
helpful to you.

Robert W. Pritchard

Chairman, NCAA Drug Education
Committee

Worcester Polytechnic Institute

Other Committee members:

Dr. Donald L. Cooper
Oklahoma State University
Admiral Thomas J. Hamilton
retired Pacific-8 Executive
Director

James H. Wilkinson, NCAA

Gentlemen:

First, let me convey the appre-
ciation of the Bureau to the NCAA
and its officials for making possi-
ble the publication of this booklet
and assisting us in distributing it
to you. )

{Inr nation has always been

E

Q
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.of its athletes and of their
RIC
A 0 -73-5

performances in all kinds of com-
petition. Millions of Americans,
young and old, who participate in
sports of all kinds have been justly
proud of their sportsmanship.

Today, a problem has arisen in
a minority of athletes. The “win
at any cost” attitude has caused
them to turn to the use of drugs
in an attempt to increase per-
formance. This has sometimes re-
sulted in injury to athletes. How-
ever, even if no apparent physical
harm results, the damage to the
athlete, ethically and psychologi-
cally, can be severe. And the
damage to the American concept
of sportsmanship may be irrepar-
able if such misuse of drugs con-
tinues and increases.

Coaches, whether they work
with high school and college vouth,
professional athletes or little
league youngsters, are educators
and builders of character. It is not
enough to say, “I never permit my
boys to use drugs.” I urge you to
take the next step: To personally
commit yourself to educating
youth in the proper use of drugs,
and to seek help for the few on
your team who mnay need it.

The available evidence indicates
that there is no real advantage for
the athlete who tries to increase
ability through drugs. The medi-
cal profession, coaches and trainers
throughout the world consider it
very unsound practice to utilize
drugs to enhance athletic capa-
bility. I ask you to make that ex-
tra effort to see that they escape
the trap which drugs present to
them. They, and our country,
need your help.

John Finlator,
Deputy Director of the Bureau of
Narcotics and Dangerous Drugs.
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Drugs and Athletics . . .

Randy Matson, perhaps the greatest weight thrower in the history of
track and field and currently the world record-holder in the shot put,
said he tried anabolic-androgenic steroids in 1964 and 1965.

This type of steroid has teen used by athletes to supposedly make
them grow stronger and gain weight at a faster rate.

“But I didn’t see any outstanding results when I took the drugs,”
Matson said. “l1 didn’'t gain any weight, I didn’t throw farther with
them, as far as I could tell, so I stopped using them.”

He then set the world record in the shot put of 71°-5%” in 1967.

“Of all the people taking them, the world record holder in the shot
put doesn’t use them,” commented Dr. Donald L. Cooper, a former
Olympic team physician and team physician at Oklahoma State Uni-
versity. “A lot of weight men are getting bigger, but this doesn’t mean
they’re getting quicker and stronger. If they are, then why aren’t they
catching Matson?”

Seeking to improve athletic performance, athletes have experimented
with an endless variety of drugs. But based on scientific evidence, it is
very difficult to find anyone who has been safely improved.

The taking of pharmacological aids has proved to be a hazardous
venture for some—leading to permanent injury and death. And yet to be
known are the long-range effects that the drugs might cause.

There are still many unanswered questions in the area of the athlete
and drugs. A lot of the conflicting opinions are not based on scientific
evidence but on personal opinion. It is the hope of all those concerned
with this project that some basic lines of objectivity may be established
and that fundamental principles of human physiology will be under-
stood. The final answers are not yet available, but to a great extent
what coaches and athletes do in the next few years can set the pattern
for the expanding and continued growth of excellent athletic programs.
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Some Basic Concepts

“Hope always springs eternal that someone will find something that
will make the weak stronger, the slow faster and the dull brighter. But
there’s one overriding fact that I think should be continually reempha-
sized: To our knowledge, a normal, well-fed human being can never be
safelv improved upon by any drug.”

Dr. Donald L. Cooper
Olympic Team Physician—Mexico City, 1968
Team Physician, Oklahoma State University

The entire area of ergogenic aids and drugs always has fascinated
people. Human beings are notoriously on the prowl for a “gimmick” or
“an easy way” or that “special something extra”. There are generally
no shortcuts to an excellent performance, but apparently it is man’s
nature to keep striving for help—*“a fair advantage.”

The imagination can be challenged by the definition of the word
“ergogenic.” It is short, yet unlimited. According to Dorland’s Illus-
trated Medical Dictionary, it is defined simply as “anything tending to
increase work output.”

Within the broad limits of this definition there are many shady areas
in the consideration of ergogenic aids and drugs. The more they are
explored, the more complicated and conflicting are the reports.

History of Drugs in Athletics

In sports, the first recorded death from drug usage was in the late
1890’s, when a British cyclist died from using amphetamines. This kind
of tragic occurrence has been repeated with numerous drugs on several
occasions since then. One consistency has been demonstrated through-
out: more losers use drugs than winners. The drug users know they have
not made the proper effort in training and are far more prone to look
for the “gimmick” or artificial help that isn’t there.

No country officially encourages the usc of ergogenic drugs in its
athletic programs. The British are a great deal more prudish and hard-
nosed than most. They state that the taking of any chemical substance
not normally present in the body and not playing an essential role in a
healthy person competing in ath!etics falls in the category of “doping.”

For a more practical approach and definition of substance misuse,
one should refer to the ruling of the International Amateur Athletic
Federation (track and field) which staves that no agent that stimulates
muscles and nerves, which paralyzes the sense of fatigue, or which is
habit forming, should be used.

Any definition of what such agents specifically will or will not do can
create many unanswerable questions. Certainly, no coach wants to
harm any of his charges, but each would like to possess the magic key

Q ure optimum performance of his squad at all contests.
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What Can a Coach Do?

As most coaches are aware, they are a force of great influence. They
also have a great responsibility.

If you notice a young person manifesting definite changes and a
secretivzness that makes you suspect problems in the drug area, it is
best to approach him directly as a coricerned person. You should be
more interested in him as a person and less interested in the particular
drug or chemical he may be abusing. It is difficult, but important to
confront him directly as to your concern and ask him to talk about the
problems he is having. It is probably better to go to the person involved
first and tell him before you go to his parents or to authorities. This
latter may be the only avenue to follow, but the person should be told
what you plan to do.

On the importance of counseling, Kenneth S. Clarke, Ph.D., formerly
of the American Academy of Orthopaedic Surgeons, and now a professor
at Mankato State, expressed some thoughts nearly two years ago which
are valid today. ’

The coach, said Dr. Clarke, “must take his counselor role seriously
and not give tacit approval to dabbling (in drugs) by turning his back
on the problem. Research has demonstrated that the attitude of the
coach concerning health and safety matters is a strong influence on the
attitudes of his athletes—and he should use it. The saying goes, ‘If
you’re not part of the solution, you’re part of the problem.’

“What remains is to tell it the way it really is to athletes—that drug
dabbling is far more apt to erode than enhance their normal ~apabilities
in sports—and then put one’s efforts doggedly into the ethics and
competence of their leadership, medical and non-medical, for the en-
forcement. Drug dabbling should be approached frankly, honestly,
relying on the personal discipline that is asked for in coach’s counseling
on tobacco, alcohol, sportsmanship, and other such practices during the
young athlete’s formative years.”
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Recognition of the Drug User

The problem of recognition of the drug yser or abuser can be com-
plicated. The person who begins to show personality changes or who
withdraws from his usual activities may be suspect. It has been shown
that drug abusers frequently will miss classes, especially physical ac-
tivity classes. They will begin to do work in the classroom that is below
their previous performance levels. Many of the young people lose their
long term goals and seem to show less ambition. More specific examples:

©

11.
12.
13.

14.

e B S o S

Inability to coordinate, standing or walking.

Muddled speech.

Impaired judgment (barbiturate user).

Rapid pulse.

Restlessness.

Jittery.

Muscular twitches.

Heavy sweating and bad breath (hallmarks of amphetamine
abuse).

Nervous, highly talkative and over-active (amphetamine).

. Marijuana abuse:

—red eyes are fairly common symptom
—may begin to miss gym class and then other classes
—increased appetite with special craving for sweets
-—regular user is apathetic, listless and careless about his
personal habits
—may lead to lack of motivation and loss of long term
goals,
Pinpoint pupils—could be heroin or another narcotic abuse.
Chills. !
Needlemarks on arms and legs. Addicts often wear long-
sleeved sweaters, even in summer, to both keep warm and -
hide scars.
A person’s language (his jargon) may indicate he uses drugs.
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Two Drug Families Athletes Abuse

Amphetamines

(am - fet’ - ah - min)—Used to stimulate the central nervous
system, increase blood pressure, reduce appetite, and reduce
nasal congestion (Dorland’s Illustrated Medical Dictionary).

Other Names: Pep pills, bennies, wake-ups, eye-openers, lid poppers,
co-pilots, truck drivers, peaches, roses, hearts, cartwheels, whites, coast
to coast, LA turnabouts, browns, footballs, greenies, bombido, oranges,
dexies, jelly-beans, A’s, Jellie babies, sweets, beans, uppers.

Amphetamines are the “paradoxical” drugs. Athletes have taken them
for years to supposedly run faster, pump harder or jump higher, but in
reality they may have a reverse effect. When an athlete takes an am-
phetamine he may think his performance is superb, but in reality he
probably is doing worse. From a scientific point of view, the researchers
are in conflict. There are some reports which claim that in solo type
activities, amphetamines may be able to slightly increase performance.
However, many studies show that in football, basketball or baseball and
other complex problem-solving sports, the users do worse.,

Amphetamines are chemical substances that primarily affect the
central nervous system. They are used to attempt to speed up nerve-
muscle reaction.

The amphetamines act to lessen a person’s ability to recognize possible
dangerous fatigue sensations, constrict blood vessels, and suppress appe-
tite by stimulating the central nervous system. They can be highly
dangerous.

Depending on dosage, individual sensitivity and certain other factors,
amphetamines:

e Can mask or hide the protective signs of dangerous fatigue.

e Delay pulse and respiration recovery time after exertion.

¢ Can be highly toxic.

e Have been known to cause physical dependency if taken regu-
larly over varying periods of time, depending on the individual
user. (Physical dependency occurs when a user suffers with-
drawal symptoms.)

e May lead to varying degrees of psychological dependency by
the user after continuous and prolonged administration. This in
turn may lead to aggressive and anti-social behavior. If a user
stops taking them, he may become very depressed and have diffi-
culty performing routine tasks. Large doses may produce pro-
found behavioral effects, such as psychosis.

¢ Produce states of nervousness, acute anxiety and insomnia as
the dosage is increased.
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Anabolic-Androgenic Steroids

(an” ah-bol’ ik) —pertaining to, characteristic of, promoting
anabolism, or constructive metabolism.

(an’” dro-jen’ ik) —producing masculine characteristics.

(ste’ roid)—A group name for compounds which resemble
cholesterol chemically. Some of the substances included in the
group are the sex hormones, cardiac aglycones, bile acids,
sterols proper, toad poisons, saponins, and some of the carcino-
genic hydrocarbons. (Dorland’s Illustrated Medical Dic-
tionary).

The anabolic-androgenic steroids (synthetic male sex hormones)
which resemble chemically and functionally the male sex hormones, are
taken by athletes with the intent of gaining weight and strength. Many
athletes think that increased body weight results in increased muscular
strength. At least one study has proven to the contrary.

Perhaps the best existing document on the subject was published in
1966 in the Journal of Applied Physiology by Dr. William M. Fowler Jr.,
then of the UCLA Medical School and now at University of: California,
Davis.

In a double blind (neither the subject nor the researcher knows who
is taking the active tablet) controlled study, eight took the placebo
(sugar pill), nine took the anabolic-androgenic steroid, ten took the
placebo and exercised, while ten more took the drug and exercised.

Summarized, Fowler found that the drug did increase weight, but that
much of it was probably due to fluid retention and did not necessarily
result in an increase in strength. The increase in strength was in direct
correlation to the amount of hard work and exercise, whether taken
by a drug user or a non user.

The tests were conducted by giving normal dosages. Some athletes
take much greater dosages. In those quantities (and even in normal
quantities) it has been shown that the drug can be dangerous for many
people. It is nearly impossible to do research in amounts over the
recommended dosages. The problem of liability then becomes very real.

Anabolic-androgenic steroids have been known to cause:

® Premature closure of the growing plates in the long bones in
younger athletes. The younger the athlete when taking the drug,
the greater the probability his growth actually will be stunted.
® Liver Damage (chemical hepatitis).

* Prostatic hypertrophy (enlarged prostate gland).

e Testicular atrophy (testicles shrink in size).

® Aggravation and stimulation of the growth of any pre-existing
cancers or hormone sensitive tumors.




Why Drugs?

A New Theory on Drug Action

Dr. Hardin Jones, a research physiologist at California, Berkeley, has
spent the last six years primarly in drug research, and has developed
some interesting new theories. He has concluded that almost all of the
drugs taken recreationally and experimentally by human beings have
their primary action in the various pleasure and sensual centers of the
brain. Man is basically a pleasure-seeking animal and to one degree or
another will pursue things that give him pleasure. Most people use
various drugs and chemicals becanse they like the effect on their central
nervous system. They take them, at least initially, because it feels good
and they enjoy the feeling.

One of the problems is that most of the chemicals or drugs also have
secondary toxic or damaging effects and these can create permanent
damage. This is best illustrated by what the heroin addict describes as
-the “main line,” or giving himself the drug directly into his vein. It is
usually described as a sexual pleasure sensation and unfortunately, after
repeated usage, the drug can damage the pleasure centers se that they
no longer can get normal pleasure registered in these damaged areas.

Dr. Thaddeus Mann in Cambridge, England, has also discovered
similar effects. He suggests that if Romeo had had hashish, he would
have had no need for Juliet. This explains to some extent why we have
such a poor recovery rate from drug addiction, the person has damaged
his pleasure center cells enough that the only way he can get any
pleasure is to return to drug usage even after he has gone through with-
drawal and is no longer using any drugs. This helps explain why drugs
can be a one-way trip to entrapment.
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A Summary of Drug Facts

Normal is Best

A notion in this country, and all over the world, is that there are
“super” drugs, or miracle drugs that can do things for people that they
can’t do for themselves. One thing should be made clear: there is no
drug that can safely make anybody better than normal. If one has a
normally functioning liver, adrenal gland, brain, nerve-muscle complex,
or heart, there is no drug that can make them better. The only time to
use drugs or any kind of chemical substance is when a diseased, injured,
or deficiency state exists.

By the time they are 20, today’s children will have watched approxi-
mately 15,000 hours of television. During this time they will have seen
numerous commercials telling them that drugs can calm their stomach,
quiet their nerves, clear their complexion, improve their performance on:
the job, and relieve their aches and pains. They grow up thinking
drugs are the answer. Society has created this culture, in a sense, and
the medical profession has had a part in it. Drug manufacturers and
salesmen must also share the responsibility for furthering the illusion
that drugs are the best solution to people’s problems.

Drugs do have a very necessary application. Prior to the use of insulin,
a diabetic had a very short lifespan. With insulin, he nearly has a normal
life expectancy. Still, the diabetic is not as good as the normal indi-
vidual whose functioning pancreas manufactures it own insulin. A
healthy, normal body is best.

Body Pollution

There is an aggressive, active ecology movement in this country—
regarding the pollution of rivers, streams and air, but not enough people
worry about perhaps the greatest ecology problem of them all—the
pollution of the body. In a sense, this is what happens when any
type of a non-necessary chemical substance is taken. In the diseased,
injured or deficiency states, drugs can be beneficial. Otherwise, they
are pollutants.

The body is an incomparable, beautiful piece of machinery with its
own industrial plants and waste removal facilities. Children need to be
taught at an early age to have respect for their physiological systems.
Older people, of necessity, must show respect for their bodies.

Power of the Mind

Much can be done by learning to better use our minds and powers
of cerebration. The power of the human mind to affect the well being
nf&ghe body is amazing, but unfortunately the potential of this power
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has not been fully developed. It is intriguing that Yogas can sit and
contemplate their navels, slowing their pulse rates to 30 beats per
minute through sheer concentration. There is a great deal to learn in
this area of mind over matter.

It is not out of reason to expect that some day the school systems will
offer courses teaching children how to ‘“turn on” with their minds. It
certainly will be a lot safer than dumping harmful chemicals into their
bodies to “turn on.”

Please keep in mind that the idea that something miraculous in terms
of living will come from drug usage is false. Drugs create illusions but
such illusions or fantasies never solve any of life’s problems and, in fact,
damage the long-term health of the body. A real feeling of worth and
a person’s true image of himself comes only when he accepts, and works
within reality.

Ergogenic Aids

There are four general categories of ergogenic aids—aids used by

athletes to supposedly increase their performance.
. Physical and Mechanical—One of the most common aids used to
supposedly increase work potential is oxygen. If one inhales oxygen
prior to an event, it has been fairly well shown that it has no effect on
work performance, speed, running ability, or rate of recovery. If, how-
ever, oxygen can be given during the exercise period itself, workloads
can be maintained for longer periods of time. Here is one of the still
to be defined areas.

For instance, during a football or basketball game, is it wrong to have
oxygen available at the sidelines? At a higher altitude many coaches will
insist on it. But the best scientific evidence says it is of little real
value, because the oxygen cannot be stored and can last no longer than
two or three minutes unless the person caa breathe it all the time. ‘There,
of course, may be some psychological help.. The power of suggestion is
great.

There are other physical ergogenic aids. The use of “negative ioniza-
tion” and ultra-violet rays have been investigated and no evidence of
increased ability or strength were shown, but some researchers felt
the sense of well-being might be increased — suggested psychological
assistance.

Massage could be considered a mechanical form of ergogenic aid and
it has been shown to speed recovery from fatigue slightly, but no evi-
dence of increased strength or performance can be demonstrated.

Exercise rituals would have to be considered mechanical ergogenic
aids. Isometrics, isotonics, weight lifting and exercise stations all in-
crease strength and possible work capacity in a direct relationship to -
”mg'"nount of hard, demanding and persistent work done. A good




65
£

conditioning and varied training program is the best and safest ergo-
genic aid known to date.

Nutritional Ergogenic Aids—Probably no area of ergogenic aids has
gotten more attention than this one. When Herb Elliott, the Australian
distance star, was eating oats and seaweed, many aspiring track stars
were trying to consume the same crop. But Herb Elliott also worked
hard, ran a lot, and ate a lot of normal, wholesome, well-balanced food.

Protein and amino acid supplements have been mentioned for years,
but mest scientific evidence shows that a well-balanced diet will supply
all of the protein and essential amino acids necessary for any athlete.
In fact, the major work in this area showed that a high protein diet
requires as much as five per cent more oxygen for its metabolism; there-
fore, a persistent diet of this type was detrimental. This factor, along
with the problem of digestion, should prompt examination of the con-
tents of the pre-contest diet.

All the scientific evidence seems to show that the excess use of vita-
mins is over-rated. Americans put out the most expensive urine in
the world. It is bright yellow, loaded with excreted vitamins. A well-
balanced diet of fresh, well-prepared food will supply all the vitamins
really necessary. At the same time, one should accept the fact that
many of these nutritional substances may work psychologically, and,
if not overdone, can cause no harm.

The basic needed elements, besides a well-balanced diet, are water,
potassium and sodium chloride (salt). They are needed in hot weather
for increased energy output, comfort, and even as protection for life
itself. Yet some coaches still pride themselves on the spartan practice
of allowing no water or electrolyte solutions during practices, no matter
what the weather conditions.

Wheat germ has recurrently been used in many ways by athletes.
No harm probably has ever been done by a moderate amount of wheat
germ, so there is no reason not to use it (probably for psychological
reasons). There certainly is little scientific evidence that would lend
any support to its value. There are fairly large amounts of Vitamin E
in wheat germ, which shows that it may be helpful to the oxygen utiliza-
tion by the individual cells of the body, but scientific evidence on this
point is far from conclusive. Time will tell on the importance of Vita-
min E.

Numerous other nutritional and mineral substances have been used
and will be mentioned only to state that they are readily supplied by a
normal, adequate diet and need not be supplemented. They include
calcium, magnesium, phosphorus, lecithin, phosphates, sodium citrate
and bicarbonate, aspartic acid, coffee, tea, coke and gelatin. Most all
of these above-mentioned have very little or no relationship to increased

Q
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muscular performance in a well-conditioned, normally fed, and properly
hydrated athlete.

Psychological Ergogenic Aids-—Iv this area the most noteworthy
example would probably be hyprosis. It has been tried on numerous
occasions in almost every sport. Hypnosis is the ultimate in suggest-
ability and to a greater or lesser degree every coach tries to put inspira-
tional or positive suggestions intc an athlete’s head. (There is no par-
particular harm when hypnosis is done by a trained person who is not
unrealistic in his request of the subject when hypnotlzed but it has
highly questionable value in sports).

Actually, many of the previously mentioned substances probably have
their greatest effect because of psychological overtones. The human
being is highly subject to suggestion and can be easily influenced—
positively or negatively—by those around him, whether it be the coach,
the trainer or the team physician.

Pharmacological Ergogenic Aids (Drugs)—This category has to do
with the most dangerous and potentially harmful ergogenic aids. The
two main families abused in this category, the amphetamines and
anabolic-androgenic steroids, have been discussed previously.

There have been many other drugs and central nervous stimulants
and depressants, heart stimulants, muscle stimulants, and respiratory
stimulants, used or tried in athletics. A partial list would include caf-
feine, camphor, cocaine, tranquilizers, coramone, strychnine, metrazol,
digitalis, ronical, epinephrine, nitrites, cytochrome C, thiocyanate,
veratrum alkaloids, rauwolfia, hydralazine, thyroid extract, adrenal
cortical drugs and insulin. \

—3PREE =

This has been an attempt to cover a vast area in a limited space. It
appears clear that an intelligent and sound coach, an interested and
sincere trainer, a conscientious and concerned team physician, all com-
municating well with each other, can be a real “ergogenic aid” to any
athlete or group of athletes. The athletes know who is sincere and who
is not. They also should know that hard work, sweat, tears and sacri-
fice are necessary to produce the winning results they want. A good
training and conditioning program is still the safest and best ergogenic
aid.
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What Others are Saying

by Jim Bainbridge, San Francisco Examiner
San Francisco, Calif—There is a growing tendency toward a strong law
and order policy on drug use in college athletics. It is a problem that
has grown rapidly as a reflection of a large change within the culture.
It is a problem that, up to now, has gone nearly unchecked.
“If we are to be effective,” California team physician Dr. G. Jerome
Patmont said, “in enforcing controls on drug use we must have a source
of strength, someone who can enforce policy.”

by Joe Moackler, Des Moines Register and Tribune
Des Moines, Ia.—Several years ago, a major university football team
from the midwest played a game in high altitude country and won—
perhaps because of capsules filled with brown sugar.

The coach of the team had worried about the effect the thin air would
have on his players. The trainer decided what was needed was a
“psychological lift.”

The coach didn’t know about those capsules until after the victory
and none of the players knew what the capsules had contained.

“I’d sidle up to them, stick out my hand and whisper, “Take this, it’ll
give you a lift out there’,” the trainer disclosed.

“It worked. Some of them came back to me and wanted another, say-
ing the effects of the first one had worn off.

“The only trouble was that I had a heck of a time on the plane
coming home trying to convince some of them that there wasn’t any-
thing in those capsules but brown sugar—I'd loaded them myself.”

Even a seemingly harmless incident such as that worries leaders of
the National Collegiate Athletic Association (NCAA), who are waging
a concentrated battle against drug abuse by athletes.

“The fact that they would take those capsules without knowing
what’s in them scares me,” said Tom Hansen, an assistant director and
public relations chief of the NCAA . . ..
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What Others are Saying

by Dwight Chapin, Los Angeles Times
Los Angeles, Calif—Joe Antunovich has worked hard—very hard.

He is probably about two years away from his peak as a discus
thrower, but it’s very probable that in another year, after the Olympic
Games, he will put his discus on the shelf.

He does not hesitate to tell you why.

“You invest a'lot,” he says. “You make a commitment to reach your
potential and try to become the best in the world. You train awfully
hard for six or eight years and then you can’t get anywhere near the
best because of what others are doing. At that point, you either jump
on the bandwagon . . . or you quit.”

The latter option appears to be the better one to Antunovich, a man
who refuses to compromise his principles in many ways.

The bandwagon he is talking about is fueled by drugs, a subject he
discussed candidly.

“Steroids and amphetimines are reasons I don’t want to continue in
track and field,” Antunovich says. “Their use is going to multiply. I
shudder to think what is going to be happening in 10 years.

“A lot of Eastern European countries are giving these drugs to their
trackmen under the supervision of medical personnel, but it can’t be
proven. As far as I know, it’s almost impossible to detect the use of
anabolic-androgenic steroids.”

Antunovich, 23, of USC is a big man and a skilled man—the Pacific
8 champion in the discus.

He doesn’t take drugs but he says:

“Nobody would know it. In fact, I know a lot of people—including
people in track and field—look at a man my size and say. ‘A guy that
big MUST be taking something.’ ”

by C. €. Johnson Spink, Editor and Publisher, Sporting News

St. Louis, Mo.—The board of directors of the National Trainers Asso-
ciation will come out soon with z strong stand against the use of non-
therapeutic drugs in sports. Hopefully, this will be a major step in
breaking the chain of dope abuse by some of our athletes,
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What Others are Saying

Houston Post

Houston, Texas—The NCAA and the American Football Coaches Asso-
ciation were urged Tuesday to assume a leadership role in fighting the
spiraling use of drugs on college campuses.

A panel of experts told both their respective conventions that drugs
merely bypass the senses and have damaging effects and that good
training and condition routines are the safest and best programs for
better athletic performance.

by Joe Hendrickson, Pasadena Star News

Houston, Texas—The danger in the growing use of drugs on college
campuses was a matter for discussion in an interesting round table dis-
cussion Tuesday morning prior to the NCAA awards luncheon. Admiral
Tom Hamilton, the retiring Pac-Eight commissioner, in one of his last
acts as an NCAA member, keynoted the drug discussion by pleading
to those in charge of sports programs to take the lead in influencing
youth to reverse the growing use of drugs.

New York Times-Washington Post News Service
Dallas, Texas—The article in a national magazine put it in plain words:

“Drugs can kill sports.”

Dr. Martin Blazina, the UCLA athletic team physician, says that use
of drugs has spread to athletes as young as 14 or 15 years old.

There is no indication to what percentage of athletes might be doping
themselves. But people in key educational and medical positions are
worried.

Says Dr. Blazina:

“To me, the high school athlete is our area of greatest concern. Drugs
can have a profound effect on a growing person. Growth can be re-
stricted.”

Milwaukee Journal
Chicago, 11I. (AP)—Drugs are nc substitute for “good conditioning, ex-
cellent coaching and proper mental attitude” in athletics, says the team
physician for Ohio State University.

It is morally wrong and illegal to dope race horses but no rules exist
in American sports, Dr. Robert J. Murphy of Columbus told the Ameri-
can Medical Association convention Wednesday.
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NCAA Resolution on Drug Misuse and Abuse

A resolution which condemns the use of non-therapeutic drugs by any
of its member institutions was passed unanimously by the delegates to
the NCAA’s 65th Convention in Houston in January 1971. The
resolution:

WHEREAS, non-therapeutic drug usage described as doping is re-
ported to be on the increase in the general college and youth popula-
tions; and

WHEREAS, the NCAA always has been opposed to non-therapeutic
drug usage by student-athletes;

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the NCAA affirms
its unequivocal condemnation of the employment of non-therapeutic
drugs in any of its member institutions or affiliated organizations by
staff members who authorize or allow their student-athletes to use such
drugs and by student-athletes who do use such drugs;

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that all member institutions, their
athletic staffs and their student-athletes agressively assert their whole-
some influences in combating usage of non-therapeutic drugs among the
nation’s youth;

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that staff members or student-
athletes who use drugs in a non-therapeutic manner in any athletic pro-
gram are in violation of the principles of ethic_al conduct of the NCAA.

Ador..ed at NCAA Convention in January, 1971

NCAA Drug Education Committee

The Drug Education Committee of the National Collegiate Athletic
Association has produced this pamphlet to bring to coaches and athletes
the latest and best information available on the problem of drugs and
ergogenic aids in sports and in our saciety. Special assistance was given
by the Preventive Programs Division of the Bureau of Narcotics and
Dangerous Drugs.

A four-man committee has launched an active in-depth drug educa-
tion program for the NCAA. Chairman of the group is Robert W.
Pritchard, director of athletics at Worcester Polytechnic Institute, Wor-
cester, Massachusetts, who launched the NCAA Drug Education pro-
gram in 1969. Other members of the Committee are Dr. Donald L.
Cooper, former Olympic team physician and currently team physician
nt Shlahoma State University;, Admiral Thomqs Hamilton, USN, Ret.,
Emccently retired as Executive Director of te Pacific-8 Conference;
s imes H. Wilkinson of the NCAA Executive Office staff.

99.749 O -73 -6
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Why a Drug Pamphlet for Coaches?

Dear Coach:

As a coach, you should arm your-
self with as much information on
the drug problem as possible. We
want you to be able to “"rap” with
youth. Understanding is the basis
of all soiutions. To recognize the
symptoms and evidence of drug
usage, one must know the tell-tale
signs of experimentation and re-
alize someone is in trouble.

Further, how do you handle
these problems? To whom do you
talk? In whom should you confide?
How do you react—do you kick the
boy off the squad, or is that the
worst thing you can do? We think
this pamphlet will be helpful to
you.

Robert W. Pritchard

Chairman, NCAA Drug Education
Committee '
Worcester Polytechnic Institute

Other Committee members:
Donald L. Cooper, M.D.
Oklahoma State University
Hardin Jones, Ph.D. '
University of California, Berkeley
Alan Hart, Trainer

Ohio State University

James H. Wilkinson, NCAA

Gentlemen:

Millions of Americans, young
and old, who participate in sports
of all kinds have been justly proud
of their sportsmanship.

Today, a problem has arisen in a
"":"G"‘;"y of athletes. The “win at

any cost” attitude has caused them
to turn to the use of drugs in an
attempt to increase performance.
This has sometimes resulted in
injury to athletes. However, even if
no apparent physical harm results,
the damage to the athlete, ethi-
cally and psychologically, can be
severe. And the damage to the
American concept of sportsman-
ship may be irreparable if such
misuse of drugs continues and in-
creases. :

Coaches, whether they work
with high school or college youth,
professional athletes or little
league youngsters, are educators
and builders of character. It is not
enough to say, “I never permit my
boys to use drugs.” I urge you to
take the next step: To personally
commit yourself to educating youth
in the proper use of drugs, and to
seek help for the few on your team
who may need it.

The available evidence indicates
that there is no real advantage for
the athlete who tries to increase
ability through drugs. The medical
profession, coaches and trainers
throughout the world consider it
unsound and unethical to utilize
drugs to try to enhance athletic
capability. I ask you to make that
extra effort to see that our youth
escape the trap which drugs
present to them. They, and our
country, need your help.

John Ingersoll, Director
Bureau of Narcotics and Dangerous
Drugs.
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Drugs and Athletics

Randy Matson, perhaps the greatest weight thrower in the history of
track and field and currently the world record-holder in the shot put,
said he tried anakolic-androgenic steroids in 1964 and 1965.

This type of steroid has been used by athletes to supposedly make
them grow stronger and gain weight at a faster rate.

“"But I didn't see any outstanding results when I took the drugs,”
Matson said. "I didn't gain any weight; I didn’t throw farther with them,
as far as | could tell, so I stopped using them.”

He then set the world record in the shot put of 71'5%"* in 1967.

“Of all the people taking them, the world record holder in the shot put
doesn’t use them,” commented Dr, Donald L. Cooper, a former Olympic
team physician and team physician at Oklahoma State University. “A
lot of weight men are getting bigger, but this doesn’t mean they're get-
ting quicker and stronger. If they are, then why aren’t they catching
Matson?”

Seeking to improve their athletic performance, athletes have experi-
mented with an endless variety of drugs. Based on scientific evidence,
however, it is difficult to find anyone who has been safely improved.

The taking of pharmacological aids has proved to be a hazardous ven-
ture for some—leading to permanent injury and death. Yet to be known
are the long-range effects that drugs might cause.

There are still many unanswered questions in the area of the
athlete and drugs. A lot of the conflicting beliefs are not based on
scientific evidence but on personal belief. It is the hope of all
those concerned with this problem that some basic facts may be
established and that the fundamental principles of human physi-
ology will be understood. The final answers are not yet available,
but to a great extent what coaches and athletes do in the next few
years can set the pattern for the expanding and continued growth
of excellent athletic programs.
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Some Basic Concepts

"Hope always springs eternally that someone will find something that
will make the weak stronger, the slow faster and the dull brighter.
There’s one overriding fact that I think should be continually reempha-
sized: To our knowledge, a normal, well-fed human being can never bec
safely improved upon by any drug.”

Dr. Donald L. Cooper
Olympic Team Physician—Mexico City, 1968
Team Physician, Oklahoma State University

The entire area of ergogenic aids and drugs always has fascinated
people. Human beings are notoriously on the prowl for a “gimmick” or
“an easy way” or that “special something extra.” There are generally no
shortcuts to an exceilent performance, but apparently it is man's nature
to keep striving for help—"a fair advantage.”

The imagination can be challenged by the definition of the word “er-
gogenic.” It is short, yet unlimited. According to Dorland’s Hlustrated
Medical Dictionary, it is defined simply as "anything tending to increase
work output.”

Within the broau limits of this definition there are many shady areas
in the consideration of ergogenic aids and drugs. The more they are ex-
plored, the more complicated and conflicting are the reports.

History of Drugs in Athletics

In sports, the first recorded death from drug usage was in the late
1890's, when a British cyclist died from using ephedrine. This kind of
tragic occurrence has been repeated with numerous drugs on several
gccasions since. One consistency has been demonstrated throughout:
more losers use drugs than winners. The drug users know they have not
made the proper effort in training and are far more prone to look for the
“gimmick"” or artificial help that isn’t there.

No country officially encourages the use of ergogenic drugs in its ath-
letic programs. The British are a great deal more prudish and hard-
nosed than most. They state that the taking of any chemical substance
not normally present in the body and not playing an essential role in a
healthy person competing in athletics falls in the category of “doping.”

For a more practical approach and definition of substance misuse, one
should refer to the ruling of the International Amateur Athletic Federa-
tion (track anrd field) which states that no agent that stimulates muscles
and nerves, w! ich paralyzes the sense of fatigue, or which is habit form-
ing, should be used.

Any definition of what such agents specifically will or will not do can
create many unanswerable questions. Certainly, no coach wants to
harm apy of his athletes, but each would like to possess the magic key
to assun% optimum performance by his squad.
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What Can a Coach Do?

As most coaches are aware, theyv are a force of great influence. They
also have a great responsibility.

If you notice a young person manifesting definite changes and secre-
tiveness that makes vou suspect problems in the drug area, it is best to
approach him directly as a concerned person. You should be mere inter-
ested in him as a person and iess interested in the particular drug or
chemical he may be abusing. It is difficult but important to confront him
directly as to your concern and ask him to talk about his problems. It is
probably better to go to the person involved first and tell him before you
g0 to his parents or to the authorities. This latter may be the only av-
enue to follow, but the person should be told what you plan to do.

‘On the importance of counseling, Kennath S. Clarke, Ph.D., formerly
of the American Academy of Orthopaedic Surgeons, and now a professor
at Mankato State, expressed some thoughts nearly two years ago which
are valid today.

The coach, said Dr. Clarke, “must take his counselor role seriously
and not give tacit approval to dabbling (in drugs) by turning his back on
the problem. Research has demonstrated that the attitude of the coach
concerning health and safety matters is a strong influence on the atti-
tudes of his athletes—and he should use it. The saying goes, ‘If you're
not part of the solution, you're part of the problem.’

“What remains is to tell it the way it really is to athletes—that drug
dabbling is far more apt to erode than enhance their normal capabilities
in sports—and then put one’s efforts doggedly into the ethics and com-
petence of their leadership, medical and non-medical, for the enforce-
ment. Drug dabbling should be approached frankly, honestly, relying on
the personal discipline that is asked for in coach’s counseling on tobacco,
alcohol, sportsmanship and other such practices during the young ath-
lete’s formative years.”

Recognition of the Drug User

The problem of recognition of the drug user or abuser can be compli-
cated. The person who begins to show personality changes or who with-
draws from his usual activities may be suspect. It has been shown that
drug abusers frequently will miss classes, especially physical activity
classes. They will begin to do work in the classroom that is below their
previous performance levels. Many of the young people lose their long-
t&rm goals and seem to show less ambition. More specific examples:
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Inability to coordinate, standing or walking.
Muddled speech.

Impaired judgment (barbiturate user).
Rapid pulse.

. Restlessness.

Jittery.

. Muscular twitches.
. Heavy sweating and bad breath (hallmarks of amphetamine

abuse).

. Nervous, highly talkative, over-active, possibly hostile, ag-

gressive and paranoid behavior (amphetamine).

. Marijuana abuse:

Acute effects—-
. red eyes are fairly common symptoms
. may begin to miss gym class and then other classes
. increased appetite with special craving for sweets
Persisting effects—
. clunrsiness
. lowered attention span
. regular user is apathetic, listless and careless about his
personal habits
may lead to lack of motivation and loss of long-term
goals
. may have recognizable odor on their person
Pmpomt pupils—could be heroin or another narcotic abuse.
Chills.
Needlemarks on arms and legs. Addicts often wear long-
sleeved sweaters, even in summer, to both keep warm and hide
scars.
A person’s language (his jargon} may indicate he uses drugs.
Episodes of stupor and incoherent speech may indicate pos-
sible acute LSD intoxication.

Two Drug Families Athletes Abuse

Amphetamines

(Am - fet’ - ah - min)—used to stimulate the central
nervous system, increase blood pressure, reduce appetite,
and reduce nasal congestion (Dorland’s Illustrated Medical
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Other Names: Pep pills, bennies, wake-ups, eye-openers, lid poppers,
co-pilots, truck drivers, peaches, roses, hearts, cartwheels, whites, coast
to coast, LA turnabouts, browns, footballs, greenies, bombido, oranges,
dexies, jelly-beans, A’s, jellie babies, sweets, beans, uppers, #7hedrine,
crystal.

Amphetamines are the “paradoxical” drugs. Athletes have taken
them for years to supposedly run faster, pump harder or jump higher,
but in reality they may have a reverse effect. When an athlete takes an
amphetamine he may think his performance is superb but in reality he
probably is doing worse. From a scientific point of view, soine studies
are in conflict. There are some poorly controlled studies which claim
that in solo type activities, amphetamines may be able to iiicrease per-
formance very slightly. However, well-controlled studies show that the
athlete will do no better and in many cases does worse. In the limited
number of tests that have been done on large groups of athletes, it was
in the losers that amphetamines were found.

Amphetamines are chemical substances that primarily affect the cen-
tral nervous system. They are used to attempt to speed up nerve-muscle
reaction.

The amphetamines lessen a person’s ability to recognize possible dan-
gerous fatigue sensations, constrict blood vessels, and suppress appetite
by stimulating the central nervous system. They can be highly dan-
gerous. They can also cause dangerous heat buildup in the body by the
non-recognition of fatigue.

Depending on dosage, individual sensitivity and certain other factors,
amphetamines:

e Can mask or hide the protective signs of dangerous fatigue.

e Delay pulse and respiration recovery time after exertion.

e Can be highly toxic.

e Have been known to cause physical dependency if taken regu-
larly over varying periods of time, depending on the individual
user. (Physical dependency occurs when a user suffers withdrawal
symptoms.)

e May lead to varying degrees of psychological dependency by the
user after continuous and prolonged administration. This in turn
may lead to aggressive and anti-social behavior. If a user stops
taking them, he may become very depressed and have difficulty
performing routine tasks. Large doses may produce profound
behavioral effects, such as psychosis.

e Produce states of nervousness, acute anxiety and insomnia as
the dosage is increased.

e May be associated with aggressive, hostile, paranoid behavior
on the part of the user.
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Anabolic-Androgenic Steroids

(an’" ah-bol’ ik)—pertaining to, characteristic of,
promoting anabolism, or constructive metabolism.

(an’’ dro-jen’ ik)—producing masculine characteristics.

(ste’ roid)—A group name of compounds which resemble
cholesterol chemically. Some of the substances included in
the group are the sex hormones, cardiac aglycones, bile
acids, sterols proper, toad poisons, saponins, and some of
the carcinogenic hydrocarbons. (Dorland’s Illustrated Med-
ical Dictionary.)

The anabolic-androgenic steroids (synthetic mal> sex hormones)
which resemble chemically and functionally the male sex hormones, are
taken by athletes with the intent of gaining weight and strength. Many
athletes think that increased body weight results in increased muscular
strength.

Perhaps the best existing document on the subject was published in
1966 in the Journal of Applied Physiology by Dr. William M. Fowler,
dJr., then of the UCLA Medical School ar:d now at the University of Cali-
fornia, Davis.

In a double blind (neither the subject nor the researcher knew who
was taking the active tablet) controlled study, eight took the placebo
(sugar pill), nine took the anabolic-androgenic steroid, ten took the pla-
cebo and exercised, while ten took the drug and exercised.

Summarized, Fowler found that the drug did increase weight, but that
much of it was due to fluid retention and did not necessarily resuit in an
increase in strength. The increase in strength was in direct correlation
to the amount of hard work and exercise, whether taken by a drug user
or a non-user. The only way to make a muscle fiber get larger and
stronger is to overload and fatigue it.

The tests were conducted by giving normal dosages. Some athletes
take much greater dosages. In those quantities (and even in normal
quantities) it has been shown that the drug can be dangerous for many
people. It is nearly impossible to do research in amounts greater than
the recommended dosages. The problem of liability then becomes very
real. Anabolic-androgenic steroids have been known to cause:

o Premature closure of the growing plates in the long bones in
younger athletes. The younger the athlete when taking the drug,
the greater the probability his growth actually will be stunted.

o l.iver damage (chemical hepatitis).

e Prostatic hypertrophy (enlarged prostate gland).

o Testicular atrophy (testicles shrink in size).

e Aggravation and stimulation of the growth of any pre-existing
cancers or hormone sensitive tumors.




Why Drugs?

A New Theory on Drug Action

Dr. Hardia Jones, a research physiologist at the University of Califor-
nia, Berkeley, has spent the last seven years primarily in drug research
and has developed some interesting new theories. He has concluded that
almost all of the drugs taken recreationally and experimentally by
human beings have their primary action in the various pleasure and
sensual centers of the brain. Man is basically a pleasure-seeking animal
and to one degree or another will pursue things that give him pleasure.
Most people use various drugs and chemicals because they like the ef-
fect on their central nervous system. They take them, at least initially,
because they make them feel good and they enjoy the feeling.

One of the problems is that most of the chemicals or drugs alsc ::ave
secondary toxic or damaging effects which create permanent damage.
This is best illustrated by what the heroin addict describes as the “main
line,” or giving himself the drug directly into his vein. It is usually de-
scribed as a sexual pleasure sensatien and unfortunately, after repeated
usage, the drug can damage the pleasure centers so that they no longer
can get normal pleasure registered in these damaged areas.

Dr. Thaddeus Mann in Cambridge, England, has also discovered sim-
ilar effects. He suggests that if Romeo had had hashish, he would have

“ had no need for Juliet! This explains to some extent why we have such a
poor recovery rate from drug addiction. The person has damaged his
pleasure center cells enough that the only way he can get any pleasure
is to return to drug usage even after he has gone through withdrawal
and is no longer using any drugs. This helps explain why drugs can be a
one-way trip to entrapment.
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A Summary of Drug Facts

Normal is Best

A notion in this country, and all over the world, is that there are "su-
per” drugs, osr miracle drugs that can do things for people that they can't
do for themselves. One thing should be made clear: There is no drug
that can safely make anyvbody better than normal. If one has a normally
functioning liver, adrenal gland, brain, nerve-muscle complex or heart,
there is ne drug that can make them better. The only time to use drugs
or any kind of chemical substance is when a diseased, injured or defi-
ciency state exists.

By the time they are 20, today’s children will have watched approxi-
mately 15,000 hours of television. During this time they will have seen
numerous commerciais telling them that drugs can calm their stomach,
quiet their nerves, clear their complexion, improve their performance
and relieve their aches and pains. They grow up thinking drugs are the
answer. Society has created this culture, in a sense, and the medical pro-
fession has had a part in it. Drug manufacturers and salesmen must
also share the responsibility for furthering the illusion that drugs are
the best solutiorn: to people’s problems. )

Drugs do have a very necessary application. Prior to the use of insu-
lin, a diabetic had a very short lifespan. With insulin, he has a near-
normal life expectancy. Still, the diabetic is not as good as the normal
individual whose functioning pancreas manufactures its own insulin. A
healthy, normal body is best.

Body Pollution

There is an aggressive, active ecology movement in this country—
regarding the pollution of rivers, streams and air, but not enough people
worry about perhaps the greatest ecology problem of them all—the pol-
lution of the body! In a sense, this is what happens when any type of an
unnecessary chemical substance is taken. Ir the diseased, injured or de-
ficiency states, drugs can be beneficial. Otherwise, they are poliutants.

The body is an incomparable, beautiful piece of machinery with its
own industrial plants and waste removal facilities. Children need to be
taught at an early age to have respect for their physiological systems.
Older people, of necessity, must also show respect for their bodies.

Power of the Mind

Much can be done by learning to better use our minds and powers of
cerebration. The power of the human mind to affect the well being of the
body is amazing, but unfortunately the potential of this power has not

@ "illy develeped. It is intriguing that yogis can sit and contemplate

°
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their navels, slowing their pulse rates to 30 beats per minute through
sheer concentration. There is a great deal to learn in this area of mind
over matter.

It is not out of reason to expect that some day the school systems will
offer courses teaching children how to “turn on” with their minds. It cer-
tainly will be a lot safer than dumping harmful chemicals into their
bodies to "turn on.”

It is important to keep in mind that the idea that something
miraculous in terms of living will come from drug usage is false.
Drugs create illusions but such illusions or fantasies never solve
any of life’s problems and, in fact, drugs damage the long-term
health of the body. A real feeling of worth and a person’s true
image of himself comes only whicn he accepts and works within
reality.

Ergogenic Aids

There are four general categories of ergogenic aids—aids used by ath-
letes to supposedly increase their performance.

Physical and Mechanical—-One of the most common aids used to sup-
posedly increase work potential is oxygen. If one inhales oxygen prior to
an event, it has been fairly well shown that it has no effect on work per-
formance, speed, running ability or rate of recovery. If, however, oxygen
can be given during the exercise period itself, workloads can be main-
tained for longer periods of time. Here is one of the areas that are still to
be defined.

For instance, during a football or basketball game, is it wrony; to have
oxygen available at the sidelines? At a higher altitude many coaches
will insist on it. The hest scientific evidence says it is of little real value,
because oxygen cannot be stored and can last no longer than two or
three minutes unless the person can breathe it all the time. Of course;
there may be some psychological help. The power of suggestion is great.

There are other physical ergogenic aids. The use of “negative ioniza-
tion” and ultra-violet rays have been investigated and no evidence of
increased ability or strength were shown, but some researchers felt the
sense of well-being might be increased—suggested psychological assis-
tance.

Massage could be considered a mechanical form of ergogenic aid and
it has been shown to speed recovery from fatigue slightly, but no evi-
dence of increased strength or performance can ke demonstrated.

Exercise rituals would have to be considered mechanical ergogenic
aids. Isometrics, isotonics, weight lifting and exercise stations all in-
crease strength and possible work capacity in direcu relatienship to the
amount of hard, demanding and persistent work done. A good condi-
tioning and varied training program is the best and safest ergogenic aid
Q wn to date.

10
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Nutritional Ergogenic Aids—Probably no area of ergogenic aids has
rec: “ved more ~ttention than this one. When Herb Elliott, the Austra-
lian distance star, was eating oats and seaweed, many aspi.ing track
stars were trying to consume the same crop :_erb Elliott also worked
hard, ran a lot and ate a lot of normal, wholesome, well-balanced food.

Protein and amino acid supplements hav~ been menrtioned for years,
but most scientific evidence shows that a well-balanced diet will supply
all of the protein and essentia! amino acids necessary for any athlete. In
fact, the major work in this area showed that a high protein diet re-
quires as much as five per cent more oxygen for its metabolism; there-
fore, a persistent diet of this type was detrimental. This factor, along
with the problem uf digestion, should prompt an examination of the con-
tents of the pre-contest diet.

All the scientific evidence seems to show that the excessive use of vi-
tamins is over-rated. Americans put out the most expensive urine in the
world. It is bright yellow, loaded with excreted vitamins. A well-bal-
anced diet of fresh, well-prepared food wiil supply all the vitamins
really necessary. At the same time, one should accept the fzct that
many of these nutritional subs. .nces may work psych-logically, and, if
not overdone, .an cause no harm,

The basic needed elements, besides a well-balanced diet, are water,
potassium and sodium chloride (salt). They i:re needed in hot weather
for incieased energy output, comfort, and even as protection for life it-
self. Yet some coaches still pride themselves on the spartan practice of
allowing no water or electrolyte solutions during practices, no mutter
what the weather conditions.

Wheat germ has recurrently been used in many ways by athletes. No
harm probably has ever been done by a moderate amount of wheat
germ, so there is no reason not to use it (probably for psychological rea-
sons). There certainly is little scientific «vidence that would lend any
support to its value. There are fairly large amounts of Vitamin E in
wheat germ, which shows that it may be helpful to the oxygen utiliza-
tion by the individual cells of the body, but scientific evidence on this
point is far from conclusive. Time will tell on the importance of Vitamin
E.

Numerous other nutritional and mineral substances have been used
and will be mentioned only to state that they are readily supplied by a
normal, adequate diet and need not be supplemented. They include cal-
cium, magnesium, phosphorus, lecithin, phosphates, sodium citrate and
bicarbonate, aspartic acid, coffee, tea, coke and gelatin. Nearly all of
these have very little or no relationship to increased m iscular perform-
ance in a well-conditioned, normally fed and properly hydrated athlete.

Psychological Ergogenic Aids—In this area the most notewourthy ex-
ample would probably be hypnosis. It has been tried on numerous occa-
siong in glmost every sport. Hypnosis is the ultimate in suggestability
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and to a greater or lesser degree every coach tries to put inspirational or
positive suggestions into an athlete’s head. (There is no particular harm
when hypnosis is done by a trained person who is not unrealistic in his
request of the subject when hypnotized, but it hus highly questionable
value in sports).

Actually, many of the previously mentioned substances probably have
their greatest eftect because of psychological overtones. The human
being is highly subject to suggestion and can be easily influenced—posi-
tively or negatively—by those around him, whether it be the coach, the
trainer or the team physician.

Pharmacological Ergogenic Aids (Drugs)—This category has to do with
the most dangerous and potentially harmful ergogenic aids. The two
main families abused in this category, the amphetamines and anabolic-
androgenic steroids, have been discussed previously.

There have been-many other drugs and central nervous stimulants
and depressants, heart stimulants, muscle stimulants and respiratory
stimulants used or tried in athletics. A partial list would include caf-
feine, camphor, cocaine, tranquilizers, coramone, strychnine, metrazol,
digitalis, roniacal, epinephrine, nitrites, cytochrome C, thiocyanate,
veratrum alkaloids, rauwolfia, hydralazine, thyroid extract, adrenal
cortical drugs and insulin.

This has been an attempt to cover a vast area in a limited space.
It appears clear that an intelligent and sound coach, an interested

and sincere traifier, a concientious and concerned team physi-
cian, all communicating well with each other, can be a real “ergo-
genic aid” to any athlete or group of athletes. The athletes know
who is sincere and who is not. They also should know that hard
work, sweat, self-discipline and sacrifice are necessary to pro-
duce the winning results they want. A good training and condi-
tioning program is still the safest and best ergogenic aid.

—— P
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What Others Are Saying

by Jim Bainbridge, San Francisco Examiner
San Francisco, Calif.-—There is a growing tendency Loward a strong lav
and order policy on drug use in college athletics. It is a problem that ha-
grown rapidly as a reflection of a large change within the culture.

It is a problem that, up to now, has gone nearly unchecked.

"If we are to be effective,” California team physician Dr. G. Jerome
Patmont said, "in enforcing controls on drug use we must have a source
of strength. someone who can enforce policy.”

by Jim Moackler, Des Moines Register and Tribune

Des ‘Moines. la.—Several years ago, a major universily football team
from the midwest played a game in high altitude conntry and won—
perhaps because of capsules filled with brown sugar.

The coach of the team had worried about the effect the thin air would
have on his players. The trainer decided what was needed was a “psy-
chological lift.”

The coach didn’t know about those capsules until after the victory and
none of the players knew what the capsules had contained.

“I'd sidle up to them, stick out my hand and whisper, ‘Take this, it’l}
give you a lift out there,’” the trainer disclosed.

“It worked. Some of them came back to nmie and wanted another,
saying the effects of the first one had worn off.

*“The only trouble was that [ had a heck of a time on the plane coming
home trying to convince some of them that there wasn’t anything in
those capsules but brown sugar—I'd loaded them myself.”

Even a seemingly harmless incident such as that worries leaders of
the National Collegiate Athletic Association (NCAA), who are waging a
concentrated battle against drug abuse by athletes.

“The fact that they would take those capsules without knowing what'’s
in them scares me,” said Tom Hansen, an assistant executive director of
the NCAA ....”

ERIC
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What Others Are Saying

by Dwight Chapin, Los Angeles Times
Los Angeles, Calif.—Joe Antunovich has worked hard—very hard.

He is probably about two years away from his peak as a discus
thrower, but it's very probable that in another year, after the Olympic
Games, he will put his discus on the shelf.

He does not hesitate to tell you why.

“You invest a lot,” he says. "You make a commitment to reach your
potential and try to become the best in the world. You train awfully
hard for six or eight years and then you can’t get anywhere near the
best because of what others are doing. At that point, you either jump on
the bandwagon ... or you quit.”

The latter option appears to be the better one to Antunovich, a man
who refuses to compromise his principles in many ways.

The bandwagon he is talking about is fueled by drugs, a subject he
discussed candidly. :

“Steroids and amphetamines are reasons I don’t want to continue in
track and field,” Antunovich says, “Their use is going to multiply. 1
shudder to think what is going to be happening in 10 years.

“A lot of Eastern European countries are giving these drugs to their
trackmen under the supervision of medical personnel, but it can’t be
proven. As far as I know, it’s almost impossible to detect the use of
anabolic-androgenic steroids.”

Antunovich, 23, of USC is a big man and a skilled man—the Pacific 8
champion in the discus. _

He dcesn’t take drugs but he says:

“Nobody would know it. In fact, | know a lot of people—including
people in track and field—look at a man my size and say, ‘A guy that
big MUST be taking something.’ ”

by C. C. Johnson Spink, Editor and Publisher, Sporting News

St. Louis, Mo.—The board of directors of the National Trainers Associa-
tion will come out soon with a strong stand against the use of non-ther-
apeutic drugs in sports. Hopefully, this will be a major step in breaking
the chain of dope abuse by some of our athletes.
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What Others Are Saying

Houston Post

Houston, Texas—The NCAA and the American Football Coaches Asso-
ciation were urged Tuesday to assume a leadership role in fighting the
spiraling use of drugs on college campuses.

A panel of experts told both their respective conventions that drugs
merely bypass the senses and have damaging effects and that good
training and condition routines are the safest and best programs for
better athletic performances.

by Joe Hendrickson, Pasadena Stai- News

Houston, Texas—The danger in the growing use of drugs on college
campuses was a matter for discussion in an interesting round table dis-
cussion Tuesday morning prior to the NCAA awards luncheon. Admiral
Tom Hamilton, the retiring Pac-Eight commissioner, in one of his last
acts as an NCAA member, keynoted the drug discussion by pleading to
those in charge of sports programs to take the lead in influencing youth
to reverse the growing use of drugs.

" New York Times- Washmgton Post News Seruvice
Dallas, Texas—The article in a national magazine put it in plain words:

“Drugs can kill sports.”

Dr. Martin Blazina, the UCLA athletic team physician, says that use
of drugs has spread to athletes as young as 14 or 15 years old.

There is no indication to what percentage of athietes might be doping
themselves. But people in key educational and medical positions are
worried.

Says Dr. Blazina:

“To me, the high school athlete is our area of greatest concern. Drugs
can have a profound effect on a growing person. Growth can be re-
stricted.”

Milwaukee Journal
Chicago, Ill. (AP)—Drugs are no substitute for “good conditioning, ex-
cellent coaching and proper mental attitude” in athletics, says the team
physician for Ohio State University.

It is morally wrong and illegal to dope race horses but no rules exist
in American sports, Dr. Robert J. Murphy of Columbus told the Amer-
ican Medical Association convention Wednesday.

[Kc 15
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Summary of Federal, State Drug Laws

The Federal Government has been actively engaged in establishing a
rational system of drug controls by consolidating drug control measures.
The "Comprehensive Drug Abuse Prevention and Control Act of 1970,”
which came into full effect on May 1. 1971. is the result of these efforts.

The system of penalties contained in this comprehensive legislation
provides a needed balance between the penalties to be applied to the
drug trafficker and those to be applied to the simple possessor of drugs.
These penalty provisions are based on the severity of the offense and the
potential for abuse of the particular drug involved.

Today, the Federal penalty for the unlawful possession of controlled
drugs forone's own use is not more than one year (a misdemeanor) and
a procedure for expungement of record is available for first offenders
who successfully complete probation: The Federal penalty for unlawful
sale of controlled drugs ranges from not more than 5 years for most de-
pressants, stimulants and marijuana, to not more than 15 years for sale
of heroin. .

In August of 1970, the Commissioners on Uniform State Laws
adopted a comprehensive state drug control act which is similar in con-
trol and penalty features to the new federal law. As of April 1972, this
Uniform State Act has been adopted by 30 states and many cther states
are considering such legislation. Most states that have enacted the Uni-
form State Act have adopted a misdemeanor penalty for a first offense of
simple possession of controlled drugs.

As a practical matter, most drug offenses are prosecuted by state and
local authorities rather than federally. In rare cases, when international
or interstate aspects are present, or when federal agents are involved in
cases involving large scale traffickers, federal prosecution will be under-
taken.
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NCAA Resolution on Drug Misuse and Abuse

A resolution which condemns the use of non-therapeutic drugs by any

of its member institutions was passed unanimously by the delegates to

~ the NCAA’s 65th Convention in Houston in January 1971. The resolu-
tion:

WHEREAS, non-therapeutic drug usage described as doping is re-
ported to be on the increase in the general college and youth popula-
tions; and

WHEREAS, the NCAA always has been opposed to non-therapeutic
drug usage by student-athletes;

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the NCAA affirms its
unequivocal condemnation of the employment of non-therapeutic drugs
in any of its member institutions or affiliated organizations by staff
members who authorize or allow their student-athletes to use such
drugs and by student-athletes who do use such drugs;

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that all member institutions, their
athletic staffs and their student-athletes aggressively assert their
wholesome influences in combating usage of non-therapeutic drugs
among the nation’s youth;

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that staff members or student-ath-
letes who use drugs in a non-therapeutic manner in any athletic pro-
gram are in violation of the principles of ethical conduct of the NCAA.

Adopted at NCAA Convention in January 1971

NCAA Drug Education Committee

The Drug Education Committee of the National Collegiate Athletic
Association has produced this pamphlet to bring to coaches and athletes
the latest and best information available on the problem of drugs and
ergogenic aids in sports and in our society. Special assistance was given
by the Preventive Programs Division of the Bureau of Narcotics and
Dangerous Drugs.

A four-man committee launched an active in-depth drug education
program for the NCAA. Chairman of the group is Robert W. Pritchard,
director of athletics at Worcester Polytechnic Institute, Worcester, Massa-
chusetts, who launched the NCAA Drug Education program in 1970.
Current members of the Conunittee are Dr. Donald L. Cooper, former
Olympic team physician and currently team physician at Oklahoma State
University; Hardin Jones, Ph.D., research physiologist at the University
of California at Berkeley; Alan Hart, head trainer at Ohio State Univer-

E lK‘lCLd James H. Wilkinson of the NCAA Executive Office staff.

IText Provided by ERIC



ERIC

Aruitoxt provided by Eic:



E

{Iixhibit £}
INTERSCHOLASTIC SOUNDINGS

A column by the National Interschiolnstic Swimming Coaches
Associntion of Ameriea by Walt Anderson, 1316 Clifton. Rediands,
Calif,, Past President NISCA 19535-57; past member of the Execu-
tive Committee of NISCA.

The NCAY, in its continning attemprs towards looking out for the health
and welfare of the individual athletes competing in collegiate athleties, has
published a pamphlet that should be requived reading for every coach in the
country. It's a short pamphlet on drugs; easy to read. free of detailed techni-
cal terminology, and filled with the kind of questions and answers a eoach needs
today.

The pace of the publication is set on page one with an open letter to coaches
written by Robert W. Pritchard, c¢hairman, NCAA Drug Education Committee,
Worcester Polytechnic Institute. It reads as follows and is a direet quote:

“DEAR ('0ACH : As a coaeh you should arm yourself with as much information
on the drug problem as you possibly ean. We want youn to be able to ‘rap' with
youth, Understanding is the basis of all solutions. To recognize the symptoms
and evidence of drug usage, one must know the tell-tale signs of experimenta-
tion and realize someone is in trouble.

“Turther, how do you handie these problems? To whom do you talk? In
whom should yon confide? How do you react—do you kick the boy off the
squad, or is that the worst thing ycu can do? We think this pamphlet will be
helpful to you."

Soundings feels it is not helpful but that it is one of the most inmiportant
coaching aids in print today becanse of the changing attitudes and lifestyles
facing today's modern athlete. After reading the publication, your columnist
was impressed by the way the drug problem. as it most frequently involves the
athlete, is brought into perspective. There is no moralizing. Straight fact, proof
through research. and statements by fumous athletes and coaches pervade
throughout the fifteen fascinating pages.

It contains a series of brief looks at the history of drugs in athletics, what
a coach can do, recognition of the drug user, and the two drug families that
athletes abuse—the amphetamines :«nd the anabolic-androgenic steroids. The
former inciudes drugs commonly called pep pilis, bennies, eye-openers, lid pop-
pers. uppers. browns. whites, ete. The latter are synthetic male hormones that
are taken by some athletes with the intent of gaining weight and strength.
The pamphler tells of the best existing dnchment on the subject that was pub-
lished in the 1968 Journal of Applied Physiology by Dr. William M. Fowler,
JIr., then of the UCLA Medical School and now at the University of California
ht Davis. -

Since conches exert sneh a great force of influence, Kenneth 8. Clarke, Ph.D.,
n professor at Mankato State. says in the hooklet that the coach “must take
his counselor role seriously and not give taeit approval to dabbling (in drugs)
by turning his back on the problerm. Research hus demonstrated that the atti-
tude of the coach concerning health and safety matters is a strong influence
on the attitudes of his athietes~and he should use if.

“What remains is to tell it the way it really is to athletes—that drug dabbling
is far more apt to erode than enhance their nerinal capabilities in sport—and
then put oncs efforts doggedly into the ethies and comnpetence of their leader-
ship. medical and non-medical. for enfeorement. Drug dabbling should be ap-
proached frankiy. honestly. relying cn the personal discipline that is asked
for in coach’s counseling on tobacen. aleohel, sportsmanship and other practices
during the young athlete’'s formative years.

Copies of the bonklet may be obtained frem the National Colleginte Athletie
Assncintion. 1221 Baltimore, Kansas City, Missouri, 64105. They cost 25 cents

per copy.
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- nsnn
NET DRUGS

“Hope always springs eternally that someone
will find something that will make the weak
stronger, the slow faster and the dull brighter.
There's one overriding fact that I think should
be continually reemphasized: To our knowl-
edge, a normal, well-fed human being can
never be safely improved upon by a drug.”

Dr. Donald L. Cooper

Olympic Team Physician, Mexico City, 1968
Team Physician, Oklahoma State University -

This pamphlet is published by the National Collegi-
ate Athletic Association in cooperation with the
Fiesta Bowl, the National Federation of State High
Schoo! Associations and the Bureau of Narcotics and

" Dangerous Drugs.

© 1972, Natfonal Collegiate Athletic. Association
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A Discussion of Drug Abuse
for Athletes and Parents

By Hardin Jones, Ph.D.
University of California, Berkeley

A notion in this country and all over the world is
that there are “super” drugs, or miracle drugs that
can do things for people that they can't do for them-
selves. One thing should be made clear: There is no
drug that can safely make anybody better than nor-
mal.

Athletes may be approached to become involved
with sensual psychoactive drugs, now commonly used

"for pleasure through intoxication, hallucination, stim-

ulation or sedation. Millions of young men are in-
volved in suzh experimentation, and many have de-
veloped a form of drug dependency or have incurred
health and mental impairments. Drug abuse is so
widespread that no person can afford to be unpre-
pared to face social pressures to try drugs. Those
who have hecome involved are always surprised to
find that their exposure to drug-taking comes
through friends—usually a clogse friend.

® Athletes may be offered the use of stimulant
medications as a means of overcoming drowsiness
and fatigue, and perhaps use them under the erron-
eous assumption that these stimulants increase speed
and strength.

¢ Sometimes tranquilizers are used to quiet the
natural pre-performance tensions. The use of tran-
quilizer drugs may calm, but they also certainly sup-
press the ability to mobilize the adrenal hortnones
during athletic performance. -

¢ Stimulant drugs do end drowsiness, but the real
excitement of the field does it naturaily. Stimulants
only interfere with natural functions, and they can
lead to kinds of drug. dependency because they dis-
turb the functional balanc¢é and cause psychic effects.

¢ Athletes develop powerfully responsive adrenal
glands as well as powerful responsive muscles.
Atfhletic events require precisely controlled outpour-
ings of adrenal hormones. Taking stimulants always
decreases the ability of the adrenal gland to respond
to natural controls.

® Muscles and nerves, pre-stimulated by drugs, do
not have the usual reserve capacity or the sensitivity
to mobilize these reserves. If it had been the case
that stimulants imparted the advantages that are
falsely claimed, the gains would have been easily
demonstrated. The fact has been shown that iilicit
drugs have been detected much more often in losers
than in winners,

® Athletes must depend on health, training, con-
diticning and rest. No drugs will make any body

function more responsive, better timed, faster or more
powerful.



*Perhaps the best way to approach the problem of drugs in our society
is to look for changes which may have caused the problem. Only after
solving the problems leading to drug problems can the drug problem,
itself, really be solved.

“One o5 the biggest challenges this country faces is a declining
standard of morals. Many media, such as magazines, bhouks and the
cinema, influencing our society have become infosted with vile ma-
terial. By avcepting this “smut’ we are aceepting lower moral standards.

“The danger and consequence of changing standards is that too
many people can no longer deterniine what is right from what is
wrong, or evel, what is normal from what is abnormal. And, uu-
fortunately, far too many have aceepted drugs as a normal way of
living.

“It's tragic that such an unnatural and dingerous thing as using
drugs could ever become geeepted in sueh an cintelleetual' society "

E

Gary Hall, lodiana University
Six-Time NCAA Swimming Champion

Athletes have powerful bedies and they have de-
veloped, as a consequenee, more capacity for sensual
stimulation: fue example, the eapacity for sexual ac-
tivity is greater in the athlete. The sensual drugs
tincluding marijuaa, afconoi, ampnetanunes, bar-
biturates and narcotics) all tend to stimulate pleas-
ure mechanisms in the brain, The commonly abused
parcotic, heroin, gives an artificial sexual sensnal
rush. but leoves the person for a Jong time incapable
of usual sensual and  sexual satisfaction. These
changes may be induced in a day and persist for
weeks even befure heroin addiction has become os-
tablished. All the sensual drugs diminish the nat-
ural sensual satisfaction, and with sufficient use, they
produce sexual impotency and other kinds of sen-
sual insufficiencies. Heroin ma: do this in a few
days; other drugs may require months or years of
abusive use to produce such severe sensory impair-
ment. 1t is clear that direet and unnatural titillation
of the grotification meehanisms by drugs leads to
jess natural responses, and these changes ocvur in
athletes even though the effeets may be less no-
ticcable for a while because of the greater func-
tiona! reserves of the athlete.

Athletes need great eoordination and eontrol over
their body movements. The seusual drugs also cause
various kinds of loss of fine coordinatian. This is true
of all forms of intoxication. But most people do not
realize that same of these effects persist long after-
wards. Marijuana, alechol, barbiturates and amphet-
amines are likely to have such persisting effects. All
the sensual drugs upset coordination.

Athletes are now often tempted to use artlficfal
male hormores (known as the androgenle anabolle
stervids) as means of increasing physigue. It is eer-
tain that the use of these artificial hormones de-
creases natural testicular function, may ecause many
diffieulties with the organs of reproduction and al-
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most certainly vause disturbanees of the many steroid
hormones. Long-term problems are ahlmost eertain
to be abserved as a result of the use of these drugs
although long-term effects have not been tested.
‘The immediate gains of strength that are claimed
are not as yet substantiated. If the clafms are real,
then for those who qualify by such unnatural mcans.
the degree of suecess may depend upon tolerance of
these hormone imbidadces. This is, of eourse, a trav-
eity of the loug-tested benefits of building physical
strength and character through athletie training,

In all the above matters relating to the possible
harm from drug abuse, parents have an Imporiant
role. They can havé a great influence over their
children. Most parents have suecessfully imparted
@t set of values, a sense of purpose and sone reasons
for life, In today's turineil, parents must do more.
To prevent the spread of drug abuse, parents must
be alert to recognize the conditions and symptoms of
drug use. They must learn to oppose these influenees
and to give sound advice to their children. It is often
said that parents tend to exaggerate the hazards of
drugs beciause they are more concerned than in-
farmed. They must become knowledgeable 1If for
no other reason than the faet that no argument loses
wmore quickly than that which is revealed to lack
accuracy'. Besides, there are so many {rightful faetual
statements to be made about the hazards of drug
abuse that there is no need to exaggerate.

Parents should inform those who are responsible
for their children in school or in athietics that they
cxpeet to know about drug use by their dependents,
Parents should advise their children about drugs and
should work with sehool, community and athletic
leaders to support cantionary advice on the sab-
jeet. The least involvements of young people with
drug abuse today are tracenble to strong influence
by parents who oppose the trend to use drugs.
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Drugs and Athletics Do Not Mix

Anabolic-androgenic steroids:

(An" ah-bo)* ik)—pertaining to, characteristic of,
prownoting anabolism or constructive metabolism.
(An" dro-jen’ ik)—producing mascullne character-
istics.

(Ste' roid)—a Kroup name for compounds which re-
semble cholesterol chemically. Some of the sub-
stances included in the group are the sex hormones,
cardiac aglycones, bile acids, steroid proper, toad
poisons, saponins and some of the carcinogenic hy-
droearbons. (Porland’s Illustrated Medical Diction-
ary)

The anabolic-androgenic steroids (synthetie male
sex hormones), which resemble chemically and fune-
tionally the male sex hormones, are taken by ath-
letes with the intent of gaining weight and strength.
Many athletes think that increased body weight re-
sults in increased muscular strength.

While the drug may increase weight, much of it is
due to Huid retention, and this does not necessarily
result in an increase in strength. The only way to
tnake a musele fiber fet larger and stronger is to
overload and fatigue it.

Anabolic-androgenic stervids have been known to
cause premature closure of the growing plates in the
long bones in younger athlctes, liver damage and
aggravation and stimulation of the growth of any
pre-existing cancers or hurmone sensitive tumors,

Amphetamines (ain-fet'-ah-min) are the “paradoxi-
cal” drugs.

Other names: Pep pills, bennies, wake-ups, eye-
openers, lid poppers, co-pilots, truck drivers, peaches,
roses, hearts, cartwheels, whites, coach to coast, I A,
turnabouts, browns, foothalls, greenies, bombido,
oranges, dexics, jelly-beans, A's, jellie babies,
swcets, beans, uppcrs., ephedrine, erystal,

Amphetamines are used to stimulate the central nerv-
ous system, increase blood pressure, reduce appetite
and reduce nasal congestion, (Dorland’s 1llustrated
Medical Dictionary)

Athletes have taken them for years to supposedly
run faster, pump harder or jump higher, but in
reality they may have a reverse effeet. When an
athlete takes an amphetamine he may think his per-
formance is superb, but in reality he is probably
doing worse.

The amphetamines lessen a person’s ability to ree-
ognize possible dangerous fatigue sensatlons, con-
strict blood vessels and suppress appetite by stimu-
lating the central nervous system. They can be high-
ly dangerous. They can also cause dangerous heat
buildup in the body by the non-recognition of
fatigue.

O
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Message to the Student-Athlete

“Get High on Sports . . . Not Drugs.”

It is a super idep, yet some are not convinced
that drugs and athletics do not mix.

Athletes have experimented with an endless va-
ricty of drugs but, based on scientific evidence, it is
difficult to find anyone who has safely improved
his performance.

On the other hand, the taking of pharmacological
aids has proved to be a hazardous venture for some-—
leading to permanent injury and death. And yet to be
known are the long-range effects drugs might eause.

Did you know that by the time they are 20, today's
children will have watehed approximately 15,000
hours of television? During this time they will have
seen numerous comnereials telling them that drugs
can calm their stomach, quiet their nerves, clear
their complexion, improve their performance on the
job and relieve their aches and pains. Really, is it
any wonder they might grow up thinking drugs are
the answer?

Drugs do have a very necessary application, but
the only time to yse drugs or any kind of chemieal
substance is when a discased, injured or deficient
state exists, and then only under the direction of a
physician. .

Listen to the advice of John Brown, the Untver-
sity of Missouri’s All-American and member of the
L. 3. Olympie basketball team: “Sports have been
good to me—and for me. The drug scene is only for
losers and dropouts from the world.”

A Message From the Director of the
Bureau of Narcotics & Dangerous Drugs

“Qur nation has always been proud of its ath-
letos and of their performimcees in all kinds of
competition. Millions of Americans, young and
old, who participate in sports of all kinds have
been justly proud of their sportsmanship.

“Today, a problem has arisen in a minority
of athletes. The ‘win at any ecost’ attitude has
caused a few to turn to the illicit use of drugs
in an attempt to increase performance. This has
sowetimes resulted in injury to athletes. But
even if no apparent physieal harm results, the
damage to the athlete, ethieally and psycho-
logically, can be severe. And the damage to
the American concept of sportsmanshlp may
be irreparable it such misuse of drugs con-
tinues and inereases.”

John E. Ingersoll

This publiention {s printed on 10057 rveyeled paper.
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{ Kxhibit H]
[From the Natlonal Colleglate Athletle Assoclation News, June 13, 1973]
FirsTa Bowy CoMmPLETES $30,000 LrUG EvucatioN PLEDGE YEAR EarLy

The Fiesta Bowl Committee has completed its pledge of $30,000 to the NCAA
Drug Edueation Connnittee 2 yeur nhead of schedule.

T'he Fiesta Bowl Committee presented Dr. Robert W. Pritchard, NCAA Drug
Edueation Committee Chairman and a member of the NCAA Council, with a
$10,000 check at a spring banquet in Phoenix, Ariz.

The original committment of the Fiesta Bowl was to have been spread out
over two years. The $30,000 was puaid in the span of one year in three different
$10,000 installments.

The Fiesta Bowl doesn‘t plan to stop because the committment has been
met.

“We have decided fo continue our support of the NCAA Drug Education com-
mittee,” said Fiesta Bowl Executive Director John Reid. “We haven't put a
dollar figure on our next eonunittment. Hopefully, it will mateh or exceed this
past committment.”

Pritchard extended his thanks to the Fiesta Bowl at the banquet. “It is
greatly appreciated and I reassure yon that the combination of the NCAA and
the Fiesta Bowl assures us opportunities to reach tens of thousands of young
people who otlierwise would not be contacted in the edueation and the combat-
ing of this terrible sociul problem,™ hie said.

The Fiesta Bowl's contributions will be used in the NCAA Drug Education
programs, including literature, publications and posters.

LExhibit I

THE NatioNaL COLLEGTIATE ATHLETIC ASSOCIATION,
Kansas City, Mo., March 1, 19783.

DEAR ATniretric DirecrorR: The NCAA Drug Education Committee has a
questionnaire which will provide valuable information on the possible use and
extent of drugs and other substances by college athletes. This is an anonymous
and voluntary questionnaire of two pages that can be completed within a few
minutes. We do not want individual names nor will the colleges be identified.
The returned questionnaires will be mixed immediately with all questionnaires
received.

The Committee woud like a random selection from all eight NCAA districts.
Large schools—small schools—public supported and private colleges will be
included. Presently, we are interested in responses from squads of the following
sports: footbhall, soccer, basketball, swimming, wrestling, track and field and
baseball. If your school does not have all the sports listed, you could still partic-
ipate in those areas where you do have squads listed.

This easy to adminrister questionnaire will be one means of determining if
a drug problem exists in NCAA college athleties. Remember, no school or ath-
lete would be identifiable,

Please indicate on the enelosed return posteard your willingness to help the
Committee by participating in the survey. Since we are seeking a random
sampling, it is possible your school would not be sent questionnaires. for if we
were to receive affirmative responses from nearly all of the membership, we
would not need all such questionnaires for thie study. The responses will be
correlated by a computer,

You will have an opportunity to receive all resnlts, if you so desire.

The Drug Education Conunittee feels sure vou share our concern with the
drug problem in today's society. and further, that the NCAA is in a position
to make a genuine contribution to this most crucial social problem. ]

We look forward to your continued cooperation. Please return the enclosed -
card today.

Sincerely yours,
RoBERT W. PRITCHARD,
Chairman, NCAA Drug Education Committee.
Enclosure.

________________________ is willing to take part in the survey heing conducted
College

by the NCAA Drug Education Committee, You may send us approximately
____________ questionnnaires. We understand no individual or college will
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THE NATIONAL COLLEGIATE ATHLETIC ASSOCIATION
DRUG USE QUESTIONNAIRE

The NCAA Drug Education Committee is seeking your assistance in
an aftempt to obtain information concerning drug use among athletes.
Your onswers to these questions will assist the Committee in making
recommendations concerning the types of educational programs need-
ed in this areo.

Do not put your name anywhere on the questionnaire. Please
answer all questions honestly. There are no code numbers or any other
means of identifying an individual’s answer sheet.

Record your answer by circling the number of your choice on each
questionnaire. Be sure to read the entire list of choices before marking
your selection and please circle only one answer for each question.

The National Collegiate Athletic Association
U.S. Highway 50 and Nall Avenue
P.O. Box 1906
Shawnee Mission, Kansas 66222
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1. \What is your ptesent classification in school?

1. Freshman 4. Senior
2. Suphomore 5. Graduate Student
3. Junior 6. Other

1>

. What is your sex?
1. Male
2. Female

3. What is your race?

1. Black
2. White
3. Other
4. Circle your nmajor sport.
1. Football 5. Wrestling
2. Soccer 6. Track and Field
3. Basketball 7. Basebail
4. Swimming 8. Others

5. How is your physical condition?

1. Top
2. Moderate
3. Fair
4. Poor

6. Are you receiving medical care for a health problem at this time?

1. Yus
2.-No

7. Do you use Aspirin?

1. Have never used 4. Use 3 or more times a week
2. Use about once a month 5. Tried a few times and stopped
3. Use about otice a week 6. Used many (10 ot more times) and stopped

8. How many hours of slecp do you generally get 2* night?

1. 5 or less 5 9

2.6 6. 10

3.7 7. 11 or more
4.8

9. \When vou first get up in the morning, how do you feet?
1. Very good

2. Good
3. Bad
4. Very bad
10. What percentage of the college athletes you know personally use drugs to try to improve their sports perfor-
mance? .
1. none or 07 5. 11-20%
2. 1-27% 6. 20-40%
3. 3-5% 7. 417 or more
4. 6-10
11, How would vou rate yvour athletic ability?
1. Very good 4. Pont
2. Good 5. Very poor
3. Adequate
12, What was your grade average in all subjects last term?
1. A 4. D
2 R 5 F
3. C
13. Do you use coffce?
1. Hove never used 4. Use 3 or more times a week
2. Use shout once a month 5. Tried u few times and stopped
4. Use about once & week 6. Used many (10 or more times) and stopped

ERIC
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Do you use tea?

1. Have never used
2. Use about onee a month
3. Use about onee a week

Do you use tobacco? .

1. Have never used
2. Use about enee a month
3. Use about unce a week

102

4. Use 3 ar more times a week
3. Tried a few times and stopped
6. Usced many (10 or more times)

. Use 3 ormore times & week
. Tried o few times and stopped
. Used many (10 or more times)

St e

Do you use¢ Aleohol (Beer, Wine, Whiskey, etc.) to get high?

1. Have never used
2. Use about onece & month
3. Use about once a week

Do you use multiple vitimius?

1. Have never used
about onee a month
about once a week

3.

Do you use vitamin C tablets?
t. Have never ase
20 Use abont she
ubout once a week

Do you use vitamin E capsules?
1. Have never used

2. Use about onee a month
about oner a week

Do you use nicotinic acid pills?

. Have never gred
* about e a month
shout onee a vieek

. Do you yse cortisone?

I, Have wever used
2. Ure about onee a month
3. Use aboat onee a week

Have never used
Use about onee 2 month
3. Use about onee a week

1.
2.

. Do you use sleeping pills?

1. Have never used
“se abont once o month
about once a week

*abont oner o month
about once a week

. Do you use tranguilizers?

1. Have never used
2. Use about onee a month
about onee a week

30U
Do you use Marijuana or THC (Pot, Grass)?

1. Have never used
2. Usc about once a month
3. Use about once a weck

Do you use LSD (Acid), mescaline?

1. Have never used
2. Use about once a month
3. Usc about once o week

O
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4. Use & ar more thues a week
5. Tried a few times and stopped
6. Used many (10 or more times)

4. Use 4 ar mare times a week
5. Tried a few times and stopped
6. Used many (10 or more tinmes)

4. Use 3 or muve times a week
A, Tried a few times and stopped
. Used many (10 or maore times)

4. Use 3 or more times a week
A, Tried a few thoes and stopped
6 Used many (10 or more times)

4. Use 3 or mare times a week
5. Tried a few times and stopped
6. Used many (10 or more times)

4. Use 3 ar more tinws @ week
5. Tried a few times and stopped
6. Used many (10 or more times)

. Do you use anaboiic, androgenic steroids (so called body building hormones)?

Use 3 or more times a week
. Tried a few times and stopped
. Used many (10 or more times)

= de

. Use 3 or more times O week
. Tried o few times and stopped
. Used many (10 or mere times)

e

. Use 3 oranere times o week
. Tried a few times and stopped
- Used many (10 or more times)

o e

4. Use 3 or inore times a week
A, Tried a few times and stopped
t. Used many (10 or more times?

. Use 3 or more times a week
Tried a few times and stopped
. Usged many (10 or more times)

D ode

3 ar more thmes a3 week
A o few tiimes and stupped
. Used many (10 or more times

ke

and stopped

and stopped”

and stopped

and stopped

and stopped

and stopped

and stopped

and stopped

and stopped

and stupped

and stopped

and stopped

and stopped

and stopped
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28. Do you use Cyladil (Grit)?

1. Have never used . 4. Use 3 or more times a week
2 Useabout once a month 5. Tried a few limes and stopped
3 Use about onve a week 6. Eyed many L0 or mace times) and stopped

29. Uo you use Amphetamines (Uppers, Spced, Pep Pills, Bennies)?

1. Have never usced 4. Use 3 or mote times o week
2. Usec about one» a inonth 5. Tried a few times and stopped
3. Use about once a week ti. Used nany 14 or more limes) and stopped

30. Do you use Barbiturates (Downers. Reds, Blues, Yeilows)?

1. Have never used 4. Use 3 or more times a week
2 L'se about vnce a month 3. Tried a few times and stopped
3. Use aboul vnce a week 6. Used many (10 or more times) and st -ooed

31. Do you use Heroin (Horse). Morphine (Miss Emna). or Demerol?

1. Have never used 4. Use 3 or ware times a week
2. Use abott unce s month 5. Fried a fow times and stopped
3. Use about once a week 6. Used many (10 or maore times) and stopped

32. Do you use Cocalne (Snow, (oke)?

1 Have never used 4. Use 3 or more times a week
2 Useabmut cuee a tuonth 5. Tried @ D »w times and stopped
3. Use about onee a week 6. Used many (10 ot more times) and stopped

33. Do you sniff glue. lighter Nuid, gasoline. or paint thinner?

1. Have never used 4. Use 3 or more thnes a wiek
2. Use about ance a month 5. Tried a few times and stopped
4. Use about once a week 6. Used many (10 or more times) and stopped

33. Do yau think drug use amang athletes is Increasing or decreasing?

1 Increasing 3. Staying the same
2. Decrensing 4. Dun’t know

35, How would you rate vour school's efforts in helping yout 1o understand about drugs?

1. Excellent 3. Fair
2. Guod 4. Poor

36. Have you ever used a4 drug to iry i) Improve your sports performance?

1. never used 4. B-15 times
2 1or 2times 5. 16-25 times
3. 3-7 times 6. 26 or more times

37. What percentage of professional athleles do you beljeve use drugs to iry to improve their sporls performance?

1. none nr 07 5. 11-20%
2,127 6. 20-407¢

3 357 7. 4% or more
4 6-107

38. Flzase list any prescribed medication(s), you may be taking now, if you kKnow what they are:

O
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[Iixhibit J]

NCAA Byraw 4-2

SectioN 2. Drugs. Student-athletes competing in NCAA championships shall
not use any unauthorized drugs which may endanger their health or safety
or which may seemingly give an unfair competitive advantage to an individual

. competitor. This does not preclude the use of drugs prescribed by a physician
in the course of medical treatment. (Adopted: 1/13/73)

(e¢) The Council sball, from time to time after enlisting expert advise and
study, enumerate the drugs which may not be used. (Adopted: 1/13/73)

(b) The Executive Committee may authorize urinalysis or other methods for
testing student-athletes who compete in NCAA championships to determine the
extent of drug usage therein. (Adopted: 1/13/73)

Senator Baym. Our next witness will be a panel of witnesses with
Mr. Wali Jones, Harold Nelson, Michael Dyer, and Dr. Russell Cas-
sel. Gentlemen, will you all come forward ?

We appreciate your coming here today. Would you identify your-
selves, Mr. Jones and the others?

STATEMENT OF WALI JONES, EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR, CONCERNED
ATHLETES IN ACTION, ACCOMPANIED BY HAROLD NELSON,
MEMBER; MICHAEL DYER, MEMBER; AND DR. RUSSELL CASSEL,
MEMBER

Mr. JonEs. My name is Wali Jones, the executive director of Con-
cerned Athletes in Action. We have 16 chapters in the United States.

I am from Philadelphia. I was born in 1942. T have to differ first
on some comments that were made earlier about the term “hysteria”
about drugs being in the communities. I have to say the choice of the
term is correct because we are hysterical in onr communities because
there are drugs everywhere.

Another point I would like to express, I have played professional
ball for 9 years. I have played in the Philadelphia high schools and
Villanova {Tniversity.

I worked for 16 vears with vouths. T traveled the castern seaboard
in which I worked for the Bucks so I had a chance to go to the
campuses. I also got a chance to instruct in New York, New Jersey,
Richmond and at all of these areas in all of these communities,
throngh this, what I am getting at is the idea of drugs being in all of
our communities. I know this from working in them. I don’t either
think we should speak about just the level of high school or colleges or
professional ball. We should go into elementary school level.

Now, I am from the Milwaukee area and we have a chapter there.
We had an 8 year old die from an overdose of drugs.

Now, we feel, as Concerned Athletes in Action that it starts at that
age and not at the high school or college level.

. Atbhletics are part of our wisdom, are a part of our culture. Sports
is a part of our culture because that is what we have to emulate when
Wwe are young.

When I was young I had people like Guy Rudgerscn and Wilt
Chamberlain; during that era of course—and T was around 15 or 14
years old—during that time there was the era of drinking. The youth
of that time were drinking. They were drinking a lot of wine.

Q
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Now right now there is being done a doctoral study of this very
thing. And in traveling around the country there is a vibration I
have been feeling of hysteria. They say we shouldn’t be hysterical,
but we are hysterical about the drug situation. Young people are
dying in some of these areas.

And, you know they say they shoot horses, don’t they. I have to say
this is true and they not only shoot horses, but they shoot athletes also.

During my 9 years of professional ball, in that time I saw a lot of
the pressures the young had to go through in the ghetto areas.

The only emulation a young person has to get out of is to emulate
an athlete or entertainer or the pusher who is on the cornei. So these
are the three models.

Now, I had the chance of getting out of the alcohol scene by athle-
tics. One of my brothers is an ex-addict and one of my brothers is an
alcoholic. These are things that happen that are all around us and——

Senator Bayy. Let me ask yon, if I may Mr. Jones, for the record,
you played basketball at Villanova and you also played professional
ball at Philadelphia and also for the Bucks?

Mr. Joxes. I played in Baltimore.

Senator Bayir. You were all pro at one time or another?

Mr. JonEs. I made the all-rookie team.

Senator Bay#. So you are pretty good ¢

Mr. Joxes. Well, I feel I am.

As I was saying, there are a lot of young people who want to be
just as good and want to emulate and they have their hopes up in this.

I see in the Philadelphia area—and they were talking about things
being cut out now. That is a disaster area to me. That is a tombstone
territory. The young people there emulate the athletes very much.
There are a lot of athletes I know in college who quit in the past 3

ears because they couldn’t reach this point of professional sports or
ause they couldn’t achieve certain things and so they just dropped
out and take drugs.

Now when I speak of the pressures that atheletes have, the pressures
that a black athlete has, the pressnures that I had in going out for the
Olympic trials, the pressures that I knew then—and at that time I feit
I should have made it and there was John Wooden who felt I should
have made it but I didn’t make it—but the pressures I felt athletes
are feeling today.

Now there are athletes that I know of who have reached out and
gotten into drugs because they couldn’t accomplish these things.

When I say pressures, again, I am speaking of pressures like for
instance my first year in professional sports. 1 lived in the District
of Columbia and I was commuting from the District of Columbia to
Baltimore. At that time there were the pressures of economics; the
salaries weren’t that much for those coming out of college at that
time.

When I speak of pressures, I am speaking of the different pressures
that young athletes feel at that young age; the thing that they have
to go through. And since this is @ drng orient=d culture, they are not
drifting into drinking, they are drifting into drugs.

Now when I speak of pressures, I mean there are athletes that we
know of who have come out of high school and college and who we

ERIC
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talk to and try to counsel. We try to stop them from the drug scene
there but now we are trying to catch them at the age of elementary
levels becanse there was an 8-yvear-old death in Milwankee from an
overdose.

So that is why I said T have some difference about the level of
educating the people about these dangers. We must start at a lower
level,

Senator Bavir. T don’t know who you are differing with. You are
not differing with me.

Mr. JoxEes. Well, I have to differ because of the way the system and
society is going ; do you see?

There are many kids that are dving.

Like you made a comment about this; should we have courage to
do something? Now. it is humanistic to save these people becanse in
lt\hlllg Philadelphia area there weve 65 killings 1«lated to drugs or gang
tillings.

Senator Bayir. My comment went, Mr. Jones, to the fact it shouldn’t
take much courage to stand up and say we are not going to tolerate
this whether it is on the pro-athletic floor or the NCAA champion-
ships or an Sth grade gvin class or an 8-year-old in the community.

Mr. JoxEs. Right. That is right.

Senator Bavir, This is the kind of thing T wounld think it shouldn’t
take much courage to do but just a little common sense and humanism.

Mr. Joxes. That is what we are coming to.

Yon have another pressure I also think in sports in the emulation
the imitation and that is the pressure of having to produce.

Now when I was in college I plaved a whole year with a torn cart-
ilege in a brace. Whether that decision came from me as an individual
or whether it came from the pressures of the situution, I don’t know.
I plaved for the Wildcats and whether it was the gung ho attitude
or just the pressure of an athlete who is black who wants to keep ad-
vancing. I don’t know but I played a whole vear with a torn cartilege
and my leg wonld rock periodically

I was under different medications, and different treatments. So
there is also the pressure which is 2 psychological pressure; that they
have to produce. : ‘

That is why I say they shoot horses. don’t they? They not only
shoot horses to play but after they play they shoot them. I mean, they
lose their jobs if they aren’t competitive.

When I played 4 years ago. I had an operation and there was an
estimation of time I was supposed to be in the hospital for and that
was 4 weeks. This was their estimation. There was pressure on me to
play in -} weeks. But I was an individual again, T learned through the
process of experience to withstand that pressure and T just sat out
until my leg was thoroughly well.

These are pressures pnt on a lot of young athletes. A lot of young
athletes want to produce so badly, this is what happens. You asked
why they would take these drugs, and these young athletes are in
such a state—snd when I ain talking about “state”, I am talking about
the individuals wanting to become No. 1 or become a professional
athlete—they are in such a state they will take them.
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You say you hurt your ankle and yet went out to play, but there
are some athletes that are psychologically forced into situations where
they have to be shot with Novocain to play. This is something that
happened to me. This is testimony that is personal. you know, because
I had a torn muscle in my back and the pressures were put on, like,
Yyou know, this won’t hurt you and this will only- help the pain stop.
But. T was shot in the back with Novoecain and my whole side, I
couldn’t move it for a conple of days.

When I went back to the physician in Philadelphia, my physician,
the physician said T should never have been shot.

Senator Bayrr. Who made that determination to shoot you, though ¢

Mr. JoxEs. Yeah, they shoot you here in the joint [indicating].

Senator B.ayir. No. who made the determination 2

Mr. Joxes. Well, this is the trainer who makes that.

You know. when I say the pressures of management to get an ath-
lete ont on the field. that is what I mean and that is why I say they
shoot horses, don’t. they? You know. the pressures to put an athlete
ont there, and especially a black athlete, to perform is just intolerable.

Senator Bavir. Was this trainer a doctor?

Mr. JoxEes. No. And when yeu have a trainer and you put vour
trust in the trainer in these levels of sports, you are going to do what
he says, von know, yvou figure he knows best. You know, there was
another physician from another team and when they shot me up and
I conldn’t play and went back to the Philadelphia area, my physician
said I should have never been shot. But these are different pressures,
I feel the sports are putting on the athletes.

When I travel to campuses. here we have an industry of thousands
and thousands of basketball players all over the United States trying
to become professional and also becanse they are trying to emulate
athletes who are people they look up to, in certain communities such
as the black commnnity. they only have so many people to emulate.
The professional athlete has such a force in the community—and that
is something that hasn’t been commented on by the NCAA and by
other people—that these young basketball players try to emulate the
professional player.

The image the athlete brings to the community as a professional
athlete is very great in all sports. That is why I say, not only at the
high schoo! and college and professional level, but young people are
trying to emulate these professional athletes and are forcing them-
selves into the position of becoming the best.

There are a lot of drugs in the early ages—in junior high schools
and elementary level— and there are statistics on this. We are talking
abont eases where yvoung people arve dyving, where young people are
taking speed for the races and sports, where voung people are taking
other drngs. as T said before. drugs to escape. :

Now. as a Concerned Athlete in Aetion. as concerned athletes. we
have a philosophy in which we feel that athletes themselves coming
within the community and working with the young people at such a
voung age will help a lot. Working with them through basketball
clinies and drng seminars gives them a chance to release; they get a
c{lmncc to express themselves in some manner and we can educate them
there.
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Senator Bayn. May T ask you to give me your thoughts on the same
question that T directed to Mr. Wilkinson. I don’t want to advise our
our friends from the television sector over here as to what they ought
to shoot and what they should not shoot, but here is a man who has
been through this and knows the pressures, snd also comes from a
community where the contribution that an athlete can make to try to
get young people to think bigger thoughts and to resist the tempta-
tion to take the escape route, and are getting that monkey on theiv
back, that pressure is great. Does it make any sense if we are really
concerned about drug traffic and drug addicts and wasted lives and
deaths, to terminate those programs that make it possible for young-
sters tn have an experience in the summer with athletes and others
stressing the wholesome aspect of athletics and the dilatory aspects of
drugs? Does it make any sense to cut the bndget and to terminate
these programs?

Mr. Joxes. It is not just inhuman;: it is nnhuman. It has gotten to
the point where we have to look at the generation that is coming up.
You know, the Creator is looking at man and the way he is treating
his voung. Animals in lower forms treat their young better than man.
They prepare their young for their environment. When I speak of
their environment, the environment now in the ghetto areas is getting
to where it is paranoia; it is fear. It is drug infested and people are
dying every day and young people are experiencing these things. It
will be the last generation if we don’t protect, educate, and love our
young.

Senator Bayn. Do athletic programs and summer sports programs
and this type of thing have a positive effect on young people born in
the ghetto to try to convince them not to go the route of drugs?

Mr. JoxEs. Definitely. We had a marathon last week. We called it
a sensitivity session. We brought young kids in. We let a gymnasium
remain open for 48 hours. We had everybody come in and play in this
marathon, just anyone. It gave a chance for the kids who were idle—
and as we say, idle minds are the devil’s workshop—to come in and
participate. But since all of these programs are cut and all of thess
kids don’t have anything to do, we had to have some kind of activity
where they could release their energy. Well, we had this marathon.
While we had this, they were releasing their energy, they were being
educated, they were getting together. We felt the marathon was a posi- -
tive force because while they were playing, they got a chance to it
around and talk with us about drugs. They got a chance to holler
their names ont when they scored.

All ages got a chance to play. They came from all communities.
They got a chance for release. They had a chunce to go somewhere
when they didn’t have anywher to go before.

Kids at 11 and 12 o’clock at night who had been playing on the
streets, these kids were then comning to the recreation center. And T
think centers should be open. Centers should be open at all times
because during the summer we know kids are going to be up until 3
or 4 o’clock in the morning.

We had a chance here to bring elders into the community and into
this recreation center where kids could talk to them. We even had a
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chance to educate the elders on the dangers of drugs because there are
many, many elders that don’t even know the symptoms of drugs and
liow it effects your mind.

Now, I would like to have Mr. Nelson expound on why we are into
this marathon for kids.

Mr. NeLsox. Well, I was going to say one of the reasons we hope
they will remain open, the centers will remain open, is because it is
too hot to sleep in their homes. T mean, it is really too hot there so
how can you sleep? They are going to be up. And since they are going
to be up, you might as well provide some kinds of facilities for them.

Well, let me just introduce myself. First of all. I am Howard Nelson
and amn affiliated with Concerned Athletes in Action. I am also a
school teacher in the Milwaukee School System; I am a counselor
and counsel in the elementary level at Pahner in Chicago.

I have worked with kids. I became quite involved and interested
in the kids and wanted to do something to save the children. The
best way I knew of to save the children was to be associated with a
program, with an organization such as Concerned Athletes in Action.

Right now I would like to relate to you and the rest of the people
]:m} what we are trying to accomplish as Concerned Athletes in
Action.

Today’s problem of drug abuse in our society, when viewed from
our position, constitutes a clear call for action since we are aware of
what is happening in our community. And this is cne of the reasons
that we formed the Concerned Athletes in Action because we do want
all segments of society to be enlightened in the area of drugs so that
the Nation’s youths would be exposed to correct information.

And we are aware of the kind of publicity being devoted to drug
abuse in the schools in our country through such things as newspapers,
magazines, and other media. We are a little troubled understanding
why, since if we wished an individua! to play the piano or improvein -
arithmetic competency, it will be a necessity to provide learning ex-
periences in such areas. we have a little trouble understanding why
there is not such learning expertence with drugs.

This is what we are trying to do, as Wali stated earlier, as Con-
cerned Athletes in Action. We go to the kids, sit down, have rap ses-
sions, talk, give them a chance to express their own ideas, and more
{n_‘ less try to cultivate the individual by educating and protecting
Mim.

The decisionmaking competency on the part of an individual cer-
tainly is no exception to this rule and by that, I mean, as you listen to
me, yon are going to hear me talk about decisionmaking and how
important it is to an individual.

Decisionmaking has no exception. If we want to develop competency
in this area of learning, experience must be provided. This takes place
with all psychological processes. Tn other w=rds, you have to experi-
ence the best teacher’s experience so that. without really having a child
experience drugs. we do try to bring ir all of the detail information,
the data, that we possibly can muster up and expose the child to it so
se can experience drugs through reading and educating him to the

rugs.
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Decisionmaking by man represents the most critical and fnnda-
mental process in all human behavior. Tt is the simple vehicle. the one
simple vehicle alone by which man incites and directs all psychologi-
cal locomotion within his life space. Tt is the nncleas from which all
personal satisfaction or disappointment, all snccess or failnre and,
indeed, where tlie determination of good or poor health for every
individual is determined.

And we tend to say an individuai has poor health if his behavior is
maladjusted. T wonld say that if yon ran some tvpe of study on this,
you would sav that 90 percent of the kids Yiving in the ghetto have
maladjusted behavior according to the standards of society. and so
this 1s what we want to correct.

We also feel that Cloncerned Athletes in Action can curtail crime
and delinqueney throngh decisionmaking. Crime and delinquency,
abuse and illegal use of dangerons drugs. trnancy. all of the typical
and atypical behavior of man are prodnets of his own personal deci-
sionmaking. So if we can get children to make the proper decisions,
that in itself is a step forward and we will them on the right road to
a snceessful life.

You might say improved decisionmaking is essential for crime re-
duetion, Tt follows logically that all maladjnated behavior represents
a product of decisionmaking. In order to rednee maladjusted behavior,
some changes in personal decisionmaking mnst be bronght abont for
persons involved typically in erime and deliquency in correction pro-
grams fail to do the things they ave supposed to do. I am going to
point that out tv yon in a minute.

Crime and delinquency programs fail to deal with. even in the
slightest manner, the fundamental trath that learning arithmetic or
development of a job skill wonld serve to alter their choices in rela-
tion to crime and delinqueney and that changing their decisionmaking
would stop the crime and delinquency.

The prineipal concern of most correctional programs deals with
the following: (1) Custody: (2) Control; (3) Education; (4) De-
velopment; and (5) Self. "And not one of the five major concerns
serves to deal directly with the real canse of delinquencey or erinic and
that is the decisionmaking. I vepeat, the real eause is decisionmiking,

I honestly feel it is because the decision comes from within the in-
dividual—for a variety of reasons—that he is typically involved in
crime.

We as concerned individuals feel that onr theery will be aceepted by
the children or yonth of onr society. Since vouth and vonng adults
are generally attracted to athletes. the primary intent of Concerned
Athletes in Action shall be to create the athletically involved mechan-
ism which will provide the participants an opportunity to engage in
rewarding and enjoyable nse of their time. utilizing, at the same time,
the assistance of professional athletes as image builders for the youths,

The Concerned Athletes in Action shall forus on combatting drug
abuse and juvenile delinquency. The same vehicle. will also endeavor
to provide educational activities and generally aid in motivating and
directing the young into edncation and vocational classes and thus
demonstrating to the youths and young adults there are other avenues
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to snccess. And that athleties is but one means to a meaningful end,
while education and skill remain the true basis for suceess in our
society.

1 wonld like to quote one more thing to yon before I sum it up here.
This is something that T think Coneerned Athletes believe in sincerely
and honestly, vou might say. Real learning takes place only when the
learner plavs a dual role: when is both learner, teacher, doer, and
eritic. listener and speaker. And the student who tries only to remem-
ber what is in books will not even snceeed in doing that. The skillful

“learner talks to, even argues with, the book. He asks many questicns

and checks his understanding as he goes along. Your poor student
never knows what part of the answer he understands or what he does
not. He leaves it up to the teacher to find ont.

Moreover, when a child gets little or ne chance to talk, he does not
get better at talking. Most of the fifth graders I have known were no
more articulate than many of the 5 year-olds of comparable back-
gronnd. Many of them wer less so. even.

Now, this affected their work in English, The child who is not used
to putting his thoughts into words will not be able to put it down into
writing bnut there is still & more important reason for having the
teacher talk less and letting the children talk more. A child comes to
school with thonghts. ideas, enriosity, wonders, but he soon finds out
that nobody is hiterested in what he knows, what he is curious about,
what he cares abont, and he feels school is not a place for him. He asks
questions, shares his concerns, satisfies his cunviosity, but before long
e comes to doubt the worth of his own thoughts. He begins to fee
like the teacher, and that is that things that worry or please him, or
that he needs to find ont about are unimportant, a waste of time. So
he does not. develop a sense of his own identity or worth. He does not
think of himself as a unique, evaluative person with ideas to present
or share with, and interests and skills.

He could tind joy in pursuing education and developing but he
eomes in instead to find he can find satisfaction in life only by pleas-
ing the authorities or the erowds. He loses his taste for independence
or freedom and is ready to follow anyone or any group that will make
him feel like he is somebody instead of nobody.

This is what. we are trying to do; make children feel like they are
somebody by going to the plavground, sitting down in rap sessions -
with them. talking abont drugs with them, dnding their interests and
finding ont about their cuviosities becanse we care. We are concerned
athletes in action and want to save the children.

Mr. Joxrs. T wonld like to expound on how we work. We have on
our staff junior ballplayers that travel with onr staff. What we do is
we have the older kids teaching the younger kids abont drug abuse.
We give them a chance to let them respond to vounger kids.

Now, we don’t always tell kids about drugs. We have younger kids
edneating other kids. We have high school kids educating other
children, )

And dnring the winter T lectured at the Students Service Board
down at Morvehouse at Landum University.

We are talking about drugs in all of the black colleges where drngs
have become predominant. They had two killings in Central State.
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They had a killing at Lincoln University, all in relation to drugs.
This is not only athletes taking drugs bt I am talking about drugs
in general. It occurred in «a college where an athlete was selling drugs.
This is where we want to get down to educating in those places where
people are not aware of the drug abuvse.

We feel it is imperative to get at all of these levels where we can
actually show these dangers of drugs—and not just the high school

“and college level—and that is why we want to educate staffs in col-

leges, high schools, and the elementary level to help them talk to the
younger people from ages of 5 on up.

M. Dyer.,

Mr. Dyer. My name is Michael Dyer and within my community I
am ocalled “Maki.”

I am originally from Topela, Kans,, which is about 60 miles west
of Kansas City, the capital, and it. is about 150,000 population. I amn
the second of seven children and I came to Milwaukee some 5 years
ago and only as of about a year and one-half ago had I the oppor-
tunity to meet Wali Jones, and about ¢ and onc-half years ago I had

“the opportunity to meet Ilarold Nelson.

The merging of our minds has brought about the creation of our
organization. the Concerned Athletes in Action. T received my masters
degree in educational psychology and I am a prospective doctoral
candidate under Dr. Cassel.

I would like to think that I am a hnmanistic psychologist. 1 feel I
am more than just an educational psychologist.

At our marathon game I -had the opportunity to speak with a
young athlete. He must have been about 14 years old. He spent the
full 40 hours at the center. He had to go home for about 10 minutes
to get a permit slip because there was an 11 o’clock curfew in the
city. Hle came back and he slept on a mattress that was on the floor
and he got up periodically to play.

During this time we sat and we rapped and he wrote a poem.
And T would like to read the poem to the members of the Senate
this morning.

“Friends. humans, countrymen. lend me your ears.
Friends, humans, countrymen, lend me your ears.
Friends, humans, countrymen, lend e your ears.

There be a new tale from the ghetto; I want you to hear:

“The whole world is a glietto for you and for me

Except I be trapped inside. for your minds to research me.
Our young cry out, live. be humane, -

Only laughter comes buck and whispers, ‘They are insane.’
Their thoughts to you I will now transfer

In words of notation in the language that you prefer.

“Little cuild running wild, little child running wild ;
I see that your frustrated fuce never smiles.
I see your brothers as you pace the filthy streets,
Like the animals wild in search of meat, knowing that it is higher than
the dope in the streets.

“A child of nine with the mind of 2 man
Who has never kncwn the word ‘Fairyland’?

A child who is to the drug scene chained has no time to play.
There is a habit to maintain, to maintain, to maintain.
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“Litfle child running wild, little child ranning wild ;
I see that your fimstrated face never smiles.
Always down, always nad,
Always thinking that you have beeu had.
In the back of ¥our mind, you say I didn't have to be here,
Ax you search the ghetto streets full of tears, full of tears. .

“Little child running wild, little child running wild :

You have no reason to xmile ; you have no reason to smile,
Hey. little sister, where ix vouy brother?

See your mother standing on the soup line?
Our Blesxed Father ain't got no strength to be bothered.
“Come on, people, we can have hope

If we quit shooting up this dope.
You say if ouly »ou were a child again;

I could never want (v ventire life like this aguin,
“People of the world throwing sticks and stones ;

So afrail someone is going to come up and break my hones,
Because we are contined by econnmic and geoligieal boundaries

Doesn't mean we listve to get high and work in foundries.
Lotx of greed. lotx of temptation ;

Chitdren learning by imitating.

8o open up your minds and concentrate, concentrate, concentrate.
No longer can we, can we, afiord to procrustinate.

Time is passing, life is changing, people growing older;
Folks must love and trust, haud-in-hand, shoulder-to-shoulder.

We must come closer to the esxence of life,
But be aware that it takes courage and strife,

“People, the time has come throughout this Land
When the lion must lay down with the tamb.

Open up yeur minds and conceutrate, concentrate,
No longer, no longer tell ine, procrasitinate,

“So meditate, meditate. Let’'s concentrate, concentrate, concentrate for the
Creator has a master plan;
Peice and happiness for every man.
The (‘reator has a master plan,
Peace and happiicess throughout our binod-stained Land.”

And these are jnst the thoughts of a young 14-year-old who they
say can‘t read. He is functioning at about a third-grade level. They
say he can't write. They say the only thing that he can do in life is
play basketball and get high and smoke dope and chase women. But
that is life in the ghetto.

Humanism, that is what T think we are all about if we are really
real; if we can feel the realness in life.

And what is humanistic psychology and what part does it play in
our life, and what part does it play in the lives of the Concerned
Athletes in Action? Love plays an important role in humanistic
{>sychology for the pressures of all hmman relationships involve
ove.

Dr. Abraham Mavlow is from TLippstadt, Germany, and he and
Dr. Cassel are my tutors in hnumanistic psychology.

Bnt love knowledge, if T may call it that, has other advantages as
well. Love for a person permits him to unfold, to open np, to drop
his defenses. to let. im he naked nat only physically, but psveholog-
icadly, and spiritually as well. In a word. it lets him be—instead of
hiding hiniself. T think that is what we are all about; dropping
these defenses that we have.
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Men have defenses against cach other because they fear each other.
You may fear what I amn thinking about yon and I may fear what
you are thinking abont me. But these are some things that in human-
ism we deal with, We should be dropping them by feeling and by
vibrating with cach other and by yon being a part of me and letting
me be a part of you. letting my spirit transfer to you and your spirit
transfer to me; being human shonlder-to-shoulder. Like the young
man in the poem, we must be human to overcome our problems in
the ghetto. .

The young man also says, are we homosapiens or aposapiens? And
I said. aposapiens? And he said, #Yeal, look around ns; we live on
the pianet of the apes. We are contained in economic and geographic
boundaries.” He said, “I can’t go anywhere.”

I mean, we have people in our ghettos that never traveled more
than a 4-block square arca. They had never been downtown. They
don’t know what downtown is like. And von say. oh, well, this is

‘not real. But thig is part of our existence,

Let me go further and explain a little inore about Dr. Mavlor and
Dr. Cassel, and what they have to say about humanistic society. The
individnal would tand to have deep and intimate relations with only
a few highly selected friends and to these few he gives absolutely:
and he expects precisely the same in return,

Here the sexual involvement is not pertinent and may or may
not be present, depending npon other factors,

[Short pausc.]

Mr. Dver. I have been having some dizzy feelings lately. Excunse
me.

Mr, Nursox, Stay cool.

Mr. Dyer. I am cool. T am cool. T have things to say.

Here the sexnal involvement is not pertinent and may or may not
be present, depending on other factors. Love to the Lhnmanistic psy-
chologist means more than relations with people for it deals with
Iave for the activity or the experience.

But just as love can canse one to eliminate his own ego defenses, so
it can also cause him to be blind. And we are all vietims of love in
one form or another. This is humanism. This is reflecting. This is
being friends. This is being asosciates. This is being concerned. This
18 being Concerned Athletes in Action. This is what we are all about.

The athlete is a leading figure in his environment. As you know,
an athlete is only an athlete. thongh, for 2 very small porfion of his
time; precisely 3 honrs a day. This is when he is relieved from his
classroom schedule and he goes ont to the conrt and panticipates,
maybe on Wednesday, Thwsday. Saturday night, when he has a
gaine. Otherwise he is a member of his community: he is a member
of his society. '

This is where the drug problem that affects the high school, col-
lege, the elementary level. and even the professional ranks, comes in
becanse he must associate. and he must continne to associate, with
penple in his environment. And what is his environment 2 If von are
from the cnlture of poverty. in which we are from. drugs are every-
where. A vonng sister was talking to me the other day and she said,
like. well, T would like to got away from drugs but drugs are every-
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where. She soid. T can’t tum anywhere without somebody saving,
here is Bennie, here 15 some coke: here, snort some coke. Here is
seme smack, and let's get high.

She says. so what do you do? You know. here is where peer group
pressure comes in. You got to he accopted. All of us know how im-
portant it is in vour life and in your profession. You want to feel .
you can groove with everybedy around you. Yon want to feel you
can gei along because we all want to promote ourselves. So we all
project onrselves and we wear many masks. Every day we wear
different masks. ‘

You wear 2 mask all throngh vour life. One minnte you are a
Father and the next minuts vou are the boss and the mask vou wear
is tough and hard. and the next minute you are the lover, and the
next minute yon may be the concerned friend.

These arc certain things that the vonng people are having trouble
with, with drugs, becanse they can’t fluctuate from one system to
another systeni etfectively. They can’t handle these masks.

So what do they do? At a young age they understand what de-
pression is. What do they do# They remain high. They shoot dru
into their veins. Now. buasketball is onr national game. Let me t
you, basketbail is the black national game. mainly becanse of the
equipment thai is needed, which is one ball, and the many partici-
pants that can be involvel.

Like you have one ball and 20 or 30 guys can play. You know, 10
can play now and then five more come up and you keep rotating like
this. Also, it is usually available because all of the playgrounds in
our communities are asphalt, are concrete. Se all you do is sweep
away the broken glass and there you go.

And another thing, the gheftos, the kids in the ghettos don’t have
any nights. They don’t know what nights are. They just sit out there
all night. And you can say it is fortunate or unfortunate, but the
city ks provided lighting so they can stay there all evening and into
the next morning just shooting basketball and playing.

In our ceramunity, also. we have these new-type of lighting, these
fhuorescent lightings. The kids can’t sleep. They look around and it
is as bright as day. As a matter of fact, it is brighter than day in
some places. So at 4 o’clock in the morning, kids are just running
around. You know, like when do they sleep? T know this because
my environment was the ssne when 1 was growing.

And I remember I didn’t have a male model in the home. This
is very important in our community becanse we dont have male
models. Most of them are in prisons. Most of them are strung out
on dope. Most of theme were in the war. We have an extremely high
death rate of blaclk males. Consequently. it causes confusion if you
have police harassment. So we have confusion and no direction and
no organization,

You know. like yon may have had a father over yon. and giving
yon guidance through your lifetime and giving vou direction through
your lifetime and telling yvou. OK, von are 6 years old now and now
is the time for you to start being what von want to be, whether it is
a lawyyer. doctor. architect. What do voun want to be? Let's start
preparing yvon now. But most black kids don’t conie out of their
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educational retardation until they ave about 35. These are men and
not kids, but they have the minds of children because of the incax-
ceration which has been worked on thein; the mental incarceration.

So therc are no male models. This is what the Concerned Athletes
in Action is concerned about : presenting male models in relationship
to the national game, which is basketball. And we have been ex-
tremely efiective.

Wali didn’t mention it but we also had a parade, which was before
the marathon began. And. like, we had « unit in the city called the
Coinmandos, which most people think would have negative connota-
tions but these men are mterested in saving the children. We had
one Girl Scout group and ahont five or six of us who started out and
we marched all throngh the zhetto and, like, we had cars, we had
loud speakers. We had just two or three cars. We marched through
the city and brought the people out and when we ended up we must
have had 30 or 40 cars and about 150 bicyeles. We had mothers and
children, and others all coming ont and walking with us and talking
with us, all of the way throngh the ghetto and we ended up at the
Boys’ Chub. in which we held onr marathon.

And so this is what e are all ahout. The community is concerned
because our young people are dying. We also have problems in com-
bating the movie industry and mesmerization. What they do is throw
models upon the movie screen for the yvoung people to emulate;
people shooting dope, snorting coke. brothers fighting sisters, and
hushands beating wives. And we leirn by imitating, yvon kmow. And
the kids say. wow, this is cool so we will do this, and it is cool to dress
like this, and it is 200l 10 be like this because they are pntting it in
front of me and that is reaily hip. beeanse that is the way you get
over, thi way you succeed. Aud all yon are doing is perpetuating the
systain and 1t is killing us. The almighty dollar is killing us.

Now, alternatives. What kind of alternative? I was sitting back
here earlier and I was thinking, you know, you were talking about
alternatives and what can penple do if they are human and homo-
sapiens and not aposapiens. What can they do about this? Be gladi-
ators in the pits—and I am referring to the professional basketball
players and the professional football players and the olympians and
the trackmen—want to coine back into their communities, they want
to unite in a mass eflort to control this problem. Now, there is no
monay. The Federal Government cut back 1n spending.

I was listening to you talk about that earlier and the cutting back
of the NCC programs. The young people don’t have jobs. They are
standing aiound this sunmer. The price of meat is higher than the
dope in the streets. It is easier to get dope.

Mr. .Joxes. Very true. '

Mr. DyER. Yes; it is easier to get dope. So what are they doing?
They are saying, hey, man, let’s mainlir 2 this because, hell, we can’t
go nowhere; we have nowhere io go. You know, we don’t have any
10b. So let’s go break in over here so we can get something to support
and maintain this habit.

They are doing this because somebody somewhere wants to make
some money. Semebody somewhere wants to make a lot of money.

And, like, you know, it has to be stopped if we are human beings.
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T mean, we got to put forth etfort. Concerned Athletes in Action have
a project which can do it. We can put together, and have put to-
gether, and have demonstrated in our scecond year operation that we
ean help control this probleni. If von are interested and if you are
human and if vou are concerned—just as yvoun believe that you could
be a lawyer when vou were coming up, or you could be that doctor
when you were coming up—-we believe in saving our children and.
saving their lives from the killer, the drugs, because we love them
and because we want a futmre generation to be here. You know, like,:
as vou save your children, we want to save our children.

Senator Bayn. One of the things, if I might interrupt ?

Mr. DyEr. Yes.

Senator Baym One of the things T have been very impressed with
1s your insight of the problem. I can read abowt that and the publie
generally can say they understand the problem, but I don’t think
anybody really ean understand it unless they have been there. You
gentlemen have been there and I think you have done a very sig-
nificant job in articulating it,

Our contribution, it seems, as those who haven’t really been there
but would like to help those who still are there, will be to take what-
ever steps we can to remove the incentive which might be there to
cause young people to take dimgs and to remove the symbols of adula-
tion in the communities you deseribe and the pressures, and remove
the temptations that might cause them to resort to drugs, either
throngh coercion or through their own volition and to take away
that temptation through either education or penalty.

Now, that is why we are here. You know, I could sit and listen to
your experience all day, and I would like to hear it, but you know it
;‘ilbe’r.ter to see than to hear. although you described it very graphic-

V.

Now tell us, any of you who have had experience, personal experi-
ence in this. and I suppose Mr. Jones may come closer than yon other
gentlemen to this actuallv—what are the temptations thai are im-
posed on an athlete. who is a symbol of suecess in his community, to
utilize some of thesc substances to then become part of the street
scene. which destrovs the sonl and ability to respond and to be human
and capable of responding. What are the temptations yon have wit-
nessed and what are the practices yon have witnessed ¢

Can you give us some specific exminples of physicians or trainers
or owners or fellow teammates who have said, come on, Wali, if you
don’t do it we are going to lose.

What are the pressures in your own mind or in the minds of some
of your teainmates in thinking, well. I ain not going to be the kind
of person people are going to look up to, or I am going to be dropped
fr%mg the team if I can’t score those extra points or run that extra
mile?

What ave those pressures?

Mr. Joxrs. T know for sare that it is not the specific action of
another to fortify ine to play better. There has never been anyv time
where an athlete has said. yon have to do this or do this for a run
because. you know, we as professionul athletes know our conditioning
especially since we Lave been playing for many years. And this has
never occurred since I have worked in the grass roots areas.
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Of course, there has been speenlation because I hung around with
street people that 1 was involved with drugs too. People called my
wife up and they told her T was in a sanitarium shooting drngs. So
I know the pressures on the athletes and the pressures on the people
on the streets. bocadse T am wl=o working in the community.

There are speculations vou are in drugs too when people come up
and say, hey, yon can get down with us, yeu are still from the streets.

So there are these pressures,

Senator Bavn. Well. the kind of pressure that T am specifically
concerned about—and in tryving to articulate these concerns T don’t
want in any wayv to give vou or anvbody else the impression that I
am not_equally concerned about those pressures that exist on the
street—but my immediate mission right now as chairman of this sub-
committee is to find oat if there are pressures that are put upon yon
who are professional athletes to nse sibstances. to be shot. to be
nanipulated in sueh a way that von indeed do use or are forced to
use or voluntarily use svnthetic substances whether it be ampheta-
mines or steroids or other kinds of substances to increase vour ath-
letic prowess.

Have you been subject to this kind of pressure in your professional
career?

Mr. Joxes. No. T haven't.

Senator Bayu. Or in vour amatenr career?

My, Joxes, No. T havew't. bt when 1 first started playing. T saw
a lot of the older hall players that had been playing with me for
several vears taking pills becaunse they were just fatigued.

Senator Bavir. What kind of pills were they?

Mr. Joxes. Thexv were probablyv speed. to speed them up. I never
nsed it. But I wounld just see—and I was still young when I first
came in—and T would see them teking it and the guy wonld say,
here is some speed. T mean. these guys conldn’t really go for two or
three nights becanse they were just old and fatigued. T noticed they
didn’t play any different though.

Senator Baym. Pardon?

Mr. Joxrs, They didn’t play any difevent. This was just psvcho-
logrical for the older ones.

So there has siever been any presstuire on wie except on my plaving
when T was injured that time.

There is the indireet pressure of sacing w need vou and the team
wants von, so under the cirenmstances do yvou think vou are able
te playv?

There were preasures about being shot. T know athletes who were
shot.in their knees to play in playoff games and almost were erippled.
f3ut that ic still on the individnal. He doesn’t have to have a shot.
But these are the pressures that athletes go through becanse they’re
trving to keep their position or trving to keep up their whole id.
their whole T. the whole individual effort in trving to still be the
superstar. And thers are superstars that don’t have to do this because
they get some rest. But there is the career man who. if le is injured,
somehodv will take his place and he will lose his joh. So there are
pressures that von dor’t see all of the time. There are pressures on
athletes who are just barely making it. They have to play while they
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are mjurad and have to play shot up. These are the pressures that
are not always seen. .

Senator Baym. What sort of advice could you give me, as a mem-
ber of the Senate and 28 somoebody who has trying to limit the
avcess to amphetavines and barbiturates—the uppers and downers
—and get out of this artificial culture at the street level and stop
it. Someone who is trying to say to the big drug producers, we are
not going to let you go ahead with unlimited production because
this poison gets out on the streets eventually, so what advice could
vou give me? .

Are there laws or regulations or standards we should require of
pmfessio’nal athletes or managers or owners that would lessen the

ressnve ?

P Mr. Joxrs. T have a suggestion, and that is, we talk about drugs
coming into all of our ports, and 1 asked a kid 10 years old, where
did the drugs come from, and he said, hell, they come in from another
comtry. So these are always in our inidst. They are always accossible.
A= Maki said, drugs cost less than meat now.

And what we say is, there has to be some type of control because
in our areas that I have worked in and lived in the same thing is
true—and he comes from Kansas and I come from Philly, but we
are all experiencing the same thing. And we sit down and rap with
brothers from all over the conntry and they are all experiencing the
saume thing in all arcas. There is a complete genocide of people going
on and there ims to be some control. There has to be control on
the ports. There has to be control on the access to pills and access
to cough syrup in pharinaceutical stores and the access to drugs.

T mean. our whole cilture is drng-oriented. Television says to take
a glass of something to go to sleep or just take a pill. They are orient-
ing the whole Nation to do everything on the basis of, let’s take
something to relieve this situation instead of using their mental
sapacities.

Senator Bavir. T have sat here hour after hour and lstened to
certain government officials say iny snggestion to limit :mehetamines
sounded good but didn’t make sense, and that vou couldn’t limit the
production of amphetamines hecanse, ot cetern, ot cotera. et cotera.
Well. we did cut back production 80 percent.

You know, this is what we have heen trying to do now in the same
area with barbiturates and sopors and methaqualoize. Are there things
that we shonld give our attention to in the area of sporting activities
whether it is amateur or professional? T don’t think any of us can
wave a magiec wand. yon know, but we can do our own particular
thing to help.

Are there regulations or actions that we should give our attention
to in this area? T mn a second-rate amateur. At least T was several
vears agn. or maybe even a_third-rate. but T love sports and hate
to see this area. which has in the past, and I like to think today,
symbolized excellence and accomplishment on your own capacity
withont having some sort of pill to prop you up, and I hate to see
this change.

Are there things we need to do to guarantee that this continues to
be the standard we strive for?
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Mr. Dyer. T wonld like to answer the question. Yes, there is some-
thing we ean do. I was ready to propose this.

Onr objective is to universally set up connseling, drug education
and prevention, recreational centers throughout the conntry and by
this we will improve decisionmaking. Even if yon ent back on am-
photamines and barbiturates yon still have this problem ont here.
So we sav, we can’t stop the source of it, in here, and it is going to be
here, but we can improve the decisionmaking of the people involved.
We can set up centers which yonng people can come into that are
open 24 homrs a day in which they can have recreational activities,
in which they can be comnseled in relationship to drugs, and where
they can hiave a drug prevention program and an educational pro-
gram enlightening thicia abont what they are taking.

Yon see. in the ghetto if they hear abont some dengs that they
don’t know abont. they're jnst going to pop it in their mouth or
shoot. it in their veins becanse they say, von can get high., And what
we want to do iz miversally set up centers to combat this.

Right now. T wonld like to tnrn it over to a very good friend of
mine. Dr. Russell Cassel, one of the most prominent psychologists
in the field of drug education. e is a retired eolonel from the Air
Foree Acacdemy. a gradnate of the Rocharks Institute. e has pub-
lished over nine books, TTe has had over 13 tests which are in opera-
tion or were at one {ime in operation. lle has published over 300
articles in relationship to drngs. and eminseling, which we will have
at onr center.

Right now T wonld like to tnrn it over to a very good friend of
mine and my major professor in my stndies, Dr. Russell Cassel.

Dy, Cassen, Thank von, Maki, .

I am Professor Russell Cassel from the University of Wisconsin,
T was born in arrisburg, Pa., 61 years ago. T spent 15 years and 5
in cach of the wars involuntarily and retived from the California
school system.

T am bhetter known as the editor of Mr. Edneation, which has Sid
Mariand’s pietine, or as the editor of College Studemnts’ Jowmnal,
and the lead artiele is abont Elliott Richardson and the second article
is abont. Senatar Jackson of yonr own gronp, and the third article is
abont President Weaver, from the nniversity svstem, and the fonrth
item is a Nobel Prize winner, abont a Nobel Prize winner in this
issne just released yesterday. .

But I am a fellon of the American Psychological Association. 1
am the only divlemsi iu the school psychology area that the Univer-
sity of Milwaitkee has ever had,

So T gaess T wonld rather talk as a psychologist. As a psychologist.
I can say there is something I think you can’t captnre np here in the
Senate Dballs, ¢hat T want to bring ont. Yesterday noon when 1
learned that we were coming here instead of the Gary, Ind. to meet
yvonr group, T ealled a fnll colonel )

Senator Bavin Pardon me. And this is off the record.

[Disenssion off the recovd. ]

Senator Bayn. QK. von were saying.

Dr. Cassen. T ealled a friend. a full eslonel friend of mine and
told him T wonld be here and wonld like to meet with Itim becanse
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he is_on a panel at the American Psychological Association and
served with me on this panel on decisionmaking. I told hiin Wali
Jones was coming with me.

e said, oh, no, not Wali Jones and Lucius Allen, the famous bas-
ketball players. I said, ves, they are involved in programs for the
second year in the Milwankee aren and that was about all he said,
but an hour later he called wme hack—and he has fonr ehildren, the
youngest one who is 17 and a senior in the high school in Washington
here. and the other two are at Howard University and the fourth one
is a senior at Oregen and three of these were at home—and when
he called back he wanted to meet Wali Jones and Lacius Allen, and
his son was determined that he was going to come down here and
meet th